
 

Walled Lake City Council Chambers | 1499 E. West Maple Rd. | Walled Lake | Phone (248) 624-4847   

CITY OF WALLED LAKE 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

PUBLIC HEARING 
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM) 

Tuesday, May 19, 2020 | 7:30 P.M. 

 

NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC PUBLIC MEETING: Pursuant to Executive Order No. 2020-75 signed by 

Governor Whitmer May 6, 2020, allows participation of the City Council meeting to be made available 

PLEDGE TO FLAG & INVOCATION   

ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF 

A QUORUM 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUESTS FOR AGENDA CHANGES   

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

1.  Regular Council Meeting of April 21, 2020 

 

Pg.4 

PUBLIC HEARING 1.  2021 Fiscal Year Budget Appropriations 

2.  Healy Homes, LLC Appeal Regarding Planning Commission Case 274 

     Chestnut Hills Lot Split  

 

 

Pg.19 

COUNCIL REPORT 

 

1.  Report from Trailway Representative/Council Member Owsinek   

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

1.  Departmental / Divisional Statistical Reports 

a. Police                                                                                            

b. Fire                                                                                                 

c. Finance       

       -Warrant    

2.   Pulte Homes of Michigan – Beachwood Development Request for  

      Performance Guarantee Reduction                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

 

 

Pg.35 

Pg.46 

   

Pg.59 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 

  

ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 

1.   Memo Initiatory Petition Charter Amendment 

2.   Memo Zoning Map Update   

3.   Memo Pincanna, LLC Appeal  

 

Pg.131 

Pg.178 

Pg.179 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

1.  Second Reading C-350-20 Amendment to Chapter 50 pertaining to     

     Tobacco, Vapor and Alternative Nicotine Products by Minors 

 

Pg. 180 

 

NEW BUSINESS 1.  Proposed Resolutions 2020-19 Budget Appropriations for Fiscal Years 

     2021-2022 

2.  Proposed Resolution 2020-20 The L-4029 2020 Millage Request and Tax  

     Levy  

3.  Bids for Downtown Storm Sewer and Beautification 

4.  Bids for Public Safety Campus Expansion, Phase II 

Pg.187 

  

Pg.191 

 

 

Pg.193 

Pg.194 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

  

MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

1.  Proposed Resolution 2020-21 National Gun Violence Awareness Day First 

     Friday of June  

Pg.195 

AUDIENCE PARTICPATION Audience members will be able to speak via electronic means as instructed 

below. 

 

ADJOURMENT   



Page 2 of 3 

 

via electronic communications out of precaution and to limit the potential exposure of the public and staff 

to the COVID-19 virus.  

Electronic Meeting Platform  

The City will be utilizing the audio-conferencing tool ZOOM. Members of the Walled Lake public body will be 

able to hear and speak to each other for the entire meeting. Except for closed session portions of the meeting, 

members of the audience/public will be able to hear members of the Walled Lake public body during the entire 

meeting but will only be able to speak during Audience Participation or Public Hearing.  

 

To connect to the meeting through ZOOM using a laptop PC or Smart Phone, a member of the public may need 

to do the following: 

• Install Zoom App on mobile device.  

• Or download Zoom Client at https://zoom.us/download and install on a PC or Mac 
 

Otherwise please click the link below and join the meeting.  

 

• https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83171062919 

Password: 425214 

 

Or iPhone one-tap:  

    US: +13126266799,,83171062919#,,1#,425214#  or +16465588656,,83171062919#,,1#,425214#  

 

Or Telephone: Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 

        US: +1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 558 8656  or +1 301 715 8592  or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 669 900 9128  

or +1 253 215 8782  

    Webinar ID: 831 7106 2919 

    Password: 425214 

    International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/ki8LwRKYO 

 

Members of the public participating in during the Audience Participation period via ZOOM will wait in a 

virtual queue until called upon during the audience participation period. Because of limitations on un-muting 

and re-muting members of the public, audience participation will be at the end of the meeting (unless there is a 

public hearing item, in which case the following procedures will apply to that portion of the meeting as well). 

 

When audience participation is permitted, members of the public will be called one at a time, as would happen 

during an in-person meeting. The meeting moderator will determine the order of public speakers. If you want to 

speak, you must use the “Raise Hand” feature for the Mayor to know you need to be unmuted. When you are 

unmuted, you will have three (3) minutes to share your comments to the public body. At the conclusion of your 

comments or your three (3) minutes, you will be re-muted and then removed from the queue.  

 

Participants may also choose to submit comments that can be read into the record. Comments can be submitted 

via an email to clerk@walledlake.com.  Comments shall be done prior to 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.  

 

Procedures by which persons may contact members of the public body prior to a meeting.  

 

The City of Walled Lake government e-mail addresses of the members of all public bodies utilizing this means 

of meeting are available on the City’s website at:  

 

https://walledlake.us/index.php/contact-us 

 

https://zoom.us/download
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83171062919
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/ki8LwRKYO
mailto:clerk@walledlake.com
https://walledlake.us/index.php/contact-us


Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

Procedures for participation by persons with disabilities.  

 

The City will be following its normal procedures for accommodation of persons with disabilities. Those 

individuals needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk 

(248) 624- 4847 in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations.  
 

 

Individuals with Hearing or Speech-Impairments 

Users that are hearing persons and deaf, hard of hearing, or speech-impaired persons can communicate by 

telephone by dialing 7-1-1. 

• Individuals who call will be paired with a Communications Assistant 

• Make sure to give the Communications Assistant the proper teleconference phone number and 

meeting ID with password.  
 

For more information please visit: 

https://www.michigan.gov/mpsc/0,9535,7-395-93308_93325_93425_94040_94041---,00.html 

 

https://www.michigan.gov/mpsc/0,9535,7-395-93308_93325_93425_94040_94041---,00.html


 
CITY OF WALLED LAKE 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM) 

TUESDAY, APRIL 21, 2020 
7:30 P.M. 

 
The Meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. by Mayor Ackley. 
 
ROLL CALL: Mayor Ackley, Mayor Pro Tem Ambrose, Council Member 

Costanzo, Council Member Lublin, Council Member Owsinek, 
Council Member Woods  

 
There being a quorum present, the meeting was declared in session. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: City Manager Whitt, Confidential Assistant Jaquays, Assistant 

City Manager Pesta, Police Chief Shakinas, Police Captain Kolke, 
Fire Chief Coomer, Finance Director Barlass, City Attorney 
Vanerian, Deputy City Clerk Gross, and City Clerk Stuart 

 
CM 4-1-20  MOTION TO EXCUSE COUNCIL MEMBER LOCH FROM   
   TONIGHT’S MEETING 
 
 Motion by Owsinek, seconded by Ambrose, UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED: To excuse 
 Council Member Loch from tonight’s meeting.  
 
Roll Call Vote 
 
 Ayes (6)  Costanzo, Lublin, Owsinek, Woods, Ambrose, Ackley  
 Nays (0)   
 Absent (1)  Loch  
 Abstention (0) 

 
REQUEST FOR AGENDA CHANGES: None 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 
 

1. Regular Council Meeting and Public Hearing of February 18, 2020 
 

CM 4-2-20  MOTION TO APPROVE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AND  
   PUBLIC HEARING OF FEBRUARY 18, 2020 
 
 Motion by Owsinek, seconded by Lublin, UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED: To approve the 
 Regular Council Meeting and Public Hearing of February 18, 2020. 
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 4 of 197



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM)            

APRIL 21, 2020 
Page 2 of 15 

 
 
Roll Call Vote 
 
 Ayes (6)  Lublin, Owsinek, Woods, Ambrose, Costanzo, Ackley 
 Nays (0) 
 Absent (1)  Loch 
 Abstention (0) 
 
COUNCIL REPORT: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Ambrose reported on the regular DDA meeting from last week, April 14th 

through the electronic zoom meeting platform. He explained Board Member Fernandes was able 
to bring a speaker, Attorney Joseph Grekin who spoke about opportunity for small businesses 
during this time. Attorney Grekin provided information on programs available through the 
federal government, state, and county. Mayor Pro Tem Ambrose said the attorney also spoke on 
the benefits of negotiating with your creditors now while there is a moratorium. Mayor Pro Tem 
Ambrose explained Attorney Grekin stressed the importance of keeping track of all expenses, be 
proactive, and ask for help. Mayor Pro Tem Ambrose thanked Board Member Fernandes and 
Attorney Grekin.  
 
CORRESPONDENCE: None  
 
ATTORNEY’S REPORT: 
 

1. Memo Coeus, LLC – Lawsuit Status Update 
 

City Attorney Vanerian explained the lawsuit filed by Coeus, LLC named various city officials 
including the Mayor, City Manager, City Clerk, and the city’s Development Coordinator. 
Attorney Vanerian explained the applicant was not approved for a number of reasons as outlined 
in his memo.  Attorney Vanerian explained the lawsuit held an abundant number of scandalous 
claims, the city stood its ground, the truth prevailed, and the court dismissed the frivolous claims 
brought on by the plaintiff. City Attorney Vanerian explained Oakland County Circuit Court did 
issue an opinion an order after a year and half on this case granting the city’s motion for 
summary disposition. City Attorney Vanerian explained Coeus and its attorneys failed to supply 
evidence to support their incredulous claims. Attorney Vanerian said it has been over a year and 
half for them to try and find evidence and they could not, simply because it did not exist.   

 
Council Member Costanzo said he wanted to clarification on the court’s opinion, claims were 
granted in part and granted not in part. 
 
City Attorney Vanerian explained the plaintiff had also named the successful provisioning center 
applicant in the claim and that portion does not involve the city at all. Attorney Vanerian said the 
only remaining claim against the city is a claim for a refund of the $750.00 application fee.  
Attorney Vanerian explained the judge did not say the applicant is entitled to a refund.  
Council Member Lublin said Attorney Vanerian did very well and the outcome was outstanding.  

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 5 of 197



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM)            

APRIL 21, 2020 
Page 3 of 15 

 
 
City Attorney Vanerian said attorney Ann McClorey McLaughlin with the Michigan Municipal 
Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) was also part of the team and commended her on her 
efforts with the lawsuit.  
 
Mayor Ackley thanked the City Manager and city attorneys for their diligent efforts.  
 

2. Pincanna, LLC Provisioning Center Appeal Request 
 

City Attorney Vanerian explained Pincanna’s application for a medical marijuana center was 
also denied and the applicant is requesting to come before council for an appeal. City Attorney 
Vanerian explained the date for the appeal may be addressed by council or administratively.   
 
Mayor Ackley suggested picking a date this evening since majority of council was present. 
 
Council Member Owsinek expressed his support for placing the appeal as part of a regular 
meeting not a special meeting. Member Owsinek suggested scheduling for the next regular 
meeting that council can meet in person. 
 
Mayor Ackley explained her concerns for hosting an appeal during a regular meeting due to 
multiple agenda items. 
 
Council Member Owsinek suggested scheduling for the regular council meeting in May but if the 
Governor’s orders extend then host the meeting in June. 
 
Mayor Ackley suggested May 20th as a Special Meeting date.  
 
CM  4-3-20  MOTION TO SCHEDULE SPECIAL MEETING, A PUBLIC   

  HEARING FOR PINCANNA, LLC APPEAL FOR MAY 20, 2020 AT 
                                    7:30 P.M. 
 
 Motion by Ambrose, seconded by Woods, UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED: To schedule a 
 special meeting, a public hearing for Pincanna, LLC for May 20, 2020 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
 
 Ayes (6)  Lublin, Owsinek, Woods, Ambrose, Costanzo, Ackley  
 Nays (0)   
 Absent (1)  Loch  
 Abstention (0) 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 

1. Second Reading C-348-20 Oakland County Cross Connection Control Program 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 6 of 197



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM)            

APRIL 21, 2020 
Page 4 of 15 

 
 
CM 4-4-20  MOTION TO APPROVE SECOND READING C-348-20 AN   
   ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE OAKLAND COUNTY CROSS  
   CONNECTION CONTROL PROGRAM AND DESIGNATING  
   OAKLAND COUNTY AS THE AGENT FOR ADMINISTERING  
   THE PROGRAM 
 
 Motion by Owsinek, seconded by Lublin, CARRIED: To approve second reading C-348-
 20 an ordinance adopting the Oakland County Cross Connection Control Program and 
 designating Oakland County as the agent for administering the program. 
 
Discussion 
 
Council Member Costanzo said in section 82-81 paragraph (a), he would not support an 
ordinance that grants this type of access to private property for a non-emergency instance. 
 
Council Member Costanzo moved to amend ordinance section 82-81 paragraph (a), language 
regarding, representative shall have right to enter to say shall have right to enter only after being 

granted permission by the owner and strike the refusal of access shall deem as evidence of cross 

contamination.  
 
Motion dies for lack of support. 
 
Main Motion 
Roll Call Vote 
 
 Ayes (4)  Owsinek, Woods, Ambrose, Lublin 
 Nays (1)  Costanzo 
 Absent (1)  Loch 
 Abstention (0) 
 

2. BDS Medical Growers, LLC Appeal Case 2020-01 
 

City Attorney Vanerian explained he prepared a legal review and recommendation as instructed 
by council. Attorney Vanerian explained the packet is available to the public if anyone is 
interested and it is in the council packet this evening. Attorney Vanerian explained his 
recommendation and that is to affirm the administrative denial of the applicant’s application. 
Attorney Vanerian opined the administrative decision maker did not breach a duty or make a 
mistake in the interpretation of the application or city ordinances.  
 
Mayor Ackley said City Attorney Vanerian’s legal opinion is very complete and informative.  
 
City Attorney Vanerian explained the applicant’s attorney, Mr. Kelly is available for comment.  
Attorney Kelly explained the denial letter issued to BDS misquotes and misapplies the city’s 
ordinances and warrants a reversal of the administrative decision of denial. Attorney Kelly 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 7 of 197



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM)            

APRIL 21, 2020 
Page 5 of 15 

 
 
opined there was not an existing provisioning center within 500 feet of BDS and there was no 
existing provisioning center that had been issued a city operating license. Attorney Kelly 
explained there was not an existing provisioning center within 500 feet of BDS’s location on the 
date of the denial, on the date the appeal was filed, or on the date of the public hearing.  
 
Attorney Kelly asked that council also take action on the variance requests by BDS. Attorney 
Kelly explained this situation should not have occurred and opined one like it should never occur 
again. Attorney Kelly said there should not be a situation where an applicant is awarded a state 
license and not a city license. Attorney Kelly explained his client spent a significant amount of 
money. Attorney Kelly explained the city has the power to remedy this situation.  
 
Attorney Kelly said the decision should be based on the administrative record, the city attorney 
was the official that issued the denial letter originally in November and he asked council to 
indicate if they had an opportunity to review the administrative record.  
 
Attorney Kelly said he wanted to remind council that they did vote to recuse Mayor Pro Tem 
Ambrose from consideration of this issue.  
 
City Attorney Vanerian explained he provided council the notice of denial, but he was not the 
administrative decision maker. Attorney Vanerian clarified he only notified opposing counsel of 
the action on the application and the reasons that the administrative decision maker relied upon 
in making its decision.  
 
Attorney Christyn Scott who represents Attitude Wellness spoke on behalf of her client. Attorney 
Scott explained that Attorney Vanerian’s packet outlines the case very well. Attorney Scott said 
the city ordinance outlines specific procedures for an applicant to obtain priority under the 
ordinance and that is exactly what Attitude Wellness did by establishing new sewer and water 
hook ups. Attorney Scott explained obtaining a state license does not automatically grant an 
applicant a city operating license. Attorney Scott explained her client followed all the procedures 
outlined in the ordinance to obtain priority over BDS. Attorney Scott explained there are five 
criteria to obtain a variance, none of which BDS met.  
 
CM 4-5-20  MOTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2020-14 A RESOLUTION  
   OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WALLED LAKE  
   DENYING APPLICANT’S APPEAL IN CITY COUNCIL CASE  
   2020-01 AND AFFIRMING THE ADMINISTRATIVE DENIAL OF  
   APPLICANT’S SITE PLAN APPLICATION FOR A    
   PROVISIONING CENTER 
    

Motion by Lublin, seconded by Owsinek, CARRIED: To approve resolution 2020-14 a 
resolution of the City Council of the City of Walled Lake denying applicant’s appeal in 
City Council Case 2020-01 and affirming the administrative denial of applicant’s site 
plan application for a provisioning center. 
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 8 of 197



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM)            

APRIL 21, 2020 
Page 6 of 15 

 
 
Discussion 
 
Council Member Costanzo explained there is a pending litigation on this case, and he cannot 
comment on it, but he was going to make his decision based on what was presented and 
discussed at the January meeting. Council Member Costanzo asked City Attorney Vanerian if the 
judge recommended this action by council. 
 
City Attorney Vanerian explained the judge did implore the parties to pursue these 
administrative remedies.  Attorney Vanerian said the appeal process is provided by ordinance. 
Attorney Vanerian explained there was a lawsuit filed prior to the appeal. Attorney Vanerian 
explained typically the appeal process can be done without litigation and is typically done prior 
to a lawsuit being filed. Attorney Vanerian explained in this case the lawsuit was filed prior to 
the instant appeal. City Attorney Vanerian explained this appeal is not part of the lawsuit, this is 
outside scope of the litigation and lawsuit itself and is an administrative appeal before council.  
 
Council Member Costanzo explained that everybody should look at the BDS timeline and opined 
they are relevant. Council Member Costanzo explained the packet provided in January by 
Attorney Kelly is thorough and outlines the submittal of attestations, applications, the certificate 
of occupancy and state licensing grant.  
 
Mayor Ackley stated this is all relevant and opined the timelines as outlined by City Attorney 
Vanerian are equally as relevant.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Ambrose recused himself from vote.  

 
Roll Call Vote 
 
 Ayes (4)  Woods, Lublin, Owsinek, Ackley  
 Nays (1)  Costanzo 
 Absent (1)  Loch  
 Abstention (0) 
 
City Attorney Vanerian affirmed the administrative denial of application with City Council and 
explained there were also two variance requests that need to be addressed.  
 
City Clerk Stuart provided viewing of the proposed resolution through a shared screening 
process for council and public to view. 
 
 
CM 4-6-20  MOTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2020-15 A RESOLUTION  
   OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WALLED LAKE  
   DENYING APPLICANT’S REQUEST FOR A VARIANCE FROM  
   THE 500 FT. SETBACK REQUIREMENT IN SECTION 21.50(E)(7)  
   OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE FOR THE REASON THAT   

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 9 of 197



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM)            

APRIL 21, 2020 
Page 7 of 15 

 
 
   APPLICANT HAS FAILED TO DEMONSTRATE A PRACTICAL  
   DIFFICULTY 
    

Motion by Lublin, seconded by Owsinek, CARRIED: To approve resolution 2020-15 a 
resolution of the City Council of the City of Walled Lake denying applicant’s request for 
a variance from the 500 ft. setback requirement in section 21.50(E)(7) of the zoning 
ordinance for reason that applicant has failed to demonstrate a practical difficulty. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Ambrose recused himself from vote. 
 

Roll Call Vote 
 
 Ayes (4)  Lublin, Owsinek, Woods, Ackley  
 Nays (1)  Costanzo  
 Absent (1)  Loch 
 Abstention (0) 
 
City Clerk Stuart provided viewing of the proposed resolution through a shared screening 
process for council and public to view. 
 
CM 4-7-20  MOTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2020-16 A RESOLUTION  
   OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WALLED LAKE  
   DENYING APPLICANT’S REQUEST FOR A VARIANCE FROM  
   THE TWO (2) FACILITY NUMERICAL LIMITATION IN   
   SECTION 21.50(B) OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE FOR THE  
   REASON THAT APPLICANT HAS FAILED TO DEMONSTRATE  
   A PRACTICAL DIFFICULTY 
    

Motion by Owsinek, seconded by Lublin, CARRIED: To approve resolution 2020-16 a 
resolution of the City Council of the City of Walled Lake denying applicant’s request for 
a variance from the two (2) facility numerical limitation in section 21.50(b) of the zoning 
ordinance for the reason that applicant has failed to demonstrate a practical difficulty. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Ambrose recused himself from vote. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
 
 Ayes (4)  Lublin, Owsinek, Woods, Ackley  
 Nays (1)  Costanzo  
 Absent (1)  Loch   
 Abstention (0) 
 
 
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 10 of 197



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM)            

APRIL 21, 2020 
Page 8 of 15 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

1. First Reading C-350-20 Amendment to Chapter 50 pertaining to Tobacco, Vapor 
and Alternative Nicotine Products by Minors 

 
CM 4-8-20  MOTION TO APPROVE FIRST READING C-350-20 AN   
   ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 50, “OFFENSES AND  
   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS” TO ENACT OFFENSES   
   PERTAINING TO THE USE AND POSSESSION OF TOBACCO,  
   VAPOR AND ALTERNATIVE NICOTINE PRODUCTS BY   
   MINORS 
    

Motion by Costanzo, seconded by Ambrose, UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED: To approve 
first reading C-350-20 an ordinance to amend Chapter 50, “Offenses and Miscellaneous 
Provisions” to enact offenses pertaining to the use and possession of tobacco, vapor and 
alternative nicotine products by minors.  
 

Roll Call Vote 
 
 Ayes (6)  Lublin, Owsinek, Woods, Ambrose, Costanzo, Ackley  
 Nays (0)   
 Absent (1)  Loch   
 Abstention (0) 
 

2. Proposed Resolution 2020-17 Authorizing the City Manager to Pursue agreement 
for title of vacant lot on Gamma Road to dedicate as park space to Marshall Taylor 
Park 

 
CM 4-9-20  MOTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2020-17 A RESOLUTION  
   INSTRUCTING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO  
   NEGOTIATE AND AGREE UPON TERMS AND FINALIZE THE  
   ACQUISITION OF VACANT PARCEL AT THE ENTRANCE OF  
   MARSHALL TAYLOR PARK TO ADD AS PART OF THE PARK 
    

Motion by Lublin, seconded by Woods, CARRIED: To approve resolution 2020-17 a 
resolution instructing and authorizing the City manager to negotiate for an agree upon 
and finalize terms for the acquisition of vacant parcel at the entrance of Marshall Taylor 
Park to add as part of the park. 
 

Discussion 
 
Council Member Costanzo asked if this property was being donated to the city.  
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 11 of 197



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM)            

APRIL 21, 2020 
Page 9 of 15 

 
 
City Manager Whitt explained it was discovered by the owner that her husband before his 
passing had purchased the property and they had been paying taxes on it. Mr. Whitt explained 
the owner approached administration and the DDA about negotiating terms for the property 
ownership to be transitioned to the city. City Manager Whitt explained the parcel is at the 
entrance of the park and has been assumed to be part of the park. Manager Whitt opined there is 
no substantial cost and if it does become substantial it will come back before council. Mr. Whitt 
said this resolution allows for the discussion and negotiating to begin.  
 
Council Member Costanzo said what he recalled from July of last year, the property was brought 
before council because of an outstanding bill and if the property was donated would the bill then 
be waived.  Council Member Costanzo requested any negotiation and terms come back before 
council for review and discussion.  
 
Council Member Lublin explained he has trust and faith in City Manager to address this if there 
are nominal transfer fees or something of this nature they will be addressed.  
 
City Manager Whitt said Council Member Lublin stated it correctly, that should there be some 
outstanding nominal fees that can be waived, that would make it different than a direct purchase 
turning it to be a donation of sorts. Mr. Whitt said again, if there a large cost associated with it, it 
comes back before council.   
 
Roll Call Vote 
 
 Ayes (5)  Lublin, Owsinek, Woods, Ambrose, Ackley  
 Nays (1)  Costanzo   
 Absent (1)  Loch 
 Abstention (0) 

 
3. Proposed Resolution 2020-18 Healthcare Plan Renewal 2020 Fulltime Employee 

 
CM 4-10-20 MOTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2020-18 A RESOLUTION  
   APPROVING A HEALTH CARE BENEFIT PACKAGE PLAN FOR 
   FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES FOR THE PLAN YEAR APRIL 1, 2020  
   TO MARCH 31, 2021 
    

Motion by Owsinek, seconded by Lublin, UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED: To approve 
resolution 2020-18 a resolution approving a health care benefit package plan for full-time 
employees for the plan year April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021. 
 

Roll Call Vote 
 
 Ayes (6)  Owsinek, Woods, Ambrose, Costanzo, Lublin, Ackley  
 Nays (0)   
 Absent (1)  Loch  

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 12 of 197



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM)            

APRIL 21, 2020 
Page 10 of 15 

 
 
 Abstention (0) 

 
4. Bids for Downtown Storm Sewer and Beautification 
 

City Manager Whitt explained there were two bids received $747,016 and $733,351 both of 
which were considered by administration to be extremely high. Mr. Whitt said the bids were way 
more than expected and he recommended the bids be rejected by council and instructed to be 
rebid. City Manager Whitt explained the bid packet needs to be restructured and asked council to 
reject the bids. 

 
CM 4-11-20 MOTION TO REJECT THE APRIL 1, 2020 DOWNTOWN STORM  
   SEWER AND BEAUTIFICATION BIDS  
  

Motion by Costanzo, seconded by Woods, UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED: To reject the 
April 1, 2020 downtown storm sewer and beautification bids. 
 

Discussion 
 
City Manager Whitt explained rejecting the bids in no way indicates slowing the project down it 
is intended to get a better price, but we want it as good a price as the city can get.  

 
Roll Call Vote 
 
 Ayes (6)  Woods, Ambrose, Costanzo, Lublin, Owsinek, Ackley  
 Nays (0)   
 Absent (1)  Loch   
 Abstention (0) 

 
MAYOR’S REPORT: 
 
Mayor Ackley explained on March 10th she and the City Manager worked to declare a state of 
emergency in the City of Walled Lake. Mayor Ackley explained we are directed by the federal, 
state and county governments. Mayor Ackley explained that if down the line if there are funds to 
be dispersed, Walled Lake will be eligible. Mayor Ackley explained City Manager Whitt has 
experience in crisis situations from his prior employments. He is capable of handling and 
directing the staff.  Mayor Ackley explained the city Police Chief, Fire Chief, DPW crew and 
city administration have been working diligently. Mayor Ackley explained she is in constant 
communication with City Administration and staff. Mayor Ackley commends the city council 
and city residents and said Walled Lake is a great town we need to get through this and do things 
the right way.  
 
 
 
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 13 of 197



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM)            

APRIL 21, 2020 
Page 11 of 15 

 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
City Manager Whitt explained Mayor Ackley had been in contact with Erick Phillips, Senior 
Business Consultant for Oakland County Business Center and orchestrated meetings issuing 
grant money for the small businesses. City Manager Whitt explained there were four businesses 
picked to receive funding from this grant and the Oakland County Executive will announce the 
recipients tomorrow. City Manager Whitt explained the four nominees are in downtown Walled 
Lake on E. Walled Lake Drive. Mr. Whitt said the recipients will be getting a substantial amount 
of money, should they choose to use it to invest in improving their sidewalks as part of their 
match request with the DDA for doing sidewalks, they will be able to do that.  
 
City Manager Whitt explained this is the first time he had been involved with a pandemic, but it 
was the same situation where there is a local state of emergency.  Manager Whitt explained he 
and the Mayor drafted the local state of emergency and right after that it was determined that we 
had presumptive cases in Oakland County. City Manager explained staff was placed on standby, 
adjustments were made to city hall which included closing the city hall lobby to the public.  
Manager Whitt said staff is there to take phone calls and answer emails and processing things we 
can. City Manager Whitt said not only as the City Manager but also the Public Safety Director he 
and the Deputy Public Safety Director Police Chief Shakinas and Emergency Management 
Coordinator Fire Chief Coomer all have acted in accordance with the emergency management 
state law and ultimately the county has the final say on how we are to deal with emergencies. 
City Manager Whitt explained their role is to provide first responder activity, whether it is police 
or fire. During this crisis under the city’s mutual aid agreements, first responders have gone as 
far as Southfield. City Manager Whitt said he has met with every single council member, except 
one, and has had daily conversations with some and the Mayor.  
 
Police Chief Shakinas explained in early February administration was preparing, he asked that 
people be patient and stay home as much as possible. There have been calls for violations of the 
Governor’s orders and only in extreme cases have citations been issued.    
 
Fire Chief Coomer explained he has been meeting daily with the Emergency Operations Center 
(EOC) of Oakland County and attending several meetings within Oakland County. He explained 
the Fire Department has responded to twenty COVID 19 type of emergencies. Chief Coomer 
explained the department amped up on the Personal Protection Equipment (PPE) and they did 
obtain additional equipment through Oakland County.  Chief Coomer commended the fire 
fighters and paramedics, who are on the front line. He thanked the first responders and their 
families.  
 
City Manager Whitt explained not only are the city first responders working but the post office 
workers are essential workers as well.  City Manager Whitt explained Council Member Loch is 
working tonight, that is why she is not at tonight’s meeting, she works for the post office and is 
and filling a spot on the front line because the post office is down employees due to COVID 19.  
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 14 of 197



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM)            

APRIL 21, 2020 
Page 12 of 15 

 
 
City Manager Whitt said Mayor Ackley has shown great leadership and he appreciates her 
leadership as well as the council members meeting with him Saturdays and Sundays and even in 
the evenings. Manager Whitt explained the city has professionals in the Police Department and 
Fire Department.  Manager Whitt opined the city is not Chicago or New York but we have the 
same pandemic they do.    
 
Council Member Costanzo asked why there were no statistical and divisional reports.  
 
City Manager Whitt explained to Council Member Costanzo that the city is amid a pandemic, 
those reports are not a high priority. If Council Member Costanzo wants them, he can obtain 
copies, they will be in the next meeting packet. City Manager Whitt opined administrative staff 
can only be commended for what they are doing, they are putting in hours over and above their 
normal workdays under conditions like everybody else out there that is considered an essential 
worker, they are giving their time.  
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: 
 
Mayor Ackley explained this is a new process hosting electronic meetings platforms and asked 
for patience. Mayor Ackley explained those who wish to speak will need to provide their name 
and address and will have three minutes to speak. If speaker refuses to give their, they will be 
muted, and the next speaker will be called upon.  
 
Kyler Pilnick, 1428 N. Pontiac Trail – asked the Mayor and City Manager Whitt if they noticed 
the activity at the Green House today.  
 
Erik Hall, 545 Winwood Ct – said he is concerned about the lack of city support of business 
owners. Mr. Hall explained his mother and father have owned a building in the city since 1978. 
Mr. Hall said he is seeking help from the people that are supposed to be working for the business 
owners rather than themselves. Mr. Hall explained he wants council to back the people that pay 
taxes rather than one person who gives them money.  
 
Cathy Fitzgerald,  221 W Walled Lake – said she lives down the street from Green House and 
last Thursday she filed a police report due to being harassed by a Green House employee’s 
friend. She said she is tired of the accidents, the traffic jams trying to get home and tired of being 
denied the opportunity to walk her dogs across the public parking lot to a public park. She said 
she raised a concern about people smoking weed outside the building and she messaged Green 
House on Facebook.  She said she has grandchildren that walk in the area.  She said the owner of 
Green House had an opportunity to reach out and apologize and explain how he would address 
the issue and he did nothing but take her post down.  She opined the owner does not know how 
to be a member of this community and therefore she asks that he not be treated as a member of 
this community. She said no more using the public parking lot, taking all the spaces downtown, 
favoritism or allowing him to intimidate the neighbors of this community. She said her 
neighborhood looks like the hood, there are orange barrels all over the place, there are sign’s 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 15 of 197



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM)            

APRIL 21, 2020 
Page 13 of 15 

 
 
falling, there are people flipping her off. She said there will be more legal actions that we will 
have to pay for as citizens of this community. 
 
Aaron Birdseye, 933 N Pontiac Trail – My concern is the fact that I’ve been the one who 
streamed hours and hours of the police not doing anything in that town. With thousands of 
people watching every day. Today we watched Linda Ackley circle a lady hugging a tree while 
they chopped it down above her head. Linda Ackley circled there are pictures and video of all of 
this. Dennis Whitt drove in a DPW truck with Mr. Ladd driving, stopped looked and then left. So 
why did it take Gabe to come there and then be intimidated by the Green House 
employee/owner. The fact that there is a lady over 80 years old still sitting outside and being 
harassed by the police is despicable. How are you guys sitting their tooting your own horns when 
you can’t even do something so simple and so easy and so applicable done. If you think that you 
are as city officials, you are fucked.  Linda is that you are talking.  
 
Deborah Martin, 215 Arvida – said you guys are despicable to let that lady sit there and do 
nothing all day. I cannot believe the way you guys act. It is disgraceful. Whoever is laughing 
shut the hell up because this is bullshit. We pay enough taxes in this city to have people on our 
side. Not on Green House’s side. I am not against pot, but that guy is an ass. You all know that.  
The whole city would like a response on why you guys let this get away. Why did you guys let 
this happen. You are supposed to be protecting us, the citizens of Walled Lake. You are not 
doing anything for the citizens. To have an 80-year-old lady hug a tree and cry and she is still 
sitting there, and you let it happen. This is bullshit.  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Council Member Lublin said the trail usage looks good and he is excited about the trailhead 
project that will lead into the city’s farmer’s market field. He said the trail costs, the city is 
responsible 33% but only has 10% of the population and 10% of the tax base.  He said this is 
something that needs to be addressed. He asked how much the city has spent total to date on the 
trail. He said it is his belief the cost of the maintenance of city’ s portion of the trail is our 
responsibility 100% and he is not sure the agreement is the way it is and does not see the benefit 
to the city to remain as a member in the trailway council. He said city council approved the 
healthcare benefits for the retirees and there are some retirees that are double dipping because 
they work elsewhere and still collect city benefits. He said this needs to be reviewed and rectified 
this is not right the city is paying and they are receiving extra from different cities. 
 
Council Member Owsinek said he would like to commend all this city staff especially the fire 
and police departments, Police Chief Shakinas and Fire Chief Coomer. He said he understands 
ambulance runs have gone as far as Southfield as part of the mutual aid agreements. He said 
police and fire have been trained and are capable of any emergency.  
 
Council Member Costanzo said he wanted to address concerns of the residents he spoke with 
over the past month and half and there is a displeasure with the city’s response, particularly 
around the communications throughout this crisis.  Member Costanzo said this is not a good 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 16 of 197



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM)            

APRIL 21, 2020 
Page 14 of 15 

 
 
showing of how we acted through this process with communication to the public. He said the 
trail operation cost is operating at a fund balance which means the city is not contributing money 
to the trail, the trailway council is using monies that are from the fund balance. He said the 
trailway council has several million dollars in grants and donations and that money is still in the 
account.  
 
Council Member Woods said the first responders mutual aid agreements reaching out to 
Southfield and supporting other community and ours, kudos to the crew. Member Woods 
explained there was a telephone line hanging at Commerce and Pontiac and he spoke with the 
police who communicated to the fire department and they responded right away.  They had line 
fixed with the supplier the next day.  Another street had an issue with line of site at Annjo and 
Commerce, this was addressed, and the twigs and trees will be picked up during the next branch 
pick up.  Member Woods thanked Walled Lake Elementary, after closure due to Governor’s 
orders they donated all their hand sanitizer to the police and fire departments.  Member Woods 
explained a lot of neighbors are helping other neighbors donating their time and that is awesome. 
Member Woods said city neighborhoods have donated food to hospitality house. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Ambrose thanked the city officials and police and fire. Member Ambrose said in 
regard to Council Member Lublin’s comments for the trail, the city is still in the process of 
negotiating a new agreement. Member Ambrose said to correct Council Member Costanzo’s 
comments that the trail costs are coming out of the trail fund balance, the trailway fund balance 
does not cover the city’s portion of the cost for the engineering services brought on by the 
trailway council which exceed tens of thousands of dollars.    
 
City Manager Whitt explained he submitted to council an electronic copy of the budget 
presentation so council may begin to review now, and hard copies are available in your 
mailboxes at city hall. The budget is due, in terms of Charter requirements, in May, council is 
receiving a copy of the numbers a full month ahead of time which will give them time to review 
and meet with him individually to discuss issues or questions they may have.  He explained the 
fiscal year begins July 1. He explained the reason council is receiving the budget early is so they 
can decide how they want to move forward. He explained in the past budget work session were 
provided. The electronic budget provided shows council the numbers which will show how the 
money is proposed. He explained the big question will be with the loss of revenue that is being 
anticipated at the state level how it will affect Act 51 funding and possibly the revenue sharing. 
He explained right now, we have no way of judging that. Manager Whitt encouraged setting up 
an individual meeting after review of the proposed budget he provided this evening.  
 
Mayor Ackley explained the City Manager is acting within the Charter requirements, there is 
nothing in the Charter that requires budget work sessions. Mayor Ackley explained she has her 
own views on budget work sessions, and they started several years ago. Council input is 
providing whether there is a budget work session or not.  
 
 
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 17 of 197



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
(ELECTRONIC MEETING PLATFORM)            

APRIL 21, 2020 
Page 15 of 15 

 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:30 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Jennifer A. Stuart, City Clerk     Linda S. Ackley, Mayor  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
History: Chapter 6, The Council: Procedure and Miscellaneous Powers and Duties: Section 6.7 (a) A journal of the proceedings of each meeting 

shall be kept in the English language by the Clerk and shall be signed by the presiding officer and Clerk of the meeting. 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 18 of 197



 

MEMORANDUM 
 

City of Walled Lake ∙ 1499 E. West Maple Road ∙ Walled Lake, MI 48390 ∙ (248) 624-4847 
 
To:  Walled Lake City Council 
 
From:  Vahan Vanerian, City Attorney 
     
Re:   Appeal of Planning Commission Denial of Chestnut Hills Lot Split 
 
Date:  March 11, 2020 
 
 
On January 14, 2020, the Planning Commission denied a request to split an undeveloped parcel of 
land in the Chestnut Hills subdivision into two (2) separate adjoining parcels. The current parent 
parcel is approximately 1.34 acres in area and zoned single family residential. Each of the two 
resulting parcels would be in excess of .5 acres each. The property owner has represented that single-
family homes would be built on the two resulting parcels. The current parent parcel is located at the 
end of a dead-end street. The lot split application proposes constructing a T-turn around at the end of 
the dead-end street that would provide common access for both new parcels. Constructing a T-turn 
around, rather than a cul-de-sac, was one of the main points of discussion during the planning 
commission meeting and the primary reason for the denial. The January 14, 2020 planning 
commission minutes are attached for reference. The planning consultant’s May 21, 2019 memo (see 
attached) provides additional detail regarding the proposal and further lists and discusses the 
applicable decisional criteria as applied to this proposal. 
 
Pursuant to sec. 74-109(f) of the General Code of Ordinances, lot split applicants aggrieved by the 
decision on the lot split application may appeal the decision to the City Council. The appeal shall be in 
writing and filed with the City Clerk within 21 days of the decision. If the decision is by motion rather 
than a writing (e.g. resolution), the applicant has twenty-one (21) days from the approval of the 
minutes reflecting action on the application to file an appeal. Here, the applicant filed a timely written 
request for appeal within twenty-one days of the approval of the January 14, 2020 planning 
commission meeting minutes. 
 
Hearing on the appeal shall be scheduled at the next available regular City Council meeting. Upon 
conclusion of the appeal hearing, City Council may affirm, modify or reverse the decision of the 
planning commission. Because Councilmember Owsinek voted on the application as a member of the 
planning commission, he is disqualified from participating in the appeal before Council.       
 
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 19 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 20 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 21 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 22 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 23 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 24 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 25 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 26 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 27 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 28 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 29 of 197



PROPOSED LAND DIVISION 

\ 

HIGH POINTE CONDOMINIUM 

\ 

/ 
I 

N 85"49'44n E / 

\ 
/ 

I 

I 
I P.O.B. "A" 

CHESTNUT RIDGE 
60' PUBLIC R.O, W. 

I 

I 

\ 

I 

50 0 25 50 

SCALE: 1 IN. = 50 FT. 

17-33-400-046 

NOTE: 
EXISTING CONTOURS ARE SHOWN AS PER OAKLAND 
COUNTY GIS MAP. PROPOSED GRADING IS 
CONCEPTUAL AND IS SHOWN FOR FEASIBILITY 
ONLY. AN ACTUAL TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY AND 
DETAILED GRADING l',lLL BE SHOWN ON THE SITE 
PLAN IF THE LAND DIVISION IS APPROVED. 

ARPEE/DONNAN, INC. PREPARED FOR 
HEALY HOMES, LLC 

3696 SLEETH ROAD 

COMMERCE TWP., MICHIGAN 48382 
(248) 684-1699

LAND SURVEYING • ENGINEERING • MAPPING 
32233 SCHOOLCRAFT, SUITE 103 (734) 953-3335 
LIVONIA, MICHIGAN 48150 FAX (734) 953-3324 

REV: 6/6/19 
REV: 10 /02/19 

DATE: 04/25/19 

FB: DRAY-IN: 
PROJ, NO; 1 9018 
SHEET 1 OF 2 

Revised

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 30 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 31 of 197



May 21, 2019 

Planning Commission 
City of Walled Lake 
1499 E. West Maple Road 
Walled Lake, Michigan 48390 

Subject: Chestnut Ridge Lot Split Review (Survey dated April 25, 2019) 

Applicant: Healy Homes, LLC 

Location: Parcel 17-33-400-045 (North of W. Pontiac Trail, west-end of Chestnut Ridge) 

Dear Commissioners: 

At the request of the City, we have reviewed the proposed lot split for an existing vacant parcel located at the 
west dead end of Chestnut Ridge.  The parcel is located on the north side of W. Pontiac Trail and the western 
parcel lot line runs along the west municipal boundary between the City of Walled Lake and Commerce Township. 

PROPOSED SPLIT 
The existing parcel is 350 feet wide by 167.3 feet deep totaling approximately 1.34 acres in area and is zoned R-
1B, Single Family Residential District.  The parcel in its existing configuration is outlined with a red boundary on 
the aerial image below for context. The applicant is proposing to split the parcel into two lots with a new angled lot 
line separating the new lots.  Parcel A, located on the north side of the lot, would be 0.60 acres while Parcel B on 
the south would be 0.74 acres in area. 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 32 of 197



LOT SPLIT REVIEW COMMENTS 
We have reviewed the lot split application according to the Walled Lake Subdivisions Ordinance, the City Zoning 
Ordinance and sound planning and zoning principles to provide helpful and constructive feedback on the 
development of this site.  We offer the following comments for your consideration. 

1. Dimensional Standards.
The dimensional requirements for the R-1B district in Article 17 of the Zoning Ordinance are as follows:

Standard R-1B Requirements Parcel A Parcel B 

Lot Size Minimum Area 9,600 square feet 26,136 sq.ft. 32,234 sq.ft. 
Lot Size Minimum Width 80 feet 123.7 Feet 101 Feet 
Front Yard Setback 30 feet 30 Feet 30 Feet 
Side Yard Setback – At least One 5 feet 10 Feet 10 Feet 
Side Yard Setbacks – Total of Two 20 feet 20 feet 20 feet 
Rear Yard Setback 35 feet 35 feet 35 feet 

2. Additional Reviews.
Per Section 74-109, lot split applications shall be reviewed by the Building Official, Police and Fire Chiefs,
DPW Director, Assessor, City Manager, and City Planner.  The Planning Commission has authority to
take final action on the lot split proposal.  Additional comments from the above referenced officials should
be reviewed and considered by the Planning Commission prior to granting approval.

3. Division of Land Standards for Approval.
Section 74-110 of the City Code of Ordinances sets forth several criteria to be used when evaluating a lot
split application. We have reviewed the proposed lot split based on these criteria and offer our review
comments in the following table:

Standard Status of 
Application Comments and Recommendations 

Compliance with State 
Law 

In compliance Each resulting parcel meets the required depth-to-
width ratio as required by a local ordinance, per 
Section 109(1)(b) of the Land Division Act. 

Lot Dimensional 
Requirements 

In compliance All proposed parcels will comply with the lot 
dimensional standards of the R-1B District.  

Depth-to-Width Ratio In compliance The proposed parcels meet the 3:1 depth-to-width ratio 
requirement. 

Division of Existing 
Nonconforming Parcels 

In compliance The existing parcel meet the minimum lot size required 
by the City. The proposed parcels will also be in 
compliance with lot size standards upon division. 

Access To be 
determined 

The applicant is proposing a 50-foot radius 
ingress/egress easement and is proposing a T turn 
around within the easement.  The applicant must 
specify whether the proposed T turn around will be 
acceptable as a private improvement or is intended to 
be accepted by the City as an extension of the 
Chestnut Ridge public right-of-way. 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 33 of 197



Taxes and Assessments To be 
determined 

The applicant must provide documentation that there 
are no unpaid taxes, special assessments or financial 
obligations for the subject property. 

Buildability To be 
determined 

The site appears to be heavily wooded.  The applicant 
must provide information regarding the existing 
topography, soils, wetlands and other existing 
environmental conditions to insure adequate usable 
land area for a building envelope exists on the 
proposed parcels.     

Consent of Title Holder In compliance The applicant has indicated they are the owner of 
record for the subject property.  Submittal of adequate 
documentation should be verified by City staff. 

Deed Restrictions To be 
determined 

The applicant must note if there are any restrictions in 
the deed.  The ownership and maintenance of the 
proposed T turn around should be addressed to 
determine adequate maintenance in perpetuity.  

Easements In compliance Adequate utility easements have been proposed and 
should be appropriately recorded.   

Parking Requirements In compliance Parking for the proposed single-family homes can be 
located on the proposed parcels. 

Multiple Zoning Districts In compliance All property affected by the proposed land division is 
zoned R-1B.  

Special Assessment 
Districts 

Not applicable City staff should verify that no special assessments 
affect the parcels. 

RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed lot split meets the dimensional standards of the zoning ordinance and applicable City ordinances.  
We recommend the Planning Commission approve the proposed lot split contingent upon the applicant complying 
with the following:  

1. Clarification of the proposed ownership and maintenance of the proposed T turn around that meets with
the City review and approval;

2. Submittal of documentation that all taxes and financial obligations have been paid;
3. Submittal of documentation that adequate usable land for a building envelope exists;
4. Submittal of any deed restrictions on the proposed parcels specifically, but not limited to, the adequate

maintenance of the proposed T turn around;
5. Any additional conditions identified by City officials and staff.

We look forward to reviewing these findings with you.  Please feel free to contact us with any questions. 

Respectfully submitted, 

McKENNA 

Mario A. Ortega, AICP 
Principal Planner 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 34 of 197



Monthly Violation Summary

April 2020

Search Criteria: 

Month : April

Year : 2020

Citation Type: Both

Violation Type: No Warning(s)

Range One: 00:00 - 07:59

Range Two: 08:00 - 15:59

Range Three: 16:00 - 23:59

Include Court Approved Only? Yes

Count Secondary Officer's Violation? Yes

Report ID: 269488

Saved: No

Run By: SHAKINAS, PAUL

5/11/2020 12:55:17 PM                  Page 1 of 3

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 35 of 197



Monthly Violation Summary

April 2020

       T I M E   R A N G E

Violation Description Count Percentage Accident One Two Three YTD

**ALL OTHERS**

     ASSAULT & BATTERY - DOMESTIC  (1ST) 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     DISOBEY TRAF SIGNAL (RAN AMBER OR RED

LIGHT;RIGHT TURN THRU RED LIGHT W/O STOP)

0 0 % 0 0 0 0 6

     DISOBEYED STOP SIGN-FAILED TO STOP AT STOP

INTERSECTION

1 6.67 % 0 0 1 0 1

     DISOBEYED TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICE 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 5

     DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 4

     DROVE WHILE LICENSE NOT VALID OR IMPR LICENSE

(NO LICENSE NEVER APPLIED)

0 0 % 0 0 0 0 4

     DROVE WHILE LICENSE SUSPENDED/REVOKED/DENIED 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 3

     DROVE WHILE UNLICENSED (DROVE W/O OBTAINING

LICENSE W/IN 3 YEARS)

0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     EQUIPMENT VIOLATION: FAILED TO MAINTAIN

EQUIPMENT

0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     EQUIPMENT VIOLATION: NO LICENSE PLATE LIGHTS 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     EQUIPMENT VIOLATION: ONE HEADLIGHT 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     FAIL TO YIELD WHEN TURNING LEFT 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     FAIL TO YIELD: ONCOMING TRF; RIGHT OF WAY; R.O.W.

TO VEH ON RT; AT STOP SIGN; DID NOT OBSERVE TRAF

2 13.33 % 2 0 2 0 4

     FAILED TO REPORT ACCIDENT (PERSONAL

INJURY/PROPERTY DAMAGE)

0 0 % 0 0 0 0 3

     FAILED TO STOP WITHIN ASSURED CLEAR DISTANCE 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 4

     FAILED TO YIELD TO EMERGENCY VEHICLE 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     NO INSURANCE - CIVIL INFRACTION 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     NO PROOF OF INSURANCE           0 0 % 0 0 0 0 8

     OPERATING WHILE INTOXICATED 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     OPERATING WHILE READING, TYPING OR SENDING A

TEXT MESSAGE

0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     PARKING-FIRE LANE 1 6.67 % 0 0 0 1 1

5/11/2020 12:55:17 PM                  Page 2 of 3

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 36 of 197



Monthly Violation Summary

April 2020

     PARKING-HANDICAP 4 26.67 % 0 1 0 3 5

     REGISTRATION/PLATE VIOL: EXPIRED PLATES 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 3

     REGISTRATION/PLATE VIOL: NO REGISTRATION ON

PERSON

0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     RESIST/OBSTRUCT/HINDER/INTERFERE W/POLICE 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     SPEEDING 01-05 OVER 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 6

     SPEEDING 16-20 OVER 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 2

     SPEEDING 26-30 OVER 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     SPEEDING 31-35 OVER 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     UNDER 21 PURCHASE/CONSUME/POSSESS ALCOHOL-

1ST OFFENSE (CIVIL INFRACTION)

0 0 % 0 0 0 0 1

     VIOLATION OF GOVERNOR'S EMERGENCY ORDER 7 46.67 % 0 0 4 3 7

Total     **ALL OTHERS** 15 100 % 2 1 7 7 82

Total Violations 15 2 1 7 7 82

Total Tickets 12 1 1 4 7 70

5/11/2020 12:55:17 PM                  Page 3 of 3

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 37 of 197



CLR-065 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WL)

Search Criteria: (This report counts for offenses but excludes UCR status of 'Unfounded'.)

Month: April

Year: 2020

5/14/2020 3:56:54 PM                  Page 1 of 8

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 38 of 197



CLR-065 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WL)

------- All Offenses that were Attempted or Completed ------- ------------------------------  A R R E S T S ------------------------------

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description Apr/2020 Apr/2019 % CHG YTD 2020 YTD 2019 % CHG Apr/2020 YTD Apr/2020 YTD Apr YTD

09001 MURDER/NONNEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER

(VOLUNTARY)

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

09002 NEGLIGENT HOMICIDE/MANSLAUGHTER

(INVOLUNTARY)

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

09004 JUSTIFIABLE HOMICIDE 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

09005 DEATH INVOLVING USE OF FORCE BY LAW

ENFORCEMENT

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

09006 IN-CUSTODY DEATH 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

10001 KIDNAPPING/ABDUCTION 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

10002 PARENTAL KIDNAPPING 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11001 SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC lST

DEGREE

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11002 SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC 3RD

DEGREE

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11003 SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC lST

DEGREE

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11004 SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC 3RD

DEGREE

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11005 SEXUAL PENETRATION OBJECT -CSC IST DEGREE 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11006 SEXUAL PENETRATION OBJECT -CSC 3RD

DEGREE

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11007 SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 2ND DEGREE 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11008 SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 4TH DEGREE 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

12000 ROBBERY 0 0 0% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

12001 ROBBERY 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

13001 NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 4 3 33.33% 13 9 44.44% 0 5 0 0 0 5

13002 AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 0 3 -100% 0 4 -100% 0 1 0 0 0 1

13003 INTIMIDATION/STALKING 0 4 -100% 2 6 -66.6% 0 0 0 0 0 0

20000 ARSON 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

21000 EXTORTION 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

5/14/2020 3:56:54 PM                  Page 2 of 8

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 39 of 197



CLR-065 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WL)

------- All Offenses that were Attempted or Completed ------- ------------------------------  A R R E S T S ------------------------------

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description Apr/2020 Apr/2019 % CHG YTD 2020 YTD 2019 % CHG Apr/2020 YTD Apr/2020 YTD Apr YTD

22001 BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 0 0 0% 1 1 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

22002 BURGLARY -ENTRY WITHOUT FORCE (Intent to

Commit)

0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23001 LARCENY -POCKETPICKING 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23002 LARCENY -PURSESNATCHING 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23003 LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 2 2 0% 8 3 166.6% 0 1 0 0 0 1

23004 LARCENY -THEFT FROM COIN-OPERATED

MACHINE/DEVICE

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23005 LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 0 1 -100% 1 3 -66.6% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23006 LARCENY -THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE

PARTS/ACCESSORIES

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23007 LARCENY -OTHER 2 3 -33.3% 3 6 -50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

24001 MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 1 0 0% 1 1 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

24002 MOTOR VEHICLE, AS STOLEN PROPERTY 0 0 0% 2 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

24003 MOTOR VEHICLE FRAUD 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

25000 FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING 1 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26001 FRAUD -FALSE PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE

GAME

1 2 -50% 5 3 66.66% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26002 FRAUD -CREDIT CARD/AUTOMATIC TELLER

MACHINE

0 2 -100% 3 6 -50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26003 FRAUD -IMPERSONATION 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26004 FRAUD -WELFARE FRAUD 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26005 FRAUD -WIRE FRAUD 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26007 FRAUD - IDENTITY THEFT 0 4 -100% 1 6 -83.3% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26008 FRAUD - HACKING/COMPUTER INVASION 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

27000 EMBEZZLEMENT 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

28000 STOLEN PROPERTY 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

29000 DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 5 3 66.66% 5 5 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

30001 RETAIL FRAUD -MISREPRESENTATION 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

5/14/2020 3:56:54 PM                  Page 3 of 8

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 40 of 197



CLR-065 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WL)

------- All Offenses that were Attempted or Completed ------- ------------------------------  A R R E S T S ------------------------------

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description Apr/2020 Apr/2019 % CHG YTD 2020 YTD 2019 % CHG Apr/2020 YTD Apr/2020 YTD Apr YTD

30002 RETAIL FRAUD -THEFT 0 1 -100% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

30003 RETAIL FRAUD -REFUND/EXCHANGE 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

30004 ORGANIZED RETAIL FRAUD 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

35001 VIOLATION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ACT 0 0 0% 3 1 200% 0 1 0 0 0 1

35002 NARCOTIC EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

36001 SEXUAL PENETRATION NONFORCIBLE -

BLOOD/AFFINITY

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

36002 SEXUAL PENETRATION NONFORCIBLE -OTHER 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

37000 OBSCENITY 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

39001 GAMBLING- BETTING/WAGERING 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

39002 GAMBLING- OPERATING/PROMOTING/ASSISTING 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

39003 GAMBLING -EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

39004 GAMBLING -SPORTS TAMPERING 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

40001 COMMERCIALIZED SEX -PROSTITUTION 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

40002 COMMERCIALIZED SEX -ASSISTING/PROMOTING

PROSTITUTION

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

40003 HUMAN TRAFFICKING - PURCHASING

PROSTITUTION

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

51000 BRIBERY 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

52001 WEAPONS OFFENSE- CONCEALED 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

52002 WEAPONS OFFENSE -EXPLOSIVES 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

52003 WEAPONS OFFENSE -OTHER 1 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

64001 HUMAN TRAFFICKING - COMMERCIAL SEX ACTS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

64002 HUMAN TRAFFICKING - INVOLUNTARY SERVITUDE 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

72000 ANIMAL CRUELTY 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group A Totals 17 28 -39.2% 54 56 -3.57% 0 8 0 0 0 8

01000 SOVEREIGNTY 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

02000 MILITARY 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

03000 IMMIGRATION 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

5/14/2020 3:56:54 PM                  Page 4 of 8

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 41 of 197



CLR-065 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WL)

------- All Offenses that were Attempted or Completed ------- ------------------------------  A R R E S T S ------------------------------

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description Apr/2020 Apr/2019 % CHG YTD 2020 YTD 2019 % CHG Apr/2020 YTD Apr/2020 YTD Apr YTD

09003 NEGLIGENT HOMICIDE -VEHICLE/BOAT 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

14000 ABORTION 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

22003 BURGLARY - UNLAWFUL ENTRY (NO INTENT) 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

22004 POSSESSION OF BURGLARY TOOLS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26006 FRAUD -BAD CHECKS 0 0 0% 2 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

36003 PEEPING TOM 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

36004 SEX OFFENSE -OTHER 1 0 0% 2 1 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

38001 FAMILY -ABUSE/NEGLECT NONVIOLENT 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

38002 FAMILY -NONSUPPORT 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

38003 FAMILY -OTHER 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

41001 LIQUOR LICENSE -ESTABLISHMENT 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

41002 LIQUOR VIOLATIONS -OTHER 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

42000 DRUNKENNESS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

48000 OBSTRUCTING POLICE 0 0 0% 1 2 -50% 0 1 0 0 0 1

49000 ESCAPE/FLIGHT 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

50000 OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 0 0 0% 0 3 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

53001 DISORDERLY CONDUCT 0 0 0% 3 1 200% 0 0 0 0 0 0

53002 PUBLIC PEACE -OTHER 0 1 -100% 4 5 -20% 0 1 0 0 0 1

54001 HIT and RUN MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 0 0 0% 0 2 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

54002 OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF LIQUOR

OR DRUGS

0 0 0% 11 4 175% 0 9 0 0 0 9

55000 HEALTH AND SAFETY 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

56000 CIVIL RIGHTS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

57001 TRESPASS 1 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

57002 INVASION OF PRIVACY -OTHER 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

58000 SMUGGLING 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

59000 ELECTION LAWS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

60000 ANTITRUST 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

5/14/2020 3:56:54 PM                  Page 5 of 8

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 42 of 197



CLR-065 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WL)

------- All Offenses that were Attempted or Completed ------- ------------------------------  A R R E S T S ------------------------------

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description Apr/2020 Apr/2019 % CHG YTD 2020 YTD 2019 % CHG Apr/2020 YTD Apr/2020 YTD Apr YTD

61000 TAX/REVENUE 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

62000 CONSERVATION 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

63000 VAGRANCY 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

70000 JUVENILE RUNAWAY 0 0 0% 2 1 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

73000 MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL OFFENSE 10 0 0% 14 0 0% 1 1 0 0 1 1

75000 SOLICITATION 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

77000 CONSPIRACY (ALL CRIMES) 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group B Totals 12 1 1100% 42 19 121.0% 1 12 0 0 1 12

2800 JUVENILE OFFENSES AND COMPLAINTS 0 1 -100% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

2900 TRAFFIC OFFENSES 0 6 -100% 26 30 -13.3% 0 6 0 0 0 6

3000 WARRANTS 0 8 -100% 5 21 -76.1% 0 4 0 0 0 4

3100 TRAFFIC CRASHES 7 15 -53.3% 68 81 -16.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3200 SICK / INJURY COMPLAINT 18 17 5.882% 77 70 10% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3300 MISCELLANEOUS COMPLAINTS 179 262 -31.6% 743 976 -23.8% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3400 WATERCRAFT COMPLAINTS / ACCIDENTS 0 1 -100% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3500 NON - CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS 91 138 -34.0% 294 546 -46.1% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3600 SNOWMOBILE COMPLAINTS / ACCIDENTS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3700 MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC COMPLAINTS 12 147 -91.8% 268 589 -54.4% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3800 ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 7 4 75% 18 17 5.882% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3900 ALARMS 22 14 57.14% 70 75 -6.66% 0 0 0 0 0 0

MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC COMPLAINTS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

MISCELLANEOUS COMPLAINTS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

ALARMS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

NON - CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

TRAFFIC CRASHES 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

TRAFFIC OFFENSES 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

SICK / INJURY COMPLAINT 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

5/14/2020 3:56:54 PM                  Page 6 of 8

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 43 of 197



CLR-065 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WL)

Group C Totals 336 613 -45.1% 1569 2407 -34.8% 0 10 0 0 0 10

2700 LOCAL ORDINANCES - GENERIC 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4000 HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 0 0 0% 2 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4100 NON-HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS /

WARNINGS

0 0 0% 2 1 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4200 PARKING CITATIONS 0 0 0% 1 1 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4300 LICENSE / TITLE / REGISTRATION CITATIONS 0 1 -100% 4 1 300% 0 1 0 0 0 1

4400 WATERCRAFT CITATIONS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4500 MISCELLANEOUS A THROUGH UUUU 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4600 LIQUOR CITATIONS / SUMMONS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4700 COMMERCIAL VEHICLE CITATIONS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4800 LOCAL ORDINANCE WARNINGS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4900 TRAFFIC WARNINGS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

MISCELLANEOUS A THROUGH UUUU 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

LOCAL ORDINANCES - GENERIC 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

WATERCRAFT CITATIONS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

TRAFFIC WARNINGS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group D Totals 0 1 -100% 9 3 200% 0 1 0 0 0 1

5000 FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

5100 18A STATE CODE FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

18A STATE CODE FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group E Totals 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6000 MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6000) 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6100 MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6100) 0 3 -100% 1 6 -83.3% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6200 ARREST ASSIST 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6300 CANINE ACTIVITIES 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6500 CRIME PREVENTION ACTIVITIES 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6600 COURT / WARRANT ACTIVITIES 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6700 INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITIES 2 5 -60% 14 13 7.692% 0 0 0 0 0 0

5/14/2020 3:56:54 PM                  Page 7 of 8

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 44 of 197



CLR-065 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WL)

------- All Offenses that were Attempted or Completed ------- ------------------------------  A R R E S T S ------------------------------

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description Apr/2020 Apr/2019 % CHG YTD 2020 YTD 2019 % CHG Apr/2020 YTD Apr/2020 YTD Apr YTD

MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6000) 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

CANINE ACTIVITIES 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITIES 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

COURT / WARRANT ACTIVITIES 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6100) 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group F Totals 2 8 -75% 15 19 -21.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

8000 MISCELLANEOUS DEALER ACTIVITIES 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group I Totals 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Totals for all Groups 367 651 -43.6% 1690 2504 -32.5% 1 31 0 0 1 31

5/14/2020 3:56:54 PM                  Page 8 of 8

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 45 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 46 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 47 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 48 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 49 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 50 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 51 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 52 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 53 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 54 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 55 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 56 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 57 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 58 of 197



WARRANT REPORT 3-2020
PAGE 1 OF 2

GOVERNMENT WIDE EXPENDITURES 

CHECK NUMBERS:  116605 - 116734
ACH PAYMENTS: February 2020

Checks ACH Total
GENERAL FUND 97,174.70          4,020.47       101,195.17        
MAJOR ROADS FUND 7,437.82            7,437.82            
LOCAL ROADS FUND 8,021.57            8,021.57            
DRUG FORFEITURE 3,645.50            3,645.50            
LIBRARY FUND 10,074.18          10,074.18          
DEBT SERVICE FUND 125.00               125.00               
DDA FUND 59,061.36          59,061.36          
TRANSPORTATION FUND -                     -                     
REFUSE FUND 26,472.48          26,472.48          
WATER & SEWER FUND 76.63                 76.63                 
WATER CAPITAL FUND 1,204.00            1,204.00            
TRUST AND AGENCY 15,008.00          15,008.00          
MISC. PAYROLL -                     -                     
ACCRUED INSURANCE LIABILITIES 21,168.74          21,168.74          

VENDOR EXPENDITURES 249,469.98        4,020.47       253,490.45        

City of Walled Lake
March 17, 2020

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 59 of 197



DEPARTMENT OVERTIME PAY IN LIEU
City Manager (#172) -$                     -$                    
City Attorney (#210) -$                     60.00$                 
Finance/ Treasurer (#212 & 253) -$                     -$                    
General (#218) -$                     -$                    
Clerk (#219) -$                     -$                    
Transportation (#588) -$                     -$                    
Police (#300) 3,551.56$            1,150.00$            
Fire (#335) 4,060.27$            -$                    
Public Works (#441) 4,036.14$            -$                    
Library (#738) -$                     545.00$               

11,647.97$          -$                    

EXPENSE ALLOWANCE/REIMBURSEMENTS 7,397.52$            
SALARY & WAGES 208,617.39$        
PAY IN LIEU 1,755.00$            
OVERTIME 11,647.97$          

GROSS PAYMENTS 229,417.88$        
EMPLOYER FICA 16,706.23$          
EMPLOYER PENSION 126,947.09$        
EMPLOYER OPEB 3,217.00$            

PAYROLL EXPENSES 146,870.32$        
PERSONNEL EXPENDITURES 376,288.20$        
VENDOR EXPENDITURES 253,490.45$        

March 17, 2020 REPORTED EXPENDITURES 629,778.65$        

WARRANT REPORT 3-2020
PAGE 2 OF 2

TOTAL

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 60 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 1/1Page
:

03/12/2020 09:09 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK DATE FROM 02/01/2020 - 02/29/2020
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

63.93 172732-000CITY MANAGERSUPERFLEET MASTERCARD PROGRAM195(E)#PAYAB02/28/2020

3,010.64 300732-000POLICE

11.50 371732-000CODE ENFORCEMENT

424.99 441732-000DPW

3,511.06 CHECK PAYAB 195(E) TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

509.41 335732-000GAS AND OILWEX BANK196(E)PAYAB02/28/2020

4,020.47 Total for fund 101 GENERAL FUND

  '#'-INDICATES CHECK DISTRIBUTED TO MORE THAN ONE DEPARTMENT

4,020.47 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 61 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 1/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

5,548.50 690937-001MICHIGAN AIRLINE TRAIL PATHWAY
PROJECT

CITY OF WIXOM116605PAYAB02/12/2020

566.50 747975-007PUBLICE NOTICE FOR: CDBG21ST CENTURY MEDIA116606#PAYAB02/13/2020

714.25 809900-000PUBLICE NOTICE FOR: ZBA

1,280.75 CHECK PAYAB 116606 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

108.35 335920-000SERVICE 02/16/20 - 03/15/20COMCAST116611PAYAB02/13/2020

701.91 335922-000SERVICE 01/07/20 - 02/03/20CONSUMERS ENERGY116612PAYAB02/13/2020

1,441.80 441922-000SERVICE 01/07/20 - 02/03/20CONSUMERS ENERGY116613PAYAB02/13/2020

889.27 218922-000SERVICE 01/07/20 - 02/03/20CONSUMERS ENERGY116614PAYAB02/13/2020

4,677.84 218934-001CONTRACT SERVICEGOYETTE MECHANICAL CO.116615*#PAYAB02/13/2020

20.00 218829-000MANUAL PROCESSING FEEHEALTH EQUITY116616PAYAB02/13/2020

180.00 218936-000COMPUTER MAINTENANCEJEM IT SERVICES, LLC116618PAYAB02/13/2020

231.00 262900-000NOTICE OF REGISTRATIONKINGSETT LLC D/B/A SPINAL COLUMN116619PAYAB02/13/2020

26.90 253829-000TREASURER BONDS - MCL 211.43OAKLAND COUNTY116621PAYAB02/13/2020

68.32 218727-000CITY HALL SUPPLIESOFFICE CONNECTION116622#PAYAB02/13/2020

21.50 809901-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

89.82 CHECK PAYAB 116622 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

15.26 218727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESTRI COUNTY CLEANING SUPPLY, INC116623*#PAYAB02/13/2020

25.43 300727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

25.43 335727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

15.26 441727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

81.38 CHECK PAYAB 116623 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

25.19 441933-000R & M FOR DPW SNOW PLOWSANGELO'S SUPPLIES116625PAYAB02/21/2020

79.63 441933-000R & M DPW SNOW PLOW

104.82 CHECK PAYAB 116625 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 62 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 2/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

26.00 335733-000AMBULANCE COLLECTION FEEARBOR PROFESSIONAL SOLUTIONS116626PAYAB02/21/2020

608.00 335829-000EMPLOYEE MEDICAL EXAMASCENSION MICHIGAN AT WORK116627PAYAB02/21/2020

504.00 335829-000EMPLOYEE MEDICAL EXAM

1,112.00 CHECK PAYAB 116627 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

512.00 736717-000HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCEBENISTAR/UA - 6803116628PAYAB02/21/2020

1,350.00 445820-000STORM SEWER EVALUATIONBOSS ENGINEERING116630*#PAYAB02/21/2020

1,275.00 801820-000GENERAL CONSULTING SERVICES

3,225.00 900990-0011275 E. WEST MAPLE ROAD

5,850.00 CHECK PAYAB 116630 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

** VOIDED **GENERAL CONFERENCECITY OF FARMINGTON116631PAYAB02/21/2020

29.81 335920-000SERVICE 02/16/20 - 03/15/20COMCAST116632PAYAB02/21/2020

6.00 211814-001WITNESS FEEDEEPAK PARAFUH116633PAYAB02/21/2020

4,287.96 448921-000UTILITY 01/01/2020 - 01/31/2020DTE ENERGY116635PAYAB02/21/2020

168.97 441939-000DPW SUPPLIESGLENDALE AUTO SUPPLY116637PAYAB02/21/2020

467.85 218920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICEGRID4 COMMUNICATIONS INC116638*#PAYAB02/21/2020

187.14 253920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE

280.71 300920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE

93.57 335920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE

467.85 371920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE

280.71 441920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE

1,777.83 CHECK PAYAB 116638 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

5,302.32 335939-000FIRE TRUCK REPAIR TO BLOWN AIR TANKHALT FIRE116639PAYAB02/21/2020

222.00 335939-000VEHICLE R & M

5,524.32 CHECK PAYAB 116639 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

88.61 335939-000VEHICLE R & MHINES PARK FORD INC116640PAYAB02/21/2020

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 63 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 3/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

214.50 809900-000PRINTING/PUBLISHING/PUBLICITYKINGSETT LLC D/B/A SPINAL COLUMN116641PAYAB02/21/2020

266.50 300718-000LIFE INSURANCEMADISON NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE116642*#PAYAB02/21/2020

1,200.00 371708-002JAN. OFFICE HOURSMCKENNA ASSOCIATES INC116643PAYAB02/21/2020

2,595.75 371828-000INSPECTION SERVICES

3,795.75 CHECK PAYAB 116643 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

20.00 335958-000SMAFC MEMBERSHIP MEETINGMICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF FIRE
CHIEFS

116644PAYAB02/21/2020

140.00 441939-000VEHICLE R & M (TRUCK #4)MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC.116645PAYAB02/21/2020

6,415.00 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCEMUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION116646PAYAB02/21/2020

56.97 441728-000DPW SUPPLIESMURRAYS DISCOUNT AUTO STORES116647PAYAB02/21/2020

84.93 218727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESOFFICE CONNECTION116648#PAYAB02/21/2020

402.65 300727-000POLICE OFFICE SUPPLIES

487.58 CHECK PAYAB 116648 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

136.70 300920-000SERVICE 01/07/2020 - 02/06/2020SPRINT116649PAYAB02/21/2020

2,000.00 445806-000STORM WATER ANNUAL PERMIT FEE, 2020STATE OF MICHIGAN116650PAYAB02/21/2020

250.97 218932-000PUBLIC SAFETY MATSUNIFIRST CORPORATION116652PAYAB02/21/2020

** VOIDED **SOFTWARE MAINTENANCEVISA WALLED LAKE SCHOOL EMP FCU116653#PAYAB02/25/2020

** VOIDED **SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

** VOIDED **SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

** VOIDED **SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

** VOIDED **SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

** VOIDED **MAMC SUMMER CONFERENCE

** VOIDED **EDUCATION & TRAINING

** VOIDED **ELECTION MATERIALS

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 64 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 4/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

** VOIDED **CRIMINAL HISTORY SEARCH

** VOIDED **TURN OUT DRYER PART FOR FIRE DEPT.

** VOIDED **PLASTIC EASTER EGGS

** VOIDED **CANDY FOR SPRING EGG HUNT

** VOIDED **CANDY FOR THE EGG HUNT

165.00 218932-000CITY HALL - INSIDE & OUTALLIANCE WINDOW CLEANING116656*#PAYAB02/28/2020

187.92 300731-000UNIFORMSALLIE BROTHERS INC116657PAYAB02/28/2020

330.00 441934-000DOOR CLOSURE REPAIRALLSERV116658PAYAB02/28/2020

86.00 300829-000POLICE OFFICER PHYSICAL EXAMASCENSION MICHIGAN AT WORK116660PAYAB02/28/2020

26.90 300728-000OPERATING SUPPLIESBRANDON JOUSMA116661PAYAB02/28/2020

350.00 300958-001ACTIVE ASSISTANT CONFERENCECITY OF FARMINGTON116662PAYAB02/28/2020

580.06 335934-000FD BUILDING R & MCRG ELECTRIC LLC116663PAYAB02/28/2020

136.49 300933-000GENERATOR R & MCUMMINS SALES AND SERVICE116664PAYAB02/28/2020

41.99 300939-000VEHICLE R & M 2017 CHARGERDANS AUTO CLINIC116665PAYAB02/28/2020

1,421.14 300980-001COMPUTERSDELL MARKETING LP116666*#PAYAB02/28/2020

1,902.96 900980-001CITY HALL COMPUTERS

3,324.10 CHECK PAYAB 116666 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

63.57 690921-000UTILITY 01/15/20 - 02/12/20DTE ENERGY116668PAYAB02/28/2020

51.99 441921-000UTILITY 01/15/20 - 02/12/20DTE ENERGY116669PAYAB02/28/2020

286.03 218921-000UTILITY 01/15/20 - 02/12/20DTE ENERGY116670PAYAB02/28/2020

753.25 335921-000UTILITY 01/15/20 - 02/12/20DTE ENERGY116671PAYAB02/28/2020

40.94 732921-000UTILITY 11/13/19 - 02/12/20DTE ENERGY116672PAYAB02/28/2020

883.31 300921-000UTILITY 01/15/20 - 02/12/20DTE ENERGY116673PAYAB02/28/2020

84.38 448924-000UTILITY 01/15/20 - 02/12/20DTE ENERGY116676PAYAB02/28/2020 May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 65 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 5/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

42.39 732921-000UTILITY 01/15/20 - 02/12/20DTE ENERGY116678PAYAB02/28/2020

54.99 335731-000UNIFORMSHURON VALLEY GUNS116681PAYAB02/28/2020

224.97 335731-000FIRE UNIFROMS

279.96 CHECK PAYAB 116681 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

294.92 335727-000PHOTO COPIESIMAGE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS-WIXOM116682PAYAB02/28/2020

900.00 335829-000PRE- EMPLOYMENT PSYCHOLOGICAL
EVALUATION

JAY S WITHERELL116683PAYAB02/28/2020

115.00 262900-000WALLED LAKE PUBLIC ACCURACY TEST NOTICEKINGSETT LLC D/B/A SPINAL COLUMN116684#PAYAB02/28/2020

115.00 801900-000PUBLIC NOTICE & PLANNING COMMISION
MARCH 107.25 801900-000PUBLIC NOTICE & PLANNING COMMISION
MARCH

337.25 CHECK PAYAB 116684 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

123.46 335933-000R & M EQUIPMENTLOWES BUSINESS ACCOUNT116685#PAYAB02/28/2020

12.12 441728-000R & M EQUIPMENT

58.79 690937-000R & M EQUIPMENT

194.37 CHECK PAYAB 116685 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

1,250.00 801817-000JAN. MONTHLY RETAINIERMCKENNA ASSOCIATES INC116686PAYAB02/28/2020

552.50 801817-000DESIGN STANDARDS ORDINANCE DRAFT

1,802.50 CHECK PAYAB 116686 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

876.45 690892-000EGG HUNT FLYERS AND SIGNSMEGA PRINTING116687PAYAB02/28/2020

90.00 300829-000SEX OFFENDER REGISTRYMICHIGAN STATE POLICE116689PAYAB02/28/2020

6.64 300939-000VEHICLE R & MMURRAYS DISCOUNT AUTO STORES116690PAYAB02/28/2020

311.12 262850-000ELECTION CODINGOAKLAND COUNTY116691#PAYAB02/28/2020

7,210.45 300724-001JAN. SHERIFF DISPATCH SERVICES

2,403.48 335724-001JAN. SHERIFF DISPATCH SERVICES

9,925.05 CHECK PAYAB 116691 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 66 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 6/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

239.03 736717-000HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCEPRINCIPAL FINANCIAL GROUP116692*#PAYAB02/28/2020

500.00 300958-000EDUCATIONSCHOOLCRAFT COLLEGE116693PAYAB02/28/2020

707.00 441939-000R & M TRUCK #2SENG TIRE COMPANY116694PAYAB02/28/2020

356.00 441939-000R & M TRUCK #4

1,063.00 CHECK PAYAB 116694 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

145.45 335939-000R & M 15 DODGE CHARGERSHUMAN MOTOR SALES116695PAYAB02/28/2020

79.63 441933-000PLOW EQUI, R & MSITE ONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, LLC116696PAYAB02/28/2020

25.19 441933-000PLOW EQUIP MNT.

104.82 CHECK PAYAB 116696 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

648.64 441933-000BATTERYSOUTHEASTERN EQUIPMENT CO., INC.116697PAYAB02/28/2020

90.00 300939-000R&M VEHICLESUPER CAR WASH SYSTEMS116698PAYAB02/28/2020

117.99 300939-000R&M VEHICLE

4.50 300939-000R&M VEHICLE

212.49 CHECK PAYAB 116698 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

1,439.67 218936-000MARCH IT SERVICETAZ NETWORKS116699PAYAB02/28/2020

315.27 218941-000COPIER LEASE  02/13/2020 - 03/13/2020TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES116700*#PAYAB02/28/2020

271.18 211869-000CERTIFIED COPY OF TRANSCRIPT IN BDS
LAWS

U.S. LEGAL SUPPORT116701PAYAB02/28/2020

300.00 300933-000R & M TO LED SIGNUNIVERSAL LED116702PAYAB02/28/2020

3,000.00 900990-0011275 E. WEST MAPLE ROAD ENGINEERING
SURV

BOSS ENGINEERING116705*#PAYAB03/06/2020

59.77 218727-000COFFEE AND WATER FOR CITY HALLCITI CARDS116707PAYAB03/06/2020

175.00 335958-000GENERAL CONFERENCECITY OF FARMINGTON HILLS116708PAYAB03/06/2020

77.02 300732-000POLICEEXXON MOBIL116711#PAYAB03/06/2020

273.25 441732-000DPW

350.27 CHECK PAYAB 116711 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 67 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 7/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND
350.27 CHECK PAYAB 116711 TOTAL FOR FUND

101:

67.74 736717-000HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCEFIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INS/EYEMED116712*#PAYAB03/06/2020

69.42 218728-000CLEANING SUPPLIESHOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES116713#PAYAB03/06/2020

8.68 276931-000R&M - GROUNDS

(79.00)335728-000MATERIALS RETURNED

26.37 335934-000BUILDING R&M

(8.51)335934-000BUILDING R&M

(20.44)335980-000MATERIALS RETURNED

467.29 335980-000MATERIALS FOR TURNOUT GEAR DRYER

69.42 441728-000CLEANING SUPPLIES

533.23 CHECK PAYAB 116713 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

704.41 218936-000CITY COMPUTER MAINTENANCEJEM IT SERVICES, LLC116716#PAYAB03/06/2020

1,473.23 300936-000POLICE COMPUTER MAINTENANCE

491.84 335936-000FIRE COMPUTER MAINTENANCE

2,669.48 CHECK PAYAB 116716 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

82.50 218900-000WALLED LAKE ORD 349-20KINGSETT LLC D/B/A SPINAL COLUMN116717#PAYAB03/06/2020

82.50 218900-000WALLED LAKE ORD 348-20

123.75 247900-000WALLED LAKE BOARD OF REVIEW

206.25 262900-000NOTICE OF ELECTION

495.00 CHECK PAYAB 116717 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

475.00 100957-000ANNUAL "STATE OF THE LAKES" LUNCHEONLAKES AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE116718PAYAB03/06/2020

87.32 441728-000DPW SHOP SUPPLIESMURRAYS DISCOUNT AUTO STORES116720PAYAB03/06/2020

4.97 441933-000KUBOTA REPAIR

92.29 CHECK PAYAB 116720 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

6.00 211814-001WITNESS FEENORMA R. HILL116722PAYAB03/06/2020

21.50 690727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESOFFICE CONNECTION116723PAYAB03/06/2020

300.00 000643-000REFUND ON CEMETERY LOT. GRAVE 1, LOT
59

SHERRI WALLER116726PAYAB03/06/2020 May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 68 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 8/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

26.99 172727-000OPERATING SUPPLIESSTAPLES116728#PAYAB03/06/2020

12.79 218727-000PRINTER PAPER

51.96 218728-000OPERATING SUPPLIES

24.25 262728-000ELECTION SUPPLIES

55.11 335727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

11.00 335727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

799.99 335980-000PRINTER

982.09 CHECK PAYAB 116728 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

558.66 335733-000AMBULANCE COLLECTIONS EXPTHE ACCUMED GROUP116729PAYAB03/06/2020

25.76 218727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESTRI COUNTY CLEANING SUPPLY, INC116730*#PAYAB03/06/2020

25.76 300727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

25.76 335727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

77.28 CHECK PAYAB 116730 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

6,486.00 335718-000FIRE FIGHTER LIFE INSURANCEVFIS116731PAYAB03/06/2020

32.99 441933-000KUBOTA REPAIRWEINGARTZ116732PAYAB03/06/2020

19.96 441933-000KUBOTA TRACTOR

92.66 441933-000KUBOTA TRACTOR

161.64 441933-000KUBOTA TRACTOR

307.25 CHECK PAYAB 116732 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

232.76 335939-000VEHICLE R & MWEST SHORE FIRE INC116733PAYAB03/06/2020

15.89 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCEVISA WALLED LAKE SCHOOL EMP FCU116734#PAYAB03/11/2020

15.89 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

15.89 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

165.00 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

262.50 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

1,575.00 219958-000MAMC SUMMER CONFERENCE

1,620.00 219958-000EDUCATION & TRAINING

42.36 262728-000ELECTION MATERIALS

70.00 300829-003CRIMINAL HISTORY SEARCH May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 69 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 9/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

28.78 335933-000TURN OUT DRYER PART FOR FIRE DEPT.

109.90 690892-000PLASTIC EASTER EGGS

194.55 690892-000CANDY FOR SPRING EGG HUNT

238.80 690892-000CANDY FOR THE EGG HUNT

4,354.56 CHECK PAYAB 116734 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

97,174.70 Total for fund 101 GENERAL FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 70 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 10/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 202 MAJOR ROAD FUND

68.31 462734-000INFRASTRUCTURE R&M - MINORAJAX MATERIALS CORPORATION116624*PAYAB02/21/2020

1,620.55 478735-000SNOW AND ICE MATERIALDETROIT SALT COMPANY LLC116634*PAYAB02/21/2020

132.99 462734-000COLD PATCHAJAX MATERIALS CORPORATION116654*PAYAB02/28/2020

824.81 478735-000SNOW AND ICE MATERIALDETROIT SALT COMPANY LLC116667*PAYAB02/28/2020

4,000.00 451820-000ENGINEERING AND SURVEYING DECKER ROADBOSS ENGINEERING116705*#PAYAB03/06/2020

791.16 478735-000SNOW AND ICE MATERIALDETROIT SALT COMPANY LLC116710*PAYAB03/06/2020

7,437.82 Total for fund 202 MAJOR ROAD FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 71 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 11/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 203 LOCAL ROAD FUND

159.39 462734-000INFRASTRUCTURE R&M - MINORAJAX MATERIALS CORPORATION116624*PAYAB02/21/2020

3,781.28 478735-000SNOW AND ICE MATERIALDETROIT SALT COMPANY LLC116634*PAYAB02/21/2020

310.31 462734-000INFRASTRUCTURE R&M - MINORAJAX MATERIALS CORPORATION116654*PAYAB02/28/2020

1,924.56 478735-000SNOW AND ICE MATERIALDETROIT SALT COMPANY LLC116667*PAYAB02/28/2020

1,846.03 478735-000SNOW AND ICE MATERIALDETROIT SALT COMPANY LLC116710*PAYAB03/06/2020

8,021.57 Total for fund 203 LOCAL ROAD FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 72 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 12/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 265 DRUG FORFEITURE FUND

695.00 399958-000ALICE INSTRUCTOR CERTIFICATIONALICE TRAINING INSTITUTE116655PAYAB02/28/2020

2,872.00 399980-001POLICE COMPUTERSDELL MARKETING LP116666*#PAYAB02/28/2020

78.50 400920-000SERVICE 02/18/2020 - 03/17/2020AT&T MOBILITY116703PAYAB03/06/2020

3,645.50 Total for fund 265 DRUG FORFEITURE FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 73 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 13/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 271 LIBRARY FUND

11.37 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALSBAKER & TAYLOR116607PAYAB02/13/2020

17.95 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

37.46 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

66.78 CHECK PAYAB 116607 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

1,696.38 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALSBRODART CO116609PAYAB02/13/2020

1,017.00 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

(21.98)738982-000RETURN OF PRINT MATERIALS

2,691.40 CHECK PAYAB 116609 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

60.78 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALSCENGAGE LEARNING INC/GALE116610PAYAB02/13/2020

578.16 738934-001CONTRACT SERVICEGOYETTE MECHANICAL CO.116615*#PAYAB02/13/2020

57.90 738737-000PROGRAMMINGINGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES116617PAYAB02/13/2020

(57.90)738737-000PROGRAMMING

14.30 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

48.84 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

24.69 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

45.08 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

20.42 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

37.80 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

60.45 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

8.65 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

7.43 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

110.97 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

10.53 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

65.33 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

(7.43)738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

30.94 738982-002AV MATERIALS

17.99 738982-002AV MATERIALS

72.69 738982-002AV MATERIALS

10.79 738982-002AV MATERIALS

57.58 738982-002AV MATERIALS

19.18 738982-002AV MATERIALS May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 74 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 14/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 271 LIBRARY FUND

25.18 738982-002AV MATERIALS

32.39 738982-002AV MATERIALS

(57.58)738982-002AV MATERIALS

656.22 CHECK PAYAB 116617 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

39.19 738982-002AV MATERIALSMIDWEST TAPE116620PAYAB02/13/2020

71.54 738982-002AV MATERIALS

44.19 738982-002AV MATERIALS

41.86 738982-002AV MATERIALS

111.22 738982-002AV MATERIALS

21.74 738982-002AV MATERIALS

26.24 738982-002AV MATERIALS

153.69 738982-002AV MATERIALS

11.24 738982-002AV MATERIALS

34.99 738982-002AV MATERIALS

29.99 738982-002AV MATERIALS

23.99 738982-002AV MATERIALS

39.99 738982-002AV MATERIALS

649.87 CHECK PAYAB 116620 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

20.34 738727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESTRI COUNTY CLEANING SUPPLY, INC116623*#PAYAB02/13/2020

278.00 738933-000R&M - EQUIPMENTGALLAGHER FIRE EQUIPMENT CO116636PAYAB02/21/2020

93.57 738920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICEGRID4 COMMUNICATIONS INC116638*#PAYAB02/21/2020

702.12 738980-000MACH & EQUIP MINOR PURCH $500 - $4999
EA

THE LIBRARY NETWORK116651PAYAB02/21/2020

25.00 738932-000LIBRARY -  OUTSIDEALLIANCE WINDOW CLEANING116656*#PAYAB02/28/2020

80.67 738728-000OPERATING SUPPLIESALYSON LOBERT116659PAYAB02/28/2020

474.37 738737-000PROGRAMMING

130.85 738869-000EXPENSE/MILEAGE

16.00 738900-000PRINTING/PUBLISHING/PUBLICITY

161.46 738960-000U OF M LITTLE LIBRARIES PROGRAM EXP May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 75 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 15/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 271 LIBRARY FUND
863.35 CHECK PAYAB 116659 TOTAL FOR FUND

271:

192.11 738921-000UTILITY 01/15/20 - 02/12/20DTE ENERGY116677PAYAB02/28/2020

315.28 738941-000COPIER LEASE  02/13/2020 - 03/13/2020TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES116700*#PAYAB02/28/2020

45.80 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALSBAKER & TAYLOR116704PAYAB03/06/2020

17.32 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

63.12 CHECK PAYAB 116704 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

69.96 738728-000BUSINESS CARDSCARRIE RALSTON116706PAYAB03/06/2020

104.94 738980-000IPAD REPLACEMENT

174.90 CHECK PAYAB 116706 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

71.16 738922-000SERVICE 01/07/20 - 02/03/20CONSUMERS ENERGY116709PAYAB03/06/2020

116.70 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALSINGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES116715PAYAB03/06/2020

15.39 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

17.36 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

45.63 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

36.58 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

75.89 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

14.30 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

12.39 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

109.52 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

25.19 738982-002AV MATERIALS

24.99 738982-002AV MATERIALS

28.79 738982-002AV MATERIALS

53.98 738982-002AV MATERIALS

30.23 738982-002AV MATERIALS

46.78 738982-002AV MATERIALS

653.72 CHECK PAYAB 116715 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

157.20 738982-002AV MATERIALSMIDWEST TAPE116719PAYAB03/06/2020

80.89 738982-002AV MATERIALS May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 76 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 16/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 271 LIBRARY FUND

39.99 738982-002AV MATERIALS

37.47 738982-002AV MATERIALS

82.47 738982-002AV MATERIALS

34.99 738982-002AV MATERIALS

39.99 738982-002AV MATERIALS

74.98 738982-002AV MATERIALS

547.98 CHECK PAYAB 116719 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

272.74 738934-000R&M BUILDING/FACILITYNEUTRON116721PAYAB03/06/2020

6.08 738727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESOFFICE EXPRESS  METRO OFFICE116724PAYAB03/06/2020

303.68 738727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

309.76 CHECK PAYAB 116724 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

362.05 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALSROURKE EDUCATIONAL MEDIA116725PAYAB03/06/2020

400.00 738932-000CLEANING SERVICES FEBRUARY 2020SIPES, TIM116727PAYAB03/06/2020

25.77 738727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESTRI COUNTY CLEANING SUPPLY, INC116730*#PAYAB03/06/2020

10,074.18 Total for fund 271 LIBRARY FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 77 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 17/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 401 DEBT SERVICE FUND

125.00 218738-000SEMI- ANNUAL FEE ACCOUNT #3584041207HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK   DEBT116714PAYAB03/06/2020

125.00 Total for fund 401 DEBT SERVICE FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 78 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 18/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 494 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT FUND

3,500.00 900988-000CIVIL ENGINEERING. AND SURVEYING
SIDEWAL

BOSS ENGINEERING116630*#PAYAB02/21/2020

351.21 895921-000UTILITY 01/14/20 - 02/11/20DTE ENERGY116679PAYAB02/28/2020

5,200.00 895820-000SIDEWALK RIGHT OF WAY SURVEYBOSS ENGINEERING116705*#PAYAB03/06/2020

50,010.15 900984-000ENGINEERING SURVEYING DOWNTOWN STORM
S

55,210.15 CHECK PAYAB 116705 TOTAL FOR FUND
494:

59,061.36 Total for fund 494 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 79 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 19/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 590 REFUSE FUND

26,472.48 538827-000RUBBISH PICK UP FOR MONTH OF MARCHGFL ENVIRONMENTAL USA116680PAYAB02/28/2020

26,472.48 Total for fund 590 REFUSE FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 80 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 20/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 591 WATER AND SEWER FUND

39.82 533921-000UTILITY 01/15/20 - 02/12/20DTE ENERGY116674PAYAB02/28/2020

36.81 533921-000UTILITY 01/15/20 - 02/12/20DTE ENERGY116675PAYAB02/28/2020

76.63 Total for fund 591 WATER AND SEWER FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 81 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 21/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 597 WATER CAPITAL FUND

149.00 536988-000TRI-A WATERMAIN PROJECTBOSS ENGINEERING116630*#PAYAB02/21/2020

1,055.00 536988-000TRI-A WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECTBOSS ENGINEERING116705*#PAYAB03/06/2020

1,204.00 Total for fund 597 WATER CAPITAL FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 82 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 22/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 701 TRUST AND AGENCY FUND

975.00 000264-118BEACHWOOD PUD CONSTRUCTIONBOSS ENGINEERING116630*#PAYAB02/21/2020

12,508.00 000283-000FIRE INSURANCE ESCROWMICHAEL SCHWARTZ116688PAYAB02/28/2020

325.00 000263-038MCDONALDS SITE PLAN REVIEWBOSS ENGINEERING116705*#PAYAB03/06/2020

100.00 000263-039PUBLIC STORAGE SITE PLAN REVIEW

450.00 000264-107HARBOR FREIGHT PLAN REVIEW

200.00 000264-116APEX ULTRA REVIEW

275.00 000264-117350 DECKER REVIEW

175.00 000264-122ATTITUDE WELLNESS SEWER AND EASEMENT
ISS

1,525.00 CHECK PAYAB 116705 TOTAL FOR FUND
701:

15,008.00 Total for fund 701 TRUST AND AGENCY FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 83 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 23/23Page
:

03/12/2020 09:07 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116605 - 116734
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 705 ACCRUED INSURANCE LIABILITIES

2,285.99 000231-016ACCRUED MEDICAL INSURANCEBLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN116608PAYAB02/13/2020

14,803.40 000231-016ACCRUED MEDICAL INSURANCEBLUE CARE NETWORK116629PAYAB02/21/2020

1,833.38 000231-019LIFE INSURANCE ACCRUED EXPMADISON NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE116642*#PAYAB02/21/2020

1,859.15 000231-017ACCRUED DENTAL PREMIUMPRINCIPAL FINANCIAL GROUP116692*#PAYAB02/28/2020

386.82 000231-020ACCRUED VISION INSURANCEFIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INS/EYEMED116712*#PAYAB03/06/2020

21,168.74 Total for fund 705 ACCRUED INSURANCE LIABILITIES

  '#'-INDICATES CHECK DISTRIBUTED TO MORE THAN ONE DEPARTMENT
  '*'-INDICATES CHECK DISTRIBUTED TO MORE THAN ONE FUND

249,469.98 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 84 of 197



WARRANT REPORT 4-2020
PAGE 1 OF 2

GOVERNMENT WIDE EXPENDITURES 

CHECK NUMBERS:  116735 - 116875
ACH PAYMENTS: March 2020

Checks ACH Total
GENERAL FUND 96,346.79          5,240.89       101,587.68        
MAJOR ROADS FUND 882.69               882.69               
LOCAL ROADS FUND 2,059.60            2,059.60            
DRUG FORFEITURE 20,924.13          20,924.13          
LIBRARY FUND 4,523.08            4,523.08            
DEBT SERVICE FUND -                     86,837.50     86,837.50          
DDA FUND 30,456.26          30,456.26          
TRANSPORTATION FUND -                     -                     
REFUSE FUND 26,499.98          26,499.98          
WATER & SEWER FUND 143.47               85,379.46     85,522.93          
WATER CAPITAL FUND -                     -                     
TRUST AND AGENCY 27,268.16          27,268.16          
MISC. PAYROLL -                     -                     
ACCRUED INSURANCE LIABILITIES 21,962.40          21,962.40          

VENDOR EXPENDITURES 231,066.56        177,457.85   408,524.41        

City of Walled Lake
April 21, 2020

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 85 of 197



DEPARTMENT OVERTIME PAY IN LIEU
City Manager (#172) -$                     -$                    
City Attorney (#210) -$                     60.00$                 
Finance/ Treasurer (#212 & 253) -$                     -$                    
General (#218) -$                     -$                    
Clerk (#219) -$                     -$                    
Transportation (#588) -$                     -$                    
Police (#300) 1,058.29$            1,150.00$            
Fire (#335) 4,869.39$            -$                    
Public Works (#441) 722.33$               -$                    
Library (#738) -$                     545.00$               

6,650.01$            1,755.00$            

EXPENSE ALLOWANCE/REIMBURSEMENTS 5,428.90$            
SALARY & WAGES 201,796.35$        
PAY IN LIEU 1,755.00$            
OVERTIME 6,650.01$            

GROSS PAYMENTS 215,630.26$        
EMPLOYER FICA 15,508.30$          
EMPLOYER PENSION 126,972.36$        
EMPLOYER OPEB 3,373.00$            

PAYROLL EXPENSES 145,853.66$        
PERSONNEL EXPENDITURES 361,483.92$        
VENDOR EXPENDITURES 408,524.41$        

April 21, 2020 REPORTED EXPENDITURES 770,008.33$        

WARRANT REPORT 4-2020
PAGE 2 OF 2

TOTAL

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 86 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 1/3Page
:

04/13/2020 11:47 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK DATE FROM 03/01/2020 - 03/31/2020
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101

3,501.90 445975-005GREENAWAY TAYLOR LADD DRAIN-@ LARGEOAKLAND COUNTY198(E)*#PAYAB03/20/2020

29.06 172732-000GAS AND OILSUPERFLEET MASTERCARD PROGRAM199(E)#PAYAB03/24/2020

1,212.00 300732-000GAS AND OIL

22.74 371732-000GAS AND OIL

26.05 441732-000GAS AND OIL

1,289.85 CHECK PAYAB 199(E) TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

449.14 335732-000GAS AND OILWEX BANK200(E)PAYAB03/25/2020

5,240.89 Total for fund 101

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 87 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 2/3Page
:

04/13/2020 11:47 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK DATE FROM 03/01/2020 - 03/31/2020
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 401 DEBT SERVICE FUND

75,000.00 218991-007PRINCIPAL 04/01/2020HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK   DEBT197(E)PAYAB03/06/2020

11,837.50 218995-007INTEREST 04/01/2020

86,837.50 CHECK PAYAB 197(E) TOTAL FOR FUND
401:

86,837.50 Total for fund 401 DEBT SERVICE FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 88 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 3/3Page
:

04/13/2020 11:47 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK DATE FROM 03/01/2020 - 03/31/2020
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 591 WATER AND SEWER FUND

48,892.06 000228-002DUE TO WRC-DELQ WATEROAKLAND COUNTY198(E)*#PAYAB03/20/2020

36,487.40 000228-002DUE TO WRC-DELQ SEWER

85,379.46 CHECK PAYAB 198(E) TOTAL FOR FUND
591:

85,379.46 Total for fund 591 WATER AND SEWER FUND

  '#'-INDICATES CHECK DISTRIBUTED TO MORE THAN ONE DEPARTMENT
  '*'-INDICATES CHECK DISTRIBUTED TO MORE THAN ONE FUND

177,457.85 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 89 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 1/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

** VOIDED **CERTIFICATION TRAININGALICE TRAINING INSTITUTE116735PAYAB03/13/2020

239.92 300731-000UNIFORM PINSALLIE BROTHERS INC116736PAYAB03/13/2020

28.50 335733-000AMBULANCE COLLECTIONS EXPARBOR PROFESSIONAL SOLUTIONS116737PAYAB03/13/2020

277.00 335939-0002015 DODGE CHARGER R&M VEHICLEBELLE TIRE116738PAYAB03/13/2020

14.90 300920-000SERVICE 03/05/20 - 04/04/20COMCAST116740PAYAB03/13/2020

300.00 300829-000BLOOD DRAWCOMMUNITY EMS, INC116741PAYAB03/13/2020

792.95 335922-000SERVICE 02/04/20 - 03/05/20CONSUMERS ENERGY116743PAYAB03/13/2020

1,008.06 218922-000SERVICE 02/04/20 - 03/05/20CONSUMERS ENERGY116744PAYAB03/13/2020

1,410.61 441922-000SERVICE 02/04/20 - 03/05/20CONSUMERS ENERGY116745PAYAB03/13/2020

99.74 300939-000VEHICLE R&M 2012 DODGE CHARGERDANS AUTO CLINIC116746PAYAB03/13/2020

1,091.40 335933-000ANNUAL FIRE DEPARTMENT INSPECTIONDIVERSIFIED INSPECTIONS116748PAYAB03/13/2020

133.66 300728-000EQUIP FOR TESTING PBT'SDRAEGER, INC.116749PAYAB03/13/2020

4,190.67 448921-000UTILITY 02/01/20 - 02/29/20DTE ENERGY116750PAYAB03/13/2020

283.41 300728-000RECHARGEABLE FLASHLIGHTGALLS INCORPORATED116751PAYAB03/13/2020

346.11 300731-000UNIFORMS

63.98 300731-000UNIFORM

108.51 300731-000UNIFORM

802.01 CHECK PAYAB 116751 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

106.58 300729-000PIZZA FOR THE RANGE - TRAININGHEATHER KOLKE116752PAYAB03/13/2020

29.99 300728-000GLOCK GL 17017HURON VALLEY GUNS116753PAYAB03/13/2020

140.00 300933-000CLEAN RIFLES

169.99 CHECK PAYAB 116753 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

346.00 218727-000ENVELOPESHUSKY ENVELOPE116754PAYAB03/13/2020

30.00 335728-000PHOTO COPIESIMAGE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS-WIXOM116755PAYAB03/13/2020 May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 90 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 2/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

149.50 300933-000R & M TO CITY HALL FRONT DOORSJK LOCKSMITH CO LLC116756PAYAB03/13/2020

90.00 335728-000INFECTIOUS- MEDICAL WASTE CONTAINERSMEDICAL WASTE RECOVERY116757PAYAB03/13/2020

129.81 335733-000AMBULANCE ASSESMENT 01/01/20 - 03/31/20MICHIGAN DEPT. OF COMMUNITY HEALTH116758PAYAB03/13/2020

4,270.00 218806-000MEMBERSHIP PERIOD: 05/01/2020 -
04/30/20

MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE116759PAYAB03/13/2020

90.00 300829-000SEX OFFENDER REGISTRYMICHIGAN STATE POLICE116760PAYAB03/13/2020

175.00 300829-000REGISTRATION FEE

265.00 CHECK PAYAB 116760 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

427.50 218941-000LEASING CHARGES 12/29/19 - 03/28/2020PITNEY BOWES INC116761PAYAB03/13/2020

120.00 300932-000SHREDDINGSAFEWAY SHREDDING116762PAYAB03/13/2020

48.23 300939-000VEHICLE R & MSHUMAN MOTOR SALES116763PAYAB03/13/2020

48.23 300939-000VEHICLE R & M 18 DODGE CHARGER

96.46 CHECK PAYAB 116763 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

225.30 262728-000VOTETEST TEST DECKSSPECTRUM PRINTERS, INC.116764PAYAB03/13/2020

1,101.00 747969-001CDBG - REIMBURSEMENT FOR EMERGENCY
NEEDS

ST VINCENT DE PAUL SOCIETY116765PAYAB03/13/2020

350.00 335728-000MINI - SA CARBON MONOXITEL-COM REPAIR SERVICE INC116766PAYAB03/13/2020

854.00 262728-000PRES. PRIMARY RUGSUNIFIRST CORPORATION116768PAYAB03/13/2020

178.98 335920-000SERVICE 01/24/2020 - 02/23/2020VERIZON WIRELESS116769PAYAB03/13/2020

140.71 335933-000X- ZAM AIR TESTWEST SHORE FIRE INC116770PAYAB03/13/2020

118.75 335939-000R&M VEHICLE

220.00 335939-000R&M VEHICLE LADDER 1

479.46 CHECK PAYAB 116770 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

512.00 736717-000HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCEBENISTAR/UA - 6803116773PAYAB03/18/2020

1,400.00 801820-000OFFICE HOURSBOSS ENGINEERING116775*#PAYAB03/18/2020

550.00 801820-000FAC MEETING May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 91 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 3/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

1,950.00 CHECK PAYAB 116775 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

108.35 335920-000SERVICE 03/16/20 - 04/15/20COMCAST116776PAYAB03/18/2020

29.81 335920-000SERVICE 03/16/2020 - 04/15/2020COMCAST116777PAYAB03/18/2020

305.07 441931-000RECYCLED LAMP BULBS & BATTERIESERG ENVIRONMENTAL116778PAYAB03/18/2020

18.01 732921-000WELCOME SIGN MAINTENANCEFASTENAL COMPANY116779PAYAB03/18/2020

467.46 218920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICEGRID4 COMMUNICATIONS INC116780*#PAYAB03/18/2020

186.98 253920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE

280.48 300920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE

93.49 335920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE

467.46 371920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE

280.48 441920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE

1,776.35 CHECK PAYAB 116780 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

80.00 262728-000OPERATING SUPPLIESHART INTERCIVIC116781PAYAB03/18/2020

354.59 335728-000OPERATING SUPPLIESJ & B MEDICAL SUPPLY116782PAYAB03/18/2020

48.75 441728-000DPW SHOPMURRAYS DISCOUNT AUTO STORES116783PAYAB03/18/2020

80.45 218728-000OFFICE SUPPLIESOFFICE CONNECTION116784PAYAB03/18/2020

3,500.00 000008-000PITNEY BOWES RESERVE ACCOUNTPITNEY BOWES116785PAYAB03/18/2020

130.36 335728-000OPERATING SUPPLIESRON MENSER116786PAYAB03/18/2020

136.70 300920-000SERVICE 02/07/2020 - 03/06/2020SPRINT116787PAYAB03/18/2020

31.96 218727-000BANK DEPOSIT BAGSSUPERIOR PRESS INC.116788PAYAB03/18/2020

19.48 218727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESTRI COUNTY CLEANING SUPPLY, INC116789*#PAYAB03/18/2020

32.47 300727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

32.47 335727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

19.48 441727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

103.90 CHECK PAYAB 116789 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

250.97 218728-000OPERATING SUPPLIESUNIFIRST CORPORATION116790PAYAB03/18/2020 May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 92 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 4/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

819.07 441933-000R&M - EQUIPMENTWEINGARTZ116791PAYAB03/18/2020

28.99 441933-000R&M - EQUIPMENT

848.06 CHECK PAYAB 116791 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

39.73 732921-00002/14/2020 - 03/16/2020DTE ENERGY116792PAYAB03/23/2020

39.96 732921-00002/13/2020 - 03/13/2020DTE ENERGY116793PAYAB03/23/2020

41.34 276921-00002/13/2020 - 03/13/2020DTE ENERGY116794PAYAB03/23/2020

41.18 732921-00002/13/20 - 03/13/20DTE ENERGY116795PAYAB03/23/2020

48.29 690921-00002/13/20 - 03/13/2020DTE ENERGY116796PAYAB03/23/2020

52.11 441921-00002/13/2020 - 03/13/2020DTE ENERGY116797PAYAB03/23/2020

41.22 690921-00002/13/20 - 03/13/20DTE ENERGY116798PAYAB03/23/2020

741.76 335921-00002/13/20 - 03/13/20DTE ENERGY116799PAYAB03/23/2020

87.44 448924-00002/13/20 - 03/13/20DTE ENERGY116800PAYAB03/23/2020

41.22 690921-00002/13/20 - 03/13/20DTE ENERGY116801PAYAB03/23/2020

972.97 300921-00002/13/20 - 03/13/20DTE ENERGY116802PAYAB03/23/2020

38.66 732921-00002/13/20 - 03/13/20DTE ENERGY116804PAYAB03/23/2020

289.00 218921-00002/13/20 - 03/13/20DTE ENERGY116806PAYAB03/23/2020

59.92 690921-00002/13/20 - 03/13/20DTE ENERGY116807PAYAB03/23/2020

266.50 300718-000INSURANCE - APRILMADISON NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE116810*#PAYAB03/23/2020

450.00 300829-000BLOOD DRAWS - FEBRUARY BILLINGCOMMUNITY EMS, INC116812PAYAB03/26/2020

41.99 300939-000R&M - 2017 DODGE 56-02DANS AUTO CLINIC116813PAYAB03/26/2020

41.99 300939-000R&M - 2013 DODGE 56-3

332.92 300939-000R&M - 2013 DODGE 56-3

416.90 CHECK PAYAB 116813 TOTAL FOR FUND
101: May 19, 2020 Council Packet 

Page 93 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 5/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

42.61 335921-000SERVICES FROM 02/21/20 - 03/20/20DTE ENERGY116815PAYAB03/26/2020

497.64 335939-000AMBULANCE REPAIRSG.E.B. COLLISION, INC116816PAYAB03/26/2020

60.00 300933-000RIFLE CLEANINGHURON VALLEY GUNS116817PAYAB03/26/2020

450.00 335829-000PRE-EMPLOYMENT PSYCHOLOGICAL EVALUATIONJAY S WITHERELL116818PAYAB03/26/2020

115.50 218900-000PUBLIC HEARING - 21.49KINGSETT LLC D/B/A SPINAL COLUMN116819PAYAB03/26/2020

107.25 218900-000PUBLIC HEARING - 21.50

222.75 CHECK PAYAB 116819 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

85.00 000478-0001020 DECKER ADD. REVIEWMCKENNA ASSOCIATES INC116820*#PAYAB03/26/2020

1,250.00 801817-000MONTHLY RETAINER

1,335.00 CHECK PAYAB 116820 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

100.00 300806-000MEMBERSHIP/ANNUAL DUESMICHIGAN ASSOC CHIEFS OF POLICE116821PAYAB03/26/2020

7,210.45 300724-001FEB. SHERIFF DISPATCH SERVICESOAKLAND COUNTY TREAS CASH BLDG 12
E

116822#PAYAB03/26/2020

2,403.48 335724-001FEB. SHERIFF DISPATCH SERVICES

9,613.93 CHECK PAYAB 116822 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

81.31 218728-000OPERATING SUPPLIESOFFICE CONNECTION116823#PAYAB03/26/2020

119.00 300728-000OPERATING SUPPLIES

200.31 CHECK PAYAB 116823 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

45.57 300728-000REIMBURSEMENT FOR HDMI CABLE FOR #5606PAUL CARADONNA116824PAYAB03/26/2020

144.02 300728-000REIMBURSEMENT FOR SUPPLIESPAUL SHAKINAS116825PAYAB03/26/2020

82.63 300731-000REIMBURSEMENT FOR SUPPLIES - GLOVES

226.65 CHECK PAYAB 116825 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

239.03 736717-000MONTHLY PAYMENT - APRILPRINCIPAL FINANCIAL GROUP116826*#PAYAB03/26/2020

14.95 441728-000KEYSSOUTHEASTERN EQUIPMENT CO., INC.116828PAYAB03/26/2020

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 94 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 6/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

102.00 300939-00002/01/2020 - 02/29/2020SUPER CAR WASH SYSTEMS116829PAYAB03/26/2020

7.50 300939-000R&M VEHICLE

109.50 CHECK PAYAB 116829 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

460.75 732931-000R&M - GROUNDS TREATMENT SPRING - FALLTOP LAWN116830PAYAB03/26/2020

3.05 218727-000ADD COPIESTOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES116831*#PAYAB03/26/2020

44.77 218727-000ADD COPIES

315.27 218941-000EQUIPMENT RENTAL

363.09 CHECK PAYAB 116831 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

1,620.00 219958-000EDUCATION & TRAININGWALDORF UNIVERSITY116832PAYAB03/26/2020

365.00 300933-000R&M - EQUIPMENTWATCHGUARD VIDEO116833*#PAYAB03/26/2020

354.87 218923-000WATER & SEWER 12/17/2019 - 03/17/2020WATER RESOURCE COMMISSIONER116834#PAYAB03/26/2020

930.79 335923-000WATER & SEWER 12/17/2019 - 03/17/2020

34.50 335923-000FIRE LINE CHARGE 12/18/2019 -
03/18/2020 839.13 441923-000WATER & SEWER 12/17/2019 - 03/17/2020

34.50 441923-000FIRE LINE CHARGE 12/18/2019 -
03/18/2020 68.83 690923-000WATER & SEWER 12/17/2019 - 03/17/2020

2,262.62 CHECK PAYAB 116834 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

193.04 335939-000R&M VEHICLE - E-23 SEAGRAVEWEST SHORE FIRE INC116835PAYAB03/26/2020

935.26 335939-000R&M VEHICLE - E-23 SEAGRAVE

142.50 335939-000R&M VEHICLE - L-1

950.06 335939-000R&M VEHICLE - L-1

831.20 335939-000R&M VEHICLE - R-19 FORD

3,052.06 CHECK PAYAB 116835 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

343.61 335733-000MARCH AMBULANCE COLLECTION FEEACCUMED GROUP116836PAYAB04/02/2020

(5.16)335733-000CREDIT FOR AMBULANCE COLLECTION FEE

338.45 CHECK PAYAB 116836 TOTAL FOR FUND
101: May 19, 2020 Council Packet 

Page 95 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 7/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

10,000.00 900990-001PHASE II OF PUBLIC SAFETY EXPANSIONBOSS ENGINEERING116838*PAYAB04/02/2020

132.82 172732-000GAS & OILEXXON MOBIL116842#PAYAB04/02/2020

2,216.48 300732-000GAS & OIL

273.25 441732-000GAS & OIL

2,622.55 CHECK PAYAB 116842 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

162.82 441728-000OPERATING SUPPLIESFASTENAL COMPANY116843PAYAB04/02/2020

67.74 736717-000APRIL PAYMENTFIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INS/EYEMED116844*#PAYAB04/02/2020

70.14 441933-000DPW EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCEGLENDALE AUTO SUPPLY116845PAYAB04/02/2020

3,412.70 218936-000IT SERVICES FOR MARCHJEM IT SERVICES, LLC116847PAYAB04/02/2020

400.00 218829-000DIVISION BRIDGE DOWN ADMIN. FEEMERS OF MICHIGAN116848PAYAB04/02/2020

240.78 000007-000MML UNEMPLOYMENT FUNDS ON DEPOSITMICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE116850PAYAB04/02/2020

857.45 441941-020EQUIP RENTALSUNBELT RENTALS116854PAYAB04/02/2020

3,000.00 690937-000TREE REMOVALTHE TREE CORP.116855PAYAB04/02/2020

15.89 218936-001MONTHLY SUBSCRIPTIONVISA WALLED LAKE SCHOOL EMP FCU116856#PAYAB04/02/2020

15.89 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

15.89 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

15.89 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

15.89 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

280.64 218936-001ONLINE SERVICES

157.74 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

250.00 300829-003INTERNET CRIMINAL HISTORY TOOL

432.00 335728-000ANNUAL PAYMENT

1,199.83 CHECK PAYAB 116856 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

625.00 335728-000DEVICE PURCHASE (AGENCY 12MO RENEWAL)ACTIVE911, INC.116857PAYAB04/09/2020

550.00 801820-000OFFICE HOURSBOSS ENGINEERING116859*#PAYAB04/09/2020
May 19, 2020 Council Packet 

Page 96 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 8/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

600.00 335728-000200 - KN95 SAFETY MASKSDBS PRINT & MARKETING116860PAYAB04/09/2020

4,171.83 448921-00003/01/2020 - 03/31/2020DTE ENERGY116862PAYAB04/09/2020

511.54 335980-000CORDLESS ELECTROSTATIC SPRAYERFEDERAL RESOURCES116863PAYAB04/09/2020

23.66 335728-000FIT TESTING SOLUTION, SACCHARIN, PK6GRAINGER116864PAYAB04/09/2020

14.33 335728-000SENSITIVITY SOLUTION, BITREX, 2.5ML PK6

37.99 CHECK PAYAB 116864 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

39.95 335728-000BIOHAZARDOUS WASTE BAGSJ & B MEDICAL SUPPLY116865PAYAB04/09/2020

35.58 335728-000TEMPLE TOUCH THERMOMETER

116.88 335728-000DISPOSABLE WIPES

101.00 335728-000BLACK-FIRE NITRILE EXAM GLOVES (MEDIUM)

20.20 335728-000BLACK-FIRE NITRILE EXAM GLOVES (SMALL)

69.00 335728-000AMBITEX NITRILE POWDER EXAM GLOVES

44.04 335728-000FREEFORM EC POWDER-FREE NITRILE GLOVES

16.36 335728-000PRO ADVANTAGE FACE MASKS

56.00 335728-000GEL SUPRAGLOTTIC AIRWAYS

31.00 335728-000GEL SUPRAGLOTTIC AIRWAYS 02 RESUS PACK

33.11 335728-000ASCENSIA CONTOUR TEST STRIPS

3.09 335728-000PRO ADVANTAGE FACE MASKS

96.96 335728-000GERMICIDAL DISPOSABLE WIPES

663.17 CHECK PAYAB 116865 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

111.29 335728-000UV UNIT STERILIZATIONKARL BROWN116866PAYAB04/09/2020

148.50 218900-000GRASS CUTTING NOTICEKINGSETT LLC D/B/A SPINAL COLUMN116867#PAYAB04/09/2020

189.75 809900-000ZBA CASE 2020-02

338.25 CHECK PAYAB 116867 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

509.56 335716-000FICA - STDMADISON NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE116868PAYAB04/09/2020

1,200.00 371708-002OFFICE HOURSMCKENNA ASSOCIATES INC116869*#PAYAB04/09/2020

1,815.00 371828-000INSPECTION SERVICES

1,250.00 801817-000MONTHLY RETAINER May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 97 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 9/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

297.50 801834-000ZONING ORDINANCE

4,562.50 CHECK PAYAB 116869 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

362.97 219727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESOFFICE CONNECTION116870PAYAB04/09/2020

163.46 300939-000R&M VEHICLESUPER CAR WASH SYSTEMS116872PAYAB04/09/2020

6.00 300939-000R&M VEHICLE

169.46 CHECK PAYAB 116872 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

23.28 218727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESTRI COUNTY CLEANING SUPPLY, INC116873#PAYAB04/09/2020

23.27 300727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

23.27 441727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

69.82 CHECK PAYAB 116873 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

178.98 335920-00002/24/2020 - 03/23/2020VERIZON WIRELESS116874PAYAB04/09/2020

1,059.25 335939-000R&M VEHICLEWEST SHORE FIRE INC116875PAYAB04/09/2020

4,458.73 335980-0004500 PSI CARBON CYLINDER

5,517.98 CHECK PAYAB 116875 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

96,346.79 Total for fund 101 GENERAL FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 98 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 10/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 202 MAJOR ROAD FUND

821.97 478735-000SNOW AND ICE MATERIALDETROIT SALT COMPANY LLC116747*PAYAB03/13/2020

60.72 462734-000INFRASTRUCTURE R&M - MINORAJAX MATERIALS CORPORATION116858*PAYAB04/09/2020

882.69 Total for fund 202 MAJOR ROAD FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 99 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 11/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 203 LOCAL ROAD FUND

1,917.92 478735-000SNOW AND ICE MATERIALDETROIT SALT COMPANY LLC116747*PAYAB03/13/2020

141.68 462734-000INFRASTRUCTURE R&M - MINORAJAX MATERIALS CORPORATION116858*PAYAB04/09/2020

2,059.60 Total for fund 203 LOCAL ROAD FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 100 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 12/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 265 DRUG FORFEITURE FUND

1,714.97 399980-000INSTALL OF 3 CAR CAMERASCONCERTO NETWORKS116742PAYAB03/13/2020

480.34 400920-000SERVICE 02/05/2020 - 03/04/2020AT&T116772PAYAB03/18/2020

881.54 399980-001COMPUTER & RELATED HARWARE PURCHASESDELL MARKETING LP116814PAYAB03/26/2020

699.06 399980-001COMPUTER & RELATED HARWARE PURCHASES

(51.78)399980-001CREDIT FOR DELL STEREO SOUNDBAR

1,528.82 CHECK PAYAB 116814 TOTAL FOR FUND
265:

2,600.00 399958-000EDUCATIONSCHOOLCRAFT COLLEGE116827PAYAB03/26/2020

2,225.00 399933-000R&M - EQUIPMENTWATCHGUARD VIDEO116833*#PAYAB03/26/2020

5,730.00 399981-001VEHICLE EQUIPMENT

6,645.00 399981-001VEHICLE EQUIPMENT

14,600.00 CHECK PAYAB 116833 TOTAL FOR FUND
265:

20,924.13 Total for fund 265 DRUG FORFEITURE FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 101 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 13/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 271 LIBRARY FUND

1,201.66 738936-000INTERNET SPEED 01/01/20 - 03/31/20THE LIBRARY NETWORK116767PAYAB03/13/2020

93.49 738920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICEGRID4 COMMUNICATIONS INC116780*#PAYAB03/18/2020

25.96 738727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESTRI COUNTY CLEANING SUPPLY, INC116789*#PAYAB03/18/2020

7.56 738727-000ADD COPIESTOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES116831*#PAYAB03/26/2020

6.57 738727-000ADD COPIES

315.28 738941-000EQUIPMENT RENTAL

329.41 CHECK PAYAB 116831 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

2.99 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALSBAKER & TAYLOR116837PAYAB04/02/2020

31.25 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

8.97 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

43.21 CHECK PAYAB 116837 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

845.47 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALSBRODART CO116839PAYAB04/02/2020

81.47 738922-00002/04/2020 - 03/05/2020CONSUMERS ENERGY116840PAYAB04/02/2020

192.45 738921-00002/13/2020 - 03/13/2020DTE ENERGY116841PAYAB04/02/2020

17.36 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALSINGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES116846PAYAB04/02/2020

39.67 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

131.42 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

47.68 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

18.60 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

15.95 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

15.94 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

10.53 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

56.60 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

151.09 738982-002AV MATERIALS

53.26 738982-002AV MATERIALS

28.79 738982-002AV MATERIALS

18.71 738982-002AV MATERIALS

21.59 738982-002AV MATERIALS May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 102 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 14/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 271 LIBRARY FUND

627.19 CHECK PAYAB 116846 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

471.85 738806-000MEMBERSHIP RENEWALMICHIGAN LIBRARY ASSOCIATION116849PAYAB04/02/2020

79.98 738982-002AV MATERIALSMIDWEST TAPE116851PAYAB04/02/2020

44.99 738982-002AV MATERIALS

124.97 CHECK PAYAB 116851 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

20.95 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALSROURKE EDUCATIONAL MEDIA116852PAYAB04/02/2020

465.00 738932-000CLEANING SERVICESSIPES, TIM116853PAYAB04/02/2020

4,523.08 Total for fund 271 LIBRARY FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 103 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 15/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 494 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT FUND

50.00 895820-000COAL SHUTE INVESTIGATIONBOSS ENGINEERING116775*#PAYAB03/18/2020

333.41 895921-00002/12/20 - 03/12/20DTE ENERGY116808PAYAB03/23/2020

30,072.85 900984-000DOWNTOWN STORM SEWER & BEAUTIFICATION
PR

BOSS ENGINEERING116838*PAYAB04/02/2020

30,456.26 Total for fund 494 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 104 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 16/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 590 REFUSE FUND

26,472.48 538827-000RUBBISH PICK UP FOR MONTH OF APRILGFL ENVIRONMENTAL USA116809PAYAB03/23/2020

27.50 538827-005HAZARDOUS MATERIALSRRRASOC116871PAYAB04/09/2020

26,499.98 Total for fund 590 REFUSE FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 105 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 17/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 591 WATER AND SEWER FUND

78.18 533921-00002/13/20 - 03/13/20DTE ENERGY116803PAYAB03/23/2020

36.76 533921-00002/13/20 - 03/13/20DTE ENERGY116805PAYAB03/23/2020

28.53 534921-00002/13/2020 - 03/13/2020DTE ENERGY116861PAYAB04/09/2020

143.47 Total for fund 591 WATER AND SEWER FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 106 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 18/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 701 TRUST AND AGENCY FUND

597.31 000264-116APEX PUBLIC HEARING APPEAL FEB. 18,
2020

21ST CENTURY MEDIA116771PAYAB03/18/2020

300.00 000263-038MCDONALDS SITE PLAN REVIEW #1BOSS ENGINEERING116775*#PAYAB03/18/2020

275.00 000263-038MCDONALDS SITE PLAN REVIEW #2

125.00 000263-039PUBLIC STORAGE SITE PLAN REVIEW #1

50.00 000263-039PUBLIC STORAGE SITE PLAN REVIEW #2

350.00 000264-107HARBOR FREIGHT PLAN REVIEW

1,050.00 000264-116APEX ULTRA REVIEW

475.00 000264-116APEX ULTRA REVIEW

150.00 000264-116APEX ULTRA REVIEW

450.00 000264-118BEACHWOOD AS-BUILT REVIEW

4,875.00 000264-118BEACHWOOD PUD CONSTRUCTION

400.00 000264-122ATTITUDE WELLNESS STORM REVIEW

400.00 000264-122ATTITUDE WELLNESS INSPECTION

8,900.00 CHECK PAYAB 116775 TOTAL FOR FUND
701:

10,000.00 000264-119DEMO ESCROW FOR 457 & 501 DECKERPULTE HOMES OF MICHIGAN, LLC116811PAYAB03/23/2020

361.37 000263-03714 MILE & DECKER REZONINGMCKENNA ASSOCIATES INC116820*#PAYAB03/26/2020

521.73 000263-0381212 E. WEST MAPLE SLU

762.50 000263-0381212 E. WEST MAPLE SPR

1,052.75 000263-0391901 E. WEST MAPLE SPR

2,698.35 CHECK PAYAB 116820 TOTAL FOR FUND
701:

1,650.00 000264-048BEACHWOOD AS-BUILT REVIEW #2BOSS ENGINEERING116859*#PAYAB04/09/2020

125.00 000264-068MAHER

200.00 000264-116APEX ULTRA REVIEW #11

225.00 000264-116APEX ULTRA REVIEW #12

75.00 000264-116APEX

1,800.00 000264-118BEACHWOOD PUD

50.00 000264-125PUBLIC STORAGE REVIEW #1

4,125.00 CHECK PAYAB 116859 TOTAL FOR FUND
701:

712.50 000264-1251901 E. WEST MAPLEMCKENNA ASSOCIATES INC116869*#PAYAB04/09/2020

150.00 000264-1271212 E. WEST MAPLE May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 107 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 19/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 701 TRUST AND AGENCY FUND

85.00 000264-1271212 E. WEST MAPLE

947.50 CHECK PAYAB 116869 TOTAL FOR FUND
701:

27,268.16 Total for fund 701 TRUST AND AGENCY FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 108 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 20/20Page
:

04/13/2020 11:46 AM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116735 - 116875
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 705 ACCRUED INSURANCE LIABILITIES

2,365.04 000231-016ACCRUED MEDICAL INSURANCEBLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN116739PAYAB03/13/2020

15,245.00 000231-016ACCRUED MEDICAL INSURANCEBLUE CARE NETWORK116774PAYAB03/18/2020

2,029.91 000231-019INSURANCE - APRILMADISON NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE116810*#PAYAB03/23/2020

1,921.63 000231-017MONTHLY PAYMENT - APRILPRINCIPAL FINANCIAL GROUP116826*#PAYAB03/26/2020

400.82 000231-020APRIL PAYMENTFIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INS/EYEMED116844*#PAYAB04/02/2020

21,962.40 Total for fund 705 ACCRUED INSURANCE LIABILITIES

  '#'-INDICATES CHECK DISTRIBUTED TO MORE THAN ONE DEPARTMENT
  '*'-INDICATES CHECK DISTRIBUTED TO MORE THAN ONE FUND

231,066.56 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 109 of 197



WARRANT REPORT 5-2020
PAGE 1 OF 2

GOVERNMENT WIDE EXPENDITURES 

CHECK NUMBERS:  116876 - 116987
ACH PAYMENTS: April 2020

Checks ACH Total
GENERAL FUND 115,817.52        1,192.78       117,010.30        
MAJOR ROADS FUND 120.78               120.78               
LOCAL ROADS FUND 500.26               500.26               
DRUG FORFEITURE 9,666.93            9,666.93            
LIBRARY FUND 10,857.87          10,857.87          
DEBT SERVICE FUND -                     -                     
DDA FUND 901.42               901.42               
TRANSPORTATION FUND -                     -                     
REFUSE FUND 26,472.48          26,472.48          
WATER & SEWER FUND 154.71               154.71               
WATER CAPITAL FUND 2,579.50            2,579.50            
TRUST AND AGENCY 6,201.26            6,201.26            
MISC. PAYROLL -                     -                     
ACCRUED INSURANCE LIABILITIES 22,249.69          22,249.69          

VENDOR EXPENDITURES 195,522.42        1,192.78       196,715.20        

City of Walled Lake
May 19, 2020

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 110 of 197



DEPARTMENT OVERTIME PAY IN LIEU
City Manager (#172) -$                     -$                    
City Attorney (#210) -$                     60.00$                 
Finance/ Treasurer (#212 & 253) -$                     -$                    
General (#218) -$                     -$                    
Clerk (#219) -$                     -$                    
Transportation (#588) -$                     -$                    
Police (#300) 1,356.64$            1,150.00$            
Fire (#335) 5,562.71$            -$                    
Public Works (#441) -$                     -$                    
Library (#738) -$                     545.00$               

6,919.35$            1,755.00$            

EXPENSE ALLOWANCE/REIMBURSEMENTS 5,175.53$            
SALARY & WAGES 194,177.26$        
PAY IN LIEU 1,755.00$            
OVERTIME 6,919.35$            

GROSS PAYMENTS 208,027.14$        
EMPLOYER FICA 15,158.79$          
EMPLOYER PENSION 126,975.29$        
EMPLOYER OPEB -$                     

PAYROLL EXPENSES 142,134.08$        
PERSONNEL EXPENDITURES 350,161.22$        
VENDOR EXPENDITURES 196,715.20$        

May 19, 2020 REPORTED EXPENDITURES 546,876.42$        

WARRANT REPORT 5-2020
PAGE 2 OF 2

TOTAL

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 111 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 1/1Page
:

05/11/2020 12:43 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK DATE FROM 04/01/2020 - 04/30/2020
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

203.70 335732-000FUEL PURCHASESWEX BANK201(E)PAYAB04/09/2020

745.78 335732-000FUEL PURCHASESWEX BANK202(E)PAYAB04/23/2020

243.30 300732-000GAS & OIL 03/16/2020 - 04/15/2020SUPERFLEET MASTERCARD PROGRAM203(E)PAYAB04/30/2020

1,192.78 Total for fund 101 GENERAL FUND
1,192.78 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 112 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 1/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

413.93 300731-000UNIFORMSALLIE BROTHERS INC116876PAYAB04/16/2020

78.50 300920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICE - 0192AT&T MOBILITY116878PAYAB04/16/2020

521.45 300939-000R&M 2013 DODGE CHARGER 5603BELLE TIRE116879*#PAYAB04/16/2020

562.00 300939-000R&M 2013 DODGE CHARGER 5603

79.99 300939-000R&M 2017 DODGE CHARGER 53

1,163.44 CHECK PAYAB 116879 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

100.00 300939-000R&M 2018 DODGE CHARGER 5606CANFIELD EQUIPMENT SERVICE, INC.116881PAYAB04/16/2020

14.90 300920-00004/05/2020 - 05/04/2020COMCAST116882PAYAB04/16/2020

108.35 335920-000TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICECOMCAST116883PAYAB04/16/2020

760.93 441922-00003/06/2020 - 04/06/2020CONSUMERS ENERGY116885PAYAB04/16/2020

477.78 335922-000HEATCONSUMERS ENERGY116886PAYAB04/16/2020

678.52 218922-000HEATCONSUMERS ENERGY116887PAYAB04/16/2020

41.99 300939-000R&M 2015 DODGE CHARGER SXTDANS AUTO CLINIC116888*#PAYAB04/16/2020

474.36 335939-000R&M 2005 FORD PICKUP F150

516.35 CHECK PAYAB 116888 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

16.43 441728-000OPERATING SUPPLIESFASTENAL COMPANY116889PAYAB04/16/2020

81.56 300728-000STEAM CLEANER FOR PATROL CARSHEATHER KOLKE116890PAYAB04/16/2020

12.72 300728-000DISTILLED WATER FOR STEAMER

94.28 CHECK PAYAB 116890 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

1,500.00 300829-0003 PRE-EMPLOYMENT PSYCH. EVALUATIONSJAY S WITHERELL116891PAYAB04/16/2020

149.50 300934-000R&M BUILDING/FACILITYJK LOCKSMITH CO LLC116892PAYAB04/16/2020

60.00 300829-000SEX OFFENDER REGISTRYMICHIGAN STATE POLICE116893PAYAB04/16/2020

15.19 300728-000OPERATING SUPPLIESMURRAYS DISCOUNT AUTO STORES116894PAYAB04/16/2020

89.94 300728-000OPERATING SUPPLIES May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 113 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 2/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

6.61 300939-000R&M VEHICLE

6.61 300939-000R&M VEHICLE

118.35 CHECK PAYAB 116894 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

741.02 300727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESOFFICE CONNECTION116895PAYAB04/16/2020

490.00 441933-000R&M - EQUIPMENT - CHIPPERSENG TIRE COMPANY116896PAYAB04/16/2020

291.24 300728-000EVIDENCE SUPPLIESSIRCHIE FINGER PRINT LAB116897PAYAB04/16/2020

239.70 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCEWEB MATTERS116901PAYAB04/16/2020

265.37 335728-000OXYGEN USP MEDICAL PUREAIRGAS USA, LLC116902PAYAB04/23/2020

471.00 300829-000NEW EE PHYSICALASCENSION MICHIGAN AT WORK116904PAYAB04/23/2020

512.00 736717-000HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCEBENISTAR/UA - 6803116905PAYAB04/23/2020

29.81 335920-00004/16/2020 - 05/15/2020COMCAST116907PAYAB04/23/2020

333.33 335829-000REGIONAL GRANT CONSULTANTCOMMERCE TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT116908PAYAB04/23/2020

592.50 335980-000RUBBER INSULATED LUG SOLE FIRE BOOTSCONWAY SHIELD116909PAYAB04/23/2020

462.42 300939-000R&M 2013 DODGE CHARGER R/TDANS AUTO CLINIC116910PAYAB04/23/2020

34.99 300939-000R&M 2017 DODGE CHARGER PURSUIT

497.41 CHECK PAYAB 116910 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

38.29 441931-000EMPLOYEE PARKING ONLY SIGNSDORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC116911*#PAYAB04/23/2020

52.76 690937-000PARK SIGN

91.05 CHECK PAYAB 116911 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

40.65 732921-00003/17/2020 - 04/15/2020DTE ENERGY116912PAYAB04/23/2020

80.72 448924-000ELECTRIC - DDA DISTRICT ST LIGHTSDTE ENERGY116916PAYAB04/23/2020

895.89 300921-000ELECTRICDTE ENERGY116917PAYAB04/23/2020

756.22 335921-000ELECTRICDTE ENERGY116918PAYAB04/23/2020

289.00 218921-00003/14/2020 - 04/14/2020DTE ENERGY116919PAYAB04/23/2020

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 114 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 3/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

51.70 441921-000ELECTRICDTE ENERGY116920PAYAB04/23/2020

28.25 690921-000ELECTRICDTE ENERGY116921PAYAB04/23/2020

2,741.50 300958-000EDUCATION & TRAININGEASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY116923PAYAB04/23/2020

374.73 441933-000R&M - EQUIPMENTFALCON ASPHALT REPAIR EQUIPMENT116924PAYAB04/23/2020

10.29 441939-000R&M VEHICLE 2010 GMC TRUCKGLENDALE AUTO SUPPLY116925PAYAB04/23/2020

330.00 219806-000ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP DUESIIMC116926PAYAB04/23/2020

266.97 300727-000PHOTO COPIESIMAGE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS-WIXOM116927PAYAB04/23/2020

181.44 300941-000PRINTER LEASE

448.41 CHECK PAYAB 116927 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

149.50 300934-000R&M BUILDING/FACILITYJK LOCKSMITH CO LLC116928PAYAB04/23/2020

25.00 335806-000PARAMEDIC LICENSE RENEWALKEVIN CORSINI116929PAYAB04/23/2020

360.00 690891-000TREE LIGHTING CEREMONY ADKINGSETT LLC D/B/A SPINAL COLUMN116930PAYAB04/23/2020

256.88 300718-000INSURANCE - MAYMADISON NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE116931*#PAYAB04/23/2020

7,210.45 300724-001SHERIFF DISPATCH - OAKLAND COUNTYOAKLAND COUNTY TREAS CASH BLDG 12
E

116932#PAYAB04/23/2020

2,403.48 335724-001SHERIFF DISPATCH - OAKLAND COUNTY

9,613.93 CHECK PAYAB 116932 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

120.00 300932-000SHREDDINGSAFEWAY SHREDDING116933PAYAB04/23/2020

153.61 690728-000OPERATING SUPPLIES FOR PARKSSITE ONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, LLC116934PAYAB04/23/2020

35.37 218727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESTRI COUNTY CLEANING SUPPLY, INC116936*#PAYAB04/23/2020

35.37 300727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

137.01 335727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

35.37 441727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

243.12 CHECK PAYAB 116936 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

876.68 335980-000LADDER 1 BATTERYWEST SHORE FIRE INC116938PAYAB04/23/2020 May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 115 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 4/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

73.63 335728-000PROTECTIVE GEARWITMER PUBLIC SAFETY INC116939PAYAB04/23/2020

200.00 690898-000BEACH PARTYWALLED LAKE CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS116941PAYAB04/27/2020

30.00 300731-000UNIFORMSALLIE BROTHERS INC116942PAYAB04/30/2020

404.00 300829-000EMPLOYEES PHYSICALASCENSION MICHIGAN AT WORK116943PAYAB04/30/2020

83.50 300920-00003/18/2020 - 04/17/2020AT&T MOBILITY116944PAYAB04/30/2020

51.91 300728-000OPERATING/ OFFICE SUPPLIESCITI CARDS116945#PAYAB04/30/2020

141.40 335727-000OPERATING/ OFFICE SUPPLIES

193.31 CHECK PAYAB 116945 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

150.00 300829-000BLOOD DRAWS MARCH BILLINGCOMMUNITY EMS, INC116946PAYAB04/30/2020

145.22 300933-000INSPECTIONCUMMINS SALES AND SERVICE116947PAYAB04/30/2020

45.56 172732-000GAS AND OILEXXON MOBIL116948#PAYAB04/30/2020

1,227.20 300732-000GAS AND OIL

521.34 441732-000GAS AND OIL

1,794.10 CHECK PAYAB 116948 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

164.98 441933-000R&M - EQUIPMENTGLENDALE AUTO SUPPLY116950PAYAB04/30/2020

482.09 218920-00004/16/2020 - 05/15/20GRID4 COMMUNICATIONS INC116951*#PAYAB04/30/2020

192.84 253920-00004/16/2020 - 05/15/20

289.26 300920-00004/16/2020 - 05/15/20

96.42 335920-00004/16/2020 - 05/15/20

482.08 371920-00004/16/2020 - 05/15/20

289.26 441920-00004/16/2020 - 05/15/20

1,831.95 CHECK PAYAB 116951 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

424.23 335728-000SANITIZE ITEMSHOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES116952#PAYAB04/30/2020

42.32 335728-000GEL SPRAYER

193.99 690895-000PAINT & LUMBER FOR FARMERS MARKET

660.54 CHECK PAYAB 116952 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 116 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 5/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

26.98 335939-000R&M - EQUIPMENTKNIGHTS AUTO PARTS & PAINT, INC116953#PAYAB04/30/2020

15.49 441933-000R&M - EQUIPMENT

42.47 CHECK PAYAB 116953 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

(4.68)300728-000OPERATING SUPPLIESLOWES BUSINESS ACCOUNT116954PAYAB04/30/2020

82.64 300728-000OPERATING SUPPLIES

90.97 300932-000CUSTODIAL MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES/SERVICE

168.93 CHECK PAYAB 116954 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

278.78 441728-000OPERATING SUPPLIESMAXI AUTOMOTIVE SUPPLY116955PAYAB04/30/2020

675.00 801806-000GROUP MEMBERSHIP DUESMICHIGAN ASSOC OF PLANNING116956PAYAB04/30/2020

52.00 300939-000APPLICATIONS FOR SUBSTITUTE PLATESMICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF STATE116957PAYAB04/30/2020

1,675.80 300850-000LIENS/CLEMISOAKLAND COUNTY TREAS CASH BLDG 12
E

116958PAYAB04/30/2020

4,670.75 300850-000LIENS/CLEMIS JAN. - MARCH 2020

6,346.55 CHECK PAYAB 116958 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

207.01 218727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESOFFICE CONNECTION116959PAYAB04/30/2020

120.00 218727-001POSTAGEPOSTMASTER116960*#PAYAB04/30/2020

315.27 218941-000COPIER LEASE 4/13/20 - 05/13/20TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES116961*#PAYAB04/30/2020

349.00 300939-000PREVENTATIVE CLEANING FOR POLICE
VEHICLE

USA BIO CARE116962PAYAB04/30/2020

15.89 218936-001MONTHLY SUBSCRIPTIONVISA WALLED LAKE SCHOOL EMP FCU116963#PAYAB04/30/2020

15.89 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

15.89 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

15.89 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

15.89 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

165.23 218936-001MONTHLY SUBSCRIPTION

15.89 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

15.89 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE
May 19, 2020 Council Packet 

Page 117 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 6/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

15.89 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

280.64 218936-001ONLINE SERVICES

157.74 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

160.00 218936-001ONLINE SERVICES

284.92 218936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE

69.99 218980-001ZOOM VOICE COMMUNICATION SERVICES

250.00 300829-003INTERNET CRIMINAL HISTORY TOOL

432.00 335728-000ANNUAL PAYMENT

1,927.64 CHECK PAYAB 116963 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

30.95 441933-000R&M - EQUIPMENTWEINGARTZ116964PAYAB04/30/2020

403.80 300958-000EDUCATION & TRAININGWIXOM POLICE DEPARTMENT116965*#PAYAB04/30/2020

237.50 218728-000REMOTE CART - COUNCIL MEETING20/20 CAPTIONING & STENOCART, INC116966PAYAB05/07/2020

358.14 335733-000AMBULANCE COLLECTIONS FEE 4/1/20 -
04/30

ACCUMED GROUP116967PAYAB05/07/2020

1,182.00 371936-001SOFTWARE MAINTENANCEBS & A SOFTWARE116970PAYAB05/07/2020

2,233.32 690937-000MIAIRLINE TRAIL ENGINEERING SERVICESCITY OF WIXOM116973PAYAB05/07/2020

4,079.32 448921-00004/01/2020 - 04/30/2020DTE ENERGY116977PAYAB05/07/2020

67.74 736717-000MAY PAYMENTFIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INS/EYEMED116978*#PAYAB05/07/2020

1,844.66 218936-000IT SERVICESJEM IT SERVICES, LLC116980#PAYAB05/07/2020

513.66 300936-000IT SERVICES

466.68 335936-000IT SERVICES

2,825.00 CHECK PAYAB 116980 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

1,500.00 371708-002BUILDING DEPT. OFFICE HOURSMCKENNA ASSOCIATES INC116981*#PAYAB05/07/2020

356.25 801818-000103 E. WALLED LAKE DR.

1,856.25 CHECK PAYAB 116981 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

57,369.00 000123-00007/01/2020 - 07/01/2021MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL WORKERS COMP116982PAYAB05/07/2020

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 118 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 7/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 101 GENERAL FUND

239.03 736717-000MONTHLY PAYMENT - MAYPRINCIPAL FINANCIAL GROUP116983*#PAYAB05/07/2020

23.28 218727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESTRI COUNTY CLEANING SUPPLY, INC116986#PAYAB05/07/2020

23.27 300727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

23.27 441727-000OFFICE SUPPLIES

69.82 CHECK PAYAB 116986 TOTAL FOR FUND
101:

115,817.52 Total for fund 101 GENERAL FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 119 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 8/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 202 MAJOR ROAD FUND

120.78 462734-000INFRASTRUCTURE R&M - MINORAJAX MATERIALS CORPORATION116903*PAYAB04/23/2020

120.78 Total for fund 202 MAJOR ROAD FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 120 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 9/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 203 LOCAL ROAD FUND

281.82 462734-000INFRASTRUCTURE R&M - MINORAJAX MATERIALS CORPORATION116903*PAYAB04/23/2020

218.44 474736-000STREET SIGN HARDWAREDORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC116911*#PAYAB04/23/2020

500.26 Total for fund 203 LOCAL ROAD FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 121 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 10/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 265 DRUG FORFEITURE FUND

166.35 400920-00003/05/2020 - 04/04/2020AT&T116877PAYAB04/16/2020

641.99 399939-000R&M 2015 DODGE CHARGER 5602BELLE TIRE116879*#PAYAB04/16/2020

675.00 399980-000DIGITAL DOWNLOAD IN CAR CAMERASCONCERTO NETWORKS116884PAYAB04/16/2020

535.95 399939-000R&M 2011 CHRYSLER 200 LXDANS AUTO CLINIC116888*#PAYAB04/16/2020

998.00 399934-000R&M BUILDING/FACILITYUSA BIO CARE116898PAYAB04/16/2020

4,979.00 399981-001EQUIPMENT FOR POLICE VEHICLEWATCHGUARD VIDEO116899PAYAB04/16/2020

136.64 400920-00003/07/2020 - 04/06/2020SPRINT116935PAYAB04/23/2020

694.00 399939-000DISINFECTING & DECONTAMINATINGUSA BIO CARE116937PAYAB04/23/2020

840.00 400814-001PRISONER LOCKUP JAN. - MARCH 2020WIXOM POLICE DEPARTMENT116965*#PAYAB04/30/2020

9,666.93 Total for fund 265 DRUG FORFEITURE FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 122 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 11/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 271 LIBRARY FUND

458.01 738923-00012/17/2019 - 03/17/2020WATER RESOURCE COMMISSIONER116900PAYAB04/16/2020

35.37 738727-000OFFICE SUPPLIESTRI COUNTY CLEANING SUPPLY, INC116936*#PAYAB04/23/2020

96.42 738920-00004/16/2020 - 05/15/20GRID4 COMMUNICATIONS INC116951*#PAYAB04/30/2020

120.00 738727-001POSTAGEPOSTMASTER116960*#PAYAB04/30/2020

315.28 738941-000COPIER LEASE 4/13/20 - 05/13/20TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES116961*#PAYAB04/30/2020

750.66 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALSBRODART CO116969PAYAB05/07/2020

60.78 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALSCENGAGE LEARNING INC/GALE116971PAYAB05/07/2020

30.39 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALSCENGAGE LEARNING INC/GALE116972PAYAB05/07/2020

91.17 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

30.39 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

151.95 CHECK PAYAB 116972 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

49.32 738922-00003/06/2020 - 04/06/2020CONSUMERS ENERGY116974PAYAB05/07/2020

72.87 738921-00003/14/2020 - 04/14/2020DTE ENERGY116976PAYAB05/07/2020

175.90 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALSINGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES116979PAYAB05/07/2020

56.10 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

62.14 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

26.61 738982-002PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

106.51 738982-002AV MATERIALS

51.81 738982-002AV MATERIALS

479.07 CHECK PAYAB 116979 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

480.00 738932-000CUSTODIAL MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES/SERVICESIPES, TIM116984PAYAB05/07/2020

6,040.60 738936-000QUARTERLY CHARGES 04/1/20 - 6/30/20THE LIBRARY NETWORK116985PAYAB05/07/2020

523.18 738982-000PURCHASE OF PRINT MATERIALS

347.61 738982-000SUBSCRIPTION ORD. & INVOICING 4/1/20 -
6

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 123 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 12/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 271 LIBRARY FUND

67.00 738982-000BOOKBILLING - FEBRUARY 2020

787.50 738982-003ELECTRONIC MATERIALS

7,765.89 CHECK PAYAB 116985 TOTAL FOR FUND
271:

22.25 738936-001ONLINE SERVICESVISA WALLED LAKE SCHOOL EMP FCU116987PAYAB05/07/2020

10,857.87 Total for fund 271 LIBRARY FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 124 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 13/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 494 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT FUND

315.42 895921-00003/13/2020 - 04/13/2020DTE ENERGY116922PAYAB04/23/2020

586.00 900984-000310 E. WL DR. TRACED SERVICES LOCATE
UTI

D'ANGELO BROTHERS116975PAYAB05/07/2020

901.42 Total for fund 494 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 125 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 14/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 590 REFUSE FUND

26,472.48 538827-000RUBBISH PICK UP FOR MONTH OF MAYGFL ENVIRONMENTAL USA116949PAYAB04/30/2020

26,472.48 Total for fund 590 REFUSE FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 126 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 15/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 591 WATER AND SEWER FUND

36.89 533921-00003/14/2020 - 04/14/2020DTE ENERGY116913PAYAB04/23/2020

43.01 534921-00003/14/2020 - 04/14/2020DTE ENERGY116914PAYAB04/23/2020

74.81 533921-00003/14/2020 - 04/14/2020DTE ENERGY116915PAYAB04/23/2020

154.71 Total for fund 591 WATER AND SEWER FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 127 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 16/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 597 WATER CAPITAL FUND

2,579.50 536988-000TRI-A WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECTBOSS ENGINEERING116968*#PAYAB05/07/2020

2,579.50 Total for fund 597 WATER CAPITAL FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 128 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 17/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 701 TRUST AND AGENCY FUND

4,082.51 000220-002PILOT TAX MONEY-2017 WL VILLAWALLED LAKE CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS116940PAYAB04/27/2020

50.00 000264-092COMFORT CARE DECKER ROADBOSS ENGINEERING116968*#PAYAB05/07/2020

300.00 000264-118BEACHWOOD PUD

800.00 000264-125PUBLIC STORAGE PLAN REVIEW #1

575.00 000264-127MCDONALDS PLAN REVIEW AND WATER REVIEW

1,725.00 CHECK PAYAB 116968 TOTAL FOR FUND
701:

112.50 000264-1251901 E. WEST MAPLEMCKENNA ASSOCIATES INC116981*#PAYAB05/07/2020

131.25 000264-1271212 E. WEST MAPLE

150.00 000264-128100 W. MAPLE

393.75 CHECK PAYAB 116981 TOTAL FOR FUND
701:

6,201.26 Total for fund 701 TRUST AND AGENCY FUND

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 129 of 197



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF WALLED LAKE 18/18Page
:

05/11/2020 12:42 PM
User: MGROSS
DB: Walled Lake

CHECK NUMBER 116876 - 116987
Banks: PAYAB

AmountDeptAccountDescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

Fund: 705 ACCRUED INSURANCE LIABILITIES

3,011.14 000231-016ACCRUED MEDICAL INSURANCEBLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN116880PAYAB04/16/2020

14,972.98 000231-016MAY PAYMENTBLUE CARE NETWORK116906PAYAB04/23/2020

1,895.16 000231-019INSURANCE - MAYMADISON NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE116931*#PAYAB04/23/2020

409.40 000231-020MAY PAYMENTFIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INS/EYEMED116978*#PAYAB05/07/2020

1,961.01 000231-017MONTHLY PAYMENT - MAYPRINCIPAL FINANCIAL GROUP116983*#PAYAB05/07/2020

22,249.69 Total for fund 705 ACCRUED INSURANCE LIABILITIES

  '#'-INDICATES CHECK DISTRIBUTED TO MORE THAN ONE DEPARTMENT
  '*'-INDICATES CHECK DISTRIBUTED TO MORE THAN ONE FUND

195,522.42 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 130 of 197



MEMORANDUM 
City of Walled Lake ∙ 1499 E. West Maple Road ∙ Walled Lake, MI 48390 ∙ (248) 624-4847 

To: Walled Lake City Council 

From: Vahan Vanerian, City Attorney 

Re: Governor’s Disapproval of Proposed Amendment to Section 4.7 of City Charter. 

Date: May 13, 2020 

On April 24, 2020, Governor Gretchen Whitmer issued a formal disapproval of the proposed 
amendment to Section 4.7 of the Walled Lake City Charter. The proposed amendment sought to 
create a new “retroactive” ten (10) year term limit on the office of the City Manager. The proposal 
would further change the existing Charter provision that states: “The City Manager shall hold 
office at the pleasure of a majority of the Council”. The ballot proposal to amend Section 4.7 of the 
City Charter originated from a July 30, 2020 initiatory petition sponsored by “Take Back Walled 
Lake”, a Ballot Question Committee. The governor rejected the proposed charter amendment because 
it does not comply with state law. In disapproving the proposed charter amendment, the governor 
relied on the March 18, 2020 opinion of the state Attorney General Office. A copy of the governor’s 
rejection of the proposed amendment to section 4.7 of the City Charter is attached.      

Prior to placement of a proposed charter amendment on the ballot, state law requires review of the 
proposed amendment by both the state Attorney General and Governor’s offices for purposes of 
determining whether the proposed amendment complies with applicable state law requirements. MCL 

117.21(2) and MCL 117.22. Here, both the Attorney General and Governor’s office concluded the 
proposed charter amendment does not comply with state law. Specifically, the Attorney General 
found that because the amendment proposes a fundamental change in the form of the City’s 
government, the proposed change represents a “revision” rather than an “amendment” to the City’s 
Charter. State law requires an entirely different process for a “charter revision” that includes the 
creation of a charter revision committee and other procedural and substantive requirements which 
have not been met in this case. In support of its determination that the proposed “amendment” is 
legally defective, the Attorney General cited several prior failed attempts to adopt similar charter 
amendments in other Michigan municipalities. As explained by the Attorney General, the 
fundamental flaw with the proposed amendment is that it “would effectively destroy the city manager 
form of government” by subjecting the city manager to the control of two masters- the city council 
and the city voters- “and it would be impossible for him to serve both properly”.   A copy of the 
Attorney General Opinion is also attached.  

State law nevertheless requires inclusion of the of the ballot proposal on the November 2020 ballot 
(under state election law, all ballot proposals originating by initiatory petition containing the requisite 
number of qualified voter signatures are eligible for inclusion on the ballot). Pursuant to MCL 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 131 of 197



117.21(2), City Council may include an explanatory caption that would appear on the ballot with 
the ballot proposal question. The purpose of the explanatory caption is to ensure voters are fully 
informed and not mislead. Considering the significant legal deficiencies identified by both the 
state Attorney General and Governor’s offices, it is recommended that Council contemplates the 
adoption of an explanatory caption to further voter understanding of what they are being asked to 
vote for.  

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 132 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 133 of 197



March 18, 2020 

Honorable Gretchen Whitmer 
Governor, State of Michigan 
The George Romney Building 
Lansing, MI 48909 

Attention: Mark Totten 
Legal Counsel to the Governor 

Re: City of Walled Lake – Proposed Charter Amendment by 
Initiative Petition 

Section 4.7 – prohibits the current city manager who has served since 2010 
under the terms of this section at the pleasure of the city council from continuing 
in that position for more than 10 years, including time accrued before this 
charter amendment takes effect, thereby terminating the council’s authority to 
employ this city manager for an indefinite period  

Dear Governor Whitmer: 

You have requested review by this office of the referenced charter 
amendment.  The proposed amendment, as summarized above, is set forth in a 
petition submitted to the city clerk on July 30, 2019.  Attachment No. 1b. 

By letter to this office of August 19, 2019, the city clerk reported that “[t]he 
petition signatures have been canvassed and meet the requisite number of 
signatures of registered electors . . . .” citing Section 25 of the Home Rule City Act 
(HRCA), 1909 PA 279, MCL 117.1, et seq.  Attachment No. 2.   

It is my understanding that the city council has not yet taken action 
regarding this proposed amendment to provide for the clerk to file this ballot 
proposal with the county clerk for submission to the city voters.1   In addition, the 

1 The next general state election for the submission of this proposal for voter 
approval under Section 25(3) of the HRCA is on November 3, 2020.  See also Section 
2(j) of the Michigan Election Code, MCL 168.2(j) (the term “general election” is “the 
election held on the November regular election date in an even numbered year”). 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 134 of 197



council has not added an explanatory caption2 to the proposed question—nor, for 
that matter, addressed the issue, to my knowledge, as to whether it is responsible 
for adopting an appropriate question for the proposed amendment—as is sometimes 
undertaken by a city council when handling an initiatory amendment petition that 
does not have adequate ballot question pursuant to Section 21(2) of the HRCA.   

The proposed amendment  

As explained in the following analysis, I have reviewed the proposed 
amendment in light of the HRCA and conclude that the proposed amendment is not 
consistent with that act, due to the proposed amendment being a fundamental 
restructuring of city government, which may be accomplished for a home rule city 
only by a charter revision drafted by an elected charter commission operating under 
Sections 18–24 of that act.   

The proposed amendment is similar to an amendment proposed in 2006 for 
the Hillsdale city charter that would have also imposed a “term limitation” on its 
city manager.  In that instance, this office concluded that such a change may 
lawfully be accomplished only by charter revision and the conclusion of this office 
was adopted by Governor Granholm, who declined to approve that proposed 
amendment.  Attachment No. 3.  

In City of Midland v Arbury, 38 Mich App 771, 776 (1972), the Michigan 
Court of Appeals stated that a proposal by initiative petition to amend a city charter 
to provide for the recall of a city manager “would effectively destroy the city 
manager form of government” by subjecting the city manager to the control of two 
masters—the city council and the city voters— “and it would be impossible for him 
to serve both properly.”  The Court held that the amendment process under the 
HRCA was not available for a change in the form of a government of a home rule 
city, citing Kelly v Laing, 259 Mich 212, 217 (1932) (another initiative petition 
where one of the thirteen proposed amendments provided for abolishing the office of 
city manager).  See also OAG 1975-1976, No 4916, p 259 (January 22, 1976) 
(shifting powers from the city manager to the city mayor was deemed to be a 
fundamental change that could not lawfully be accomplished by an amendment).  In 
sum, having amendments such as this amendment and the one for Hillsdale in 2006 

2 For additional discussion of the provision in Section 21(2) of the HRCA regarding 
an explanatory caption added by a city council, see the last paragraph of this letter. 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 135 of 197



that would permit both city voters and the city council to both exercise control over 
the city manager would fundamentally restructure the city council-city manager 
form of government—which, according to these authorities, must be pursued 
through a charter revision drafted by a charter commission consisting of nine 
commissioners elected by the city voters, pursuant to Section 18 of the HRCA.   

If a charter commission were to be established for this city, the commission 
would be in a position to evaluate all aspects of city government, including the 
tension in the current Section 4.7, which provides that the city manager holds office 
at the pleasure of the council versus the current city manager’s employment 
agreement, which is structured to be in force from at least January 1, 2018 through 
January 1, 2023.  See Attachment No. 1a (current city manager’s employment 
agreement, Section 3C – Termination of Employment).  Such contractual 
arrangements are authorized for a city manager’s employment agreement by 
Section 3(d) of the HRCA, which permits a city council to make available “severance 
pay or other benefits in the event the chief administrative officer’s employment is 
terminated at the pleasure of the legislative body.”  Section 3(d) of the HRCA 
provides in relevant part as follows: 

If the city has an appointed chief administrative officer, the legislative 
body of the city may enter into an employment contract with the chief 
administrative officer extending beyond the terms of the members of 
the legislative body unless the employment contract is prohibited by 
the city charter.  An employment contract with a chief administrative 
officer shall be in writing and shall specify the compensation to be paid 
to the chief administrative officer, any procedure for changing the 
compensation, any fringe benefits, and other conditions of employment. 
The contract shall state if the chief administrative officer serves at the 
pleasure of the legislative body, and the contract may provide for 
severance pay or other benefits in the event the chief administrative 
officer's employment is terminated at the pleasure of the legislative 
body. [Emphasis added.]  

The foregoing language was added to Section 3(d) of the HRCA by 1993 PA 
207 in essentially its current form following the Court of Appeals restrictive 
decision in Hazel Park v Potter, 169 Mich App 714 (1988) which concluded that a 
city council did not have the authority to contractually obligate a future city council 
in an employment contract with a city manager.   

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 136 of 197



In any event, due to the requirement of Section 22 of the HRCA that all 
proposed amendments submitted by a qualified initiative petition shall be 
submitted to the city’s voters for approval, even if the Governor declines to approve 
the charter amendment, the proposed amendment is required to be submitted to the 
city’s voters for approval.  For example, the 2006 Hillsdale amendment, discussed 
above, was submitted to Hillsdale’s voters notwithstanding Governor Granholm’s 
having declined to approve that amendment. 

The ballot language for the proposed amendment 

The Attorney General has a separate responsibility to review the proposed 
ballot language for compliance with the requirements of Section 21(2) of the HRCA, 
which mandate that the ballot language be limited to 100 words and accurately and 
impartially describe the proposed amendment.  As set forth in this initiative 
petition, the ballot language is incomplete, because while it informs the voters that 
the amendment “prohibit[s] an individual from serving as city manager for more 
than 10 years in total, including any time accrued as city manager before the 
charter amendment takes effect”, it does not disclose that the amendment will 
cancel out the council’s authority under Section 4.7 to employ the current city 
manager for an indefinite period and result in the immediate termination of the 
current city manager’s employment by the city.3 

Explanatory Caption 

Although Section 21(2) provides that a city council may add an explanatory 
caption if the petition for the proposed amendment includes a question, it is unclear 
as to whether such option applies here when the pending petition has a defective 
ballot question.  It is also noted that this office does not review an explanatory 
caption adopted by a city council, because such review is not expressly provided in 
Section 21(2) of the HRCA or anywhere else in that act.  For a court order involving  

3 As pointed out by the city attorney on the second page of his letter of August 7, 
2019, which is a part of Attachment No. 1, “the current City Manager reaches his 10 
year anniversary [in the office of city manager] in May 2020 . . . .” 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 137 of 197



Honorable Gretchen Whitmer

City of Walled Lake
Page 5
March 18, 2020

a disputed explanatory caption, see Ann Arbor Central Park Ballot Committee v
City of Ann Arbor, COA Docket No. 345248 (8/31/18). Attachment No. 4.

Sincerely,

)n^|
leorge ^Iworth
3sistant Attorney General

State Operations Division
(517) 335-7573

GMErbb

cc: Vahan C. Vanerian, City Attorney (w/encs.)
Jennifer A. Stuart, City Clerk (w/encs.)

Attachments:

1. Letter from the Governor's Legal Counsel office to the Attorney General
office dated August 12, 2019, requesting review of this proposed charter
amendment, which encloses an August 7, 2019 letter to the Governor and
the Attorney General from the Walled Lake city attorney submitting for
review the proposed amendment (to the Governor) and the proposed
ballot language (to the Attorney General) with two attachments:

a. The current city manager's emplo3anent agreement with the city, 12
pages, and

b. A PDF copy of the petition for the proposed amendment which
includes the text of the proposed amendment and the ballot
language for the proposed amendment on the reverse side of the
petition.

2. Letter dated August 19, 2019, to the Attorney General from the Walled
Lake city clerk confirming the sufficiency of signatures on petitions
submitted in support of the proposed amendment.

3. 2006 Hillsdale charter amendment correspondence including letters from
the city, the Governor's office, and the Attorney General's office.

4. Ann Arbor Central Park Ballot Committee v City ofAnn Arbor, COA
Docket No. 345248 (8/31/18).

2019-0262001-A

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 138 of 197



 
 

Attachment 1 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 139 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 140 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 141 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 142 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 143 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 144 of 197



Attachment 1a 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 145 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 146 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 147 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 148 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 149 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 150 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 151 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 152 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 153 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 154 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 155 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 156 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 157 of 197



 
 

Attachment 1b 
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 158 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 159 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 160 of 197



 
 

Attachment 2 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 161 of 197



OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 

L. DENNIS WHITT 
CITY MANAGER 

JENNIFER. A. STUART 
CITY CLERK 

August 19, 2019 

CITY OF WALLED LAKE, MICHIGAN 

1 499 E. WEST MAPLE 
WALLED LAKE, Ml 48390 

(248) 624-4847 

jstuart@walledlake.com 

Honorable Attorney General Dana Nessel 
G. Mennen Williams Building 
525 W. Ottawa Street 
P.O. Box 30212 
Lansing, MI 48933 

Re: Initiative Petition Submission City of Walled Lake Charter Amendment Proposal 

Dear Attorney General Nessel, 

The City of Walled Lake, Walled Lake, MI received an initiatory petition for a Walled Lake City 
Charter amendment. The sponsor submitted the petition July 30, 2019. The petition signatures 
have been canvassed and meet the requisite number of signatures of registered electors as per 
MCL 117.25. The proposed charter amendment has been submitted to the Governor's office for 
review with an explanatory cover letter from our City Attorney and will be going before our City 
Council at the first meeting following the filing of the petition which is scheduled for August 20, 
2019. Enclosed is a copy of the letter for your review. 

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions or comments. 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 162 of 197



 
 

Attachment 3 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 163 of 197



STATE OF MICHIGAN

DEPARTMENT OF ATTORNEY GENERAL

P.O. Box 30212

Lansing. Michig.an 48909

MJKE COX

ATTORNEY GENERAL

August 30, 2006

Honorable Jennifer M. Granholm

Governor, State of Michigan
The George Romney Building
Lansing, Ml 48909

Attention: Kelly G. Keenan
Legal Counsel to the Governor

Dear Governor Granholm:

Re: City of Hillsdale — proposed charter amendments by initiative petition

Chapter 5, new section - requires that the City Council shall maintain 4 fulltime
fire fighters to staff the City's Fire Department, that the City's Director of Public
Safety not be counted as a fulltime firefighter, and that the fulltime firefighters
shall keep the City's fire station staffed 24 hours a day 365 days per year
(Proposal No. 1)

Chapter 4, Section 4.10 (c) - provides that the term of service of the City
Manager shall be limited to 9.5 years cumulatively in any 20-year period of time
and that service provided by the current City Manager shall apply to this limit of
9.5 years (Proposal No. 2)

Chapter 5, Section 5.4 (b) - provides that in the event of a vacancy in the office
of Mayor, Councilperson, City Clerk or City Treasurer, the unexpired term shall
be filled at the next regularly-scheduled election date (Proposal No. 3)

You have referred to us for examination these proposed charter amendments proposed by
initiative petition as set forth in the resolutions of the City Council adopted at its meeting on
August 28, 2006, which also adopted the ballot language for these proposed amendments. I have
examined the proposed amendments in light of the Home Rule City Act (HRCA), 1909 PA 279,
MCL 117.1 et seq, and other applicable law, and cannot recommend your approval of these
proposed amendments for the reasons set forth in this letter.

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 164 of 197



Hon. Jennifer M. Granholm

Page 2

Proposal No. 1 imposes minimum staffing requirements for the City's Fire Department
and fire station. The proposal requires that four fulltime fire fighters are to staff the City's Fire
Department and fire station around the clock throughout the year. Given the typical uncertainties
of any employee's future availability for duty, a mandate by charter amendment requiring the
presence of even one out of four fulltime fire fighters in the fire station at all times does not
appear to be feasible for City officials to comply with - given the many reasons which may
account for the unscheduled absence of such personnel, including, for example, unanticipated
termination of the City employment and sick leave taken for illnesses and injuries. The proposed
amendment imposes a duty of staffing both the Fire Department and the fire station that is not
likely to be filled by only four fulltime fire fighters.

Proposal No. 2 imposes a 9.5-year term limit on the service of the current City Manager.
According to the resolution of the City Council, the City Manager has already served in that
position since July 1, 1997 so that his 9.5 years of permitted service as a City Manager would
expire on December 31, 2006 if this proposed amendment is adopted. The resolution of the City
Council also states that the Council has appointed the City Manager to serve a three-year term
ending June 30, 2007 pursuant to Section 4.6 of the City Charter which provides that the City
Council shall appoint a City Manager "for a period of not less than one year nor more than five
years." Since the proposed charter amendment would end the term of the current City Manager
on December 31, 2006, the proposed amendment is contrary to Section 5(d) of the HRCA which
precludes a charter amendment from shortening the fixed term of an appointed or elected city
official. Moreover, in City of Midland vArbury, 38 Mich App 771, 776 (1972), the Michigan
Court of Appeals stated that a proposal to amend a city charter to provide for the recall of a city
manager "would effectively destroy the city manager form of government" and, as such, should
be pursued - if at all - by a charter revision proposed by a charter revision commission consisting
of nine commissioners elected by the city voters pursuant to Section 18 of the HRCA. The Court
held that the amendment proeess under the HRCA was not available for a change in the form of a
government of a home rule city, citing Kelly v Laing, 259 Mich 212, 217 (1932). See also OAG,
1975-1976, No 4916, p 259 (January 22,1976).

Proposal No. 3 would eliminate the charter's current provision for filling of vacancies in
the elected offices of the City on a timely basis by the City Council in some instances and by a
special election in other instances. The proposed amendment requires that all vacancies be filled
"at the next regularly scheduled election date." However, as noted in the resolution of the City
Council, the City's regularly scheduled elections are held only once every two years - in
November of the odd-numbered years. While Section 3.12 of the Charter provides for primary
elections, those elections occur only when there are more than two candidates for a specific
office to be filled in the November odd-year election. Since the terms of the City Treasurer and
City Clerk are only for two years, the proposed amendment would preclude the filling of those
offices during any portion of their two-year terms. For the Mayor and Council members who
serve for four-year terms, those vacancies could last for nearly two years, depending on the date
of the vacancy, without being filled until the next regularly-scheduled city election in November
of each odd-numbered year. Accordingly, the proposed amendment's precluding of the filling of
these offices - all of which are required for cities by Section 3(a) of the HRCA - would be
contrary to that section's requirement for each city to have officials occupying these offices and
carrying out the duties of these offices.

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 165 of 197



Hon. Jennifer M. Granholm

Page 3

At the request of the Assistant City Manager Linda Brown, I am enclosing her e-mail
message to me of August 29, 2006, setting forth her comments regarding Proposal No. 2, along
with excerpts from the City Charter that she forwarded with her message.

It should be noted, nevertheless, that Section 22 of the HRCA provides that all proposed
amendments submitted by initiative petition are required to be submitted to the voters of a city
for their approval - even if the Governor has declined to approve the charter amendments.

Under Section 21 of the HRCA, the ballot language for proposed charter amendments is
subject to the review of the Attorney General for compliance with the requirements of that
section, including impartiality and accuracy. I have reviewed the ballot language as set forth in
the resolutions of the City Council and approve the ballot language as being in conformity with
the requirements of Section 21 of the HRCA. However, this approval of the ballot language
should not be construed as a favorable recommendation to you of these proposed amendments
for the reasons set forth above in this letter regarding the deficiencies in these proposed
amendments.

Very truly yours.

tif-
T

George M. El worth
Assistant Attorney General
Opinions and Municipal Affairs Division
Tel No: (517)373-9100
Fax No: (517)241-3097

GME:mr

Encs.

c: Parke Hayes, City Clerk
Lewis Loren, City Attorney
Linda Brown, Assistant City Manager

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 166 of 197



Page 1 of 1

Elworth, George

From: Linda Brown [acm@ci.hillsdale.mi.usl

Sent: Tuesday, August 29, 2006 1:27 PM

To: elworthg@mich.gov

Subject: City of Hillsdale Charter Amendments

Mr. Elworth,

It is my understanding that your office and Mr. Keenan's office will soon be reviewing the language of proposed
Charter amendments. Pursuant to the direction of our City Attorney, Lewis Loren, I am enclosing for your
consideration during your review, three (3) pages from the City's current charter. As you can see, one of the
petitions requests an amendment to Section 4.10 (c) of the Charter to limit the term of service of the city
manager. However, it appears as though Section 4.6 of the charter actually deals with the details of the City
Manager appointment, while 4.10 (c) includes, among other things, the chain of command for the administrative
service as being responsible to the City Manager, etc.

I am also requesting that you forward this information to Mr. Keenan for his review as well. Thank you for your
assistance in this matter.

Linda Brown

City of Hillsdale
Assistant City Manager
Phone: (517)437-6445
Fax: (517)437-6450

8/29/2006 May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 167 of 197



CHARTER §4/

paid such necessary bona fide expenses incurred
in servuce on behalf of the City as are authorized

by the Council and itemized.
Editor*s note—The compensation of Mayor and council-

man is determined by the Local Officers Compensation Com
mission, which was created by ordinance in section 2-131 of
the Code of Ordinances pursuant to the provisions of MCL
117.5c.

Section 4.5. [Mayor pro tern.]

The Majw and Council shall, at its first meet
ing following each regular City election and after
the newly elected members take office, elect one of
its members to serve as Mayor Pro-Tern, for a
term expiring at the first council meeting follow
ing the next regular City election. Such election
shall be by written ballot and by majority vote of
the Mayor and members of the Council in office at
the time. In event of absence or disability of both
the Mayor and Mayor Pro-Tem, the Council may
designate another of its members to serve as
acting Mayor during such absence or disability.

Section 4.6» City manager appointment.

The Council shall, within 90 days after any
vacancy exists in the position of City Manager,
appoint a City Manager for a period of not less
than one year nor more than five years and shall
fix his compensation. The City Manager shall be
chief administrative officer of the City govern
ment. He shall be selected on the basis of his

executive and administrative qualifications with
special reference to his training and experience
and without regard to his political or religious
preferences. If he is not a resident of the City at
the time of his appointment, he shall become a
resident thereof within 90 days after his appoint
ment, and shall so remain throughout his tenure
in office. No member of the Council shall be

eligible for the position of City Manager within
two years after the expiration of his last term on
the Council. The City Manager shall hold office at
the pleasure of a majority of the City Council, but
he shall not be removed from office during a
period of 90 days following any regular City
election except by the affirmative vote of seven
members of the City Council.

Section 4.7. Function and duties of city man
ager.

The functions and duties of the City Manager
shall be:

(a) To appoint, with the consent of the Coun
cil, the heads of the following City Depart
ments: City Engineer; Superintendent of
Streets, Sewer, and Rubbish; Superinten
dent of Electric Power and Water Plant;
Superintendent of Electric and Water Dis
tribution; Superintendent of Disposal
Plant; W^ater Analyst; and to remove such
department heads with the consent of the
Council.

(b) To see that all department heads of the
several City Departments completely and
faithfully perform their respective duties.

(c) To coordinate and supervise all public
improvements, works and undertakings
of the City. He shall have charge of the
construction, repair, maintenance, and
cleaning of streets, sidewalks, bridges,
pavements, sewers and of any and all
other public buildings or property belong
ing to the City. He shall coordinate and
supervise all City utilities and shall be
responsible for the preservation of prop
erty, tools, and appliances of the City, and
shall maintain an inventory of all City
owned property.

(d) To see that all terms and conditions im

posed in favor of the City or its inhabit
ants in any public utility franchise, or in
any contracts, are faithfully kept and per
formed.

(e) To recommend an annual budget to the
Council and to administer the budget as
finally adopted under policies formulated
by the Council and to keep the Council
fully advised at all times as to the finan
cial condition and needs of the City; es
tablish and maintain a central purchas
ing servnce for the several administrative

units of the City.

(f) To recommend to the Council for adoption
such measures as he may deem necessar>'
or expedient; attend all meetings of the

CHT:13

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 168 of 197



HILLSDALE CODE

Council and Board of Public Works, with
the right to take part in all discussions,
but without the right to vote.

(g) To exercise and perform all administra
tive functions of the City that are not
imposed by this charter or any City ordi
nance upon some other official.

(h) To j)erform such other duties as may be
prescribed by this charter or as may be
required of him by ordinance or by direc
tion of the Council.

Section 4.8. Acting city manager.

The Council may appoint or designate an act-
hig City Manager for a period not to exceed sixty
days during the period of a vacancy in the office or
during the absence of the City Manager from the
City and shall have all the responsibilities, du
ties, functions and authority of the City Manager.

Section 4.9. Duties of mayor.

(a) Insofar as required by statute, and for all
ceremonial purposes, the Mayor shall be the ex
ecutive head of the City. He shall have a voice and
vote in all proceedings of the Council, equal with
that of other members of the Council, but shall
have no veto power. He shall be the presiding
officer of the Council.

(b) The Mayor shall, with the approval of the
Council, make the following appointments: Chief
of Police, Fire Chief, City Attorney, Board of
Public Works, Engineering Committee, Board of
Public Health, City Hospital Board, Board of
Special Assessors, Board of Appeals, City Plan
ning Commission, Recreation Commission,
Lakeview Cemetery Trustees, and the following
standing committees of the Council: Finance, Street
and Rubbish, Police, Fire, Ordinance, Airport,
City Improvement, Industrial Relations, City Hall-
Parks, and any other in the future that the
Council may deem necessary.

(c) The Mayor shall be a conservator of the
peace and in emergencies may exercise within the
City the powers conferred upon Sheriffs to sup
press riot and disorder, and shall have authority
to command the assistance of all able-bodied

citizens to aid in the enforcement of the ordi
nances of the City and suppress riot and disorder.

(d) The Mayor shall execute or authenticate by
his signature such instruments as the Council,
this charter, or statute or laws of the United
States shall require.

(e) Except as may be required by statute the
Mayor shall exercise only such powers as this
charter or the Council shall specifically confer
upon him.

(f) In the absence or disability of the Mayor,
the Mayor Pro-Tern shall perform the duties of
Mayor, In the absence or Disability of both the
designated Acting Mayor shall perform such du
ties.

Section 4.10. The administrative service.

(a) The administrative officers of the City shall
be the City Manager, Clerk, Treasurer, and Attor
ney.

(b) The Mayor and Council may, by ordinance,
create additional administrative offices and may
by resolution combine any administrative offices,
except the office of Treasurer, in any manner it
deems necessary or advisable for the proper and
efficient operation of the City.

(c) Except as may be otherwise provided aR
administrative officers of the City shall be ap
pointed by the Mayor with the consent of the
Council for an indefinite period, shall be respon
sible to the City Manager, and shall have their
compensation fixed by the Mayor and Council.

(d) Except as may be otherwise provided by
statute or this charter, the Mayor and Council
shall establish by ordinance such departments of
the City as it deems necessary or advisable and
shall prescribe therein the functions of each de
partment and the duties, authorities and respon
sibilities of the officers of each department.

(e) All personnel employed by the City or ad
ministrative officers or deputy administrative of
ficers by, or under the authority of, this charter or
who are not otherwise declared by this charter to
be officers shall be deemed to be employees of the
City.

CHT:14

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 169 of 197



CHARTER § 4.15

(f) The head of each department shall have
authority to hire and discharge the employees of
such department with approval of the City Man
ager.

Section 4.11. City clerk functions and du
ties.

(a) The Clerk shall be the Clerk of the Council

and shall attend all meetings of the Council and
shall keep a permanent journal of its proceedings
in the English language.

(b) The Clerk shall be custodian of the City
seal and shall affix it to all documents and instru

ments requiring the seal, and shall attest the
same. He shall also be custodian of all papers,
documents, and records pertaining to the City, the
custody of which is not otherwise provided for.

(c) The Clerk shaU certify by his signature all
ordinances and resolutions enacted or passed by
the Council.

(d) The Clerk shall provide and maintain in
his office a supply of forms for all petitions re
quired to be filed for any purpose by the provi
sions of this charter.

(e) The Clerk shall be responsible, unless the
functions are assigned to some other officer by
ordinance, for the maintenance of a system of
accounts of the City which shall conform to any
imiform system required by law and to generally
accepted principles and practices of governmental
accounting, and for the submission of monthly
financial statements to the Mayor and Council.

(f) The Clerk shall give to the proper depart
ment officials ample notice of the expiration or
termination of any franchises, contracts or agree
ments.

(g) The Clerk shall have power to administer
oaths of office.

(h) The Clerk shall perform such other duties
as may be prescribed by him by this charter or by
the Mayor and Council.

Section 4.12. City treasurer compensation.

The City Treasurer shall receive such annual
compensation as shall be fixed by ordinance. The

ordinance fixing his salary may not be amended
less than ninety days before any regular annual
City election. Until the Council shall provide
otherwise by ordinance, the salary of the City
Treasurer shall be $1,200. per year.

Editor's note—^Compensation of the city treasurer is
determined by the iocal officers compensation commission
which was created by ordinance in section 12-131 of the Code
of Ordinances, pursuant to MCL 117.5.

Section 4.13. City treasurer: functions and
duties.

(a) The Treasurer shall have the custody of all
moneys of the City, the Clerk's bond, and all
evidences of value belonging to the City, or held in
trust by the City.

(b) He shall receive all money belonging to and
receivable by the City that may be collected by
any officials or employees of the City including
license fees, taxes, assessments, and all other
charges belonging to and payable to the City, and
shall in all cases give a receipt therefor.

(c) He shall keep and deposit all moneys or
funds in such manner and only in such places as
the Mayor and Council may determine and shall
report the same in detail to the Clerk.

(d) He shall have such powers, duties, and
prerogatives in regard to the collection and cus
tody of state, county, and schools district, and City
taxes and moneys as are conferred by law to
enforce the collector of state, county, township,
and school district taxes upon real and personal
property.

(e) He shall perform such other duties as may
be prescribed for him by this charter, by the
council, or state or federal law.

Section 4.14. City attorney appointment.

The Mayor and Council shall appoint a City
Attorney for an indefinite period who shall serve
at their pleasure, and shall fix his compensation.

Section 4.15. City attorney functions and du
ties.

(a) The City Attorney shaD act as legal advisor
to, and attorney and counsel for, the Council and
all its members in matters relating to their offi-

CHT:15

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 170 of 197



State OF Michigan
JENNIFE^^^HOLM OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR JOHN D. CHERRY, jr.

LANSING LT. GOVERNOR

August 31, 2006

Parke Hayes, Clerk SEP 0 6 2006
City of Hillsdale
97 North Broad Street

Hillsdale, MI 49242

Dear Mr. Hayes:

I am writing regarding your request for approval of proposed amendments to
the Hillsdale City Charter. The amendments were proposed by voter initiated petition
for placement on the ballot at the general election to be held on November 7, 2006

The Department of Attorney General reviewed the proposed amendments in
light of the Home Rule City Act, 1909 PA 279, MCL 117.1 et seq, and other applicable
law. In a letter dated August 30, 2006, Assistant Attorney General George Elworth
advises that the Proposal No. 1, which imposes minimum staffing requirements for
the city s fire department and fire station, is not feasible for city officials to comply
with. He further advises that Proposal No. 2, which imposes a 9.5 term limit on the
city manger, and Proposal No. 3, which changes the manner for filling vacancies in
elected city offices, do not comply with the provisions of the Home Rule City Act.
Please refer to the August 30, 2006 letter from the Department of Attorney General
for further details regarding these objections.

Based on the recommendation of the Department of Attorney General, I am
unable to approve the amendments to the Hillsdale City Charter. It should be noted,
however, under Section 22 of the Home Rule City Act all amendments submitted by '
initiated petition are required to be submitted to the voters of a city for their approval
even if the Governor declines to approve them.

M. Granholm

Dvernor

c: George M. Elworth, Assistant Attorney General
Lewis Loren, City Attorney
Linda Brown, Assistant City Manager

GEORGE W. ROMNEY BUILDING *111 SOUTH CAPITOL AVENUE • LANSING. MICHIGAN 48909
www.michigan.gov May 19, 2020 Council Packet 

Page 171 of 197



STATE OF MICHIGAN

DEPARTMENT OF ATTORNEY GENERAL

P.O. Box 30212

Lansing. Michigan 48909

MIKE COX

ATTORNEY GENERAL

September 21, 2006

Honorable Jennifer M. Granholm

Governor, State of Michigan
The George Romney Building
Lansing, MI 48909

Attention: Kelly G. Keenan
Legal Counsel to the Governor

Dear Governor Granholm:

Re: City of Hillsdale - proposed charter amendments by initiative petition

Chapter 5, new section - requires that the City Council shall maintain 4 full-time
fire fighters to staff the City's Fire Department, that the City's Director of Public
Safety not be counted as a full-time firefighter, and that the full-time firefighters
shall keep the City's fire station staffed 24 hours a day 365 days per year
(Proposal No. 1)

Chapter 4, Section 4.10 (c) - provides that the term of service of the City
Manager shall be limited to 9.5 years cumulatively in any 20 year period of time
and that service provided by the current City Manager shall apply to this limit of
9.5 years (Proposal No. 2)

Chapter 5, Section 5.4 (b) - provides that in the event of a vacancy in the office
of Mayor, Councilperson, City Clerk or City Treasurer, the unexpired term shall
be filled at the next regularly scheduled election date (Proposal No. 3)

Enclosed, for your information, is a letter, dated September 11, 2006, that I received from
Ted N. Jansen, M.A., regarding these proposed amendments for the City of Hillsdale. My letter
to you of August 30, 2006, sets forth the reasons why these amendments were not recommended
for your approval. Thereafter, on August 31, 2006, you wrote to the City Clerk, informing him
that, on the basis of the recommendation of the Department of Attorney General, you were not
able to approve these amendments.

After review of Mr. Jansen's letter, 1 continue to see no basis on which 1 could
recommend your approval of these proposed amendments.

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 172 of 197



Hon. Jennifer M. Granholm

Page 2

As to proposal number one, although Mr. Jansen maintains that the City fire station has
historically been staffed with 3 to 6 full-time firefighters, the proposed charter amendment
mandating minimum staffing by 4 full-time firefighters is not feasible, from my perspective, in
that it does not provide for situations where the City's full-time fire fighters are not available for
staffing the fire station due to illness, injury, termination, or for any other reason.

As to proposal number two, 1 do not agree with Mr. Jansen that the City Manager does
not have a fixed term of office since Section 4.6 of the City Charter states that the City Council
shall appoint "a City Manager for a period of not less than one year nor more than five years"
who according to Section 4.6 is to "hold office at the pleasure of a majority of the Council."

As to proposal number three, I do not agree with Mr. Jansen that special elections have
been eliminated. In fact, MCL 168.641(3) provides that in general, "a special election shall be
held on a regular election date." In addition, while Mr. Jansen states that "[tjhis proposal did not
refer to the City's regularly scheduled elections held every two years", the terms of the proposal
refer to the "next regularly scheduled election date" and the only elections regularly scheduled in
the City are those elections held in the City in each odd-numbered year.

In summary, nothing in the attached letter of September 11, 2006, from Mr. Jansen
provides a basis for recommending your approval of these proposed amendments. 1 am sending
information copies of this letter to Mr. Jansen, as well as to the City officials who were sent
copies of my letter to you of August 30, 2006.

GME:mr

Encs.

c: Parke Hayes, City Clerk
Lewis Loren, City Attorney
Linda Brown, Assistant City Manager
Ted N. Jansen, M.A.

Very truly yours.

/V.
George M. Elworth
Assistant Attorney General
Opinions and Municipal Affairs Division
Tel No; (517)373-9100
Fax No: (517)241-3097

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 173 of 197



Sep^ 11 2006 9;g7nM HP LRSERJET FRX p.l

Septend)er 11,2006

George Ehvorth,
Asastairt Attoniey Cknend

and Municipal Aflhiis Divisioii
Attorney General's Office
State ofMid^an

Dear Sir,
This letter is in reiqjonse to the letter dated Angust 30,2006 winch you had sent to Kelfy G.

Keeora, Legd Coimsd to die Govemra-m re: Gily ofm^dale - iwc^Kwed chater wn^menis by
initiailxve petition.

Proposal 1: Inreferejce toyour aated reasons as to the feasSnBty of tJw nrimmum staffing
requttieniCTisfijr die City RreDepartoient and the fire station, you noted that "The proposed
siiMWMliiiant jmposwa a dirty nfataffing l»othtlie"FifeDqpaitnMnt and file file Station that is not
likely to be filled tyyonfy lour fiili4itne fire fights" At pres^ there are onfy three fuU-time fire
fighters on staffi The fire aatioo has hem staflfed around the do^ one of the three firefig^ders
snne June, 2003. Prka to this there were four fiiB-time fighters from 1995 to 2003 until one
retired and wi|s never replaced. Staffiipgfiom: 1993 -1994 -Ihieefirdi^er^ 1986-1992 -4
fir^^iters; 1984 -1985 - 5 firefigfatiens; 1974 -1983 - 6 fir^ghters on staff. These three
firefighters work a rotating 24 hours on/ 48 hours Of course iDims, vacation, truning have
altered that sdiedule. fii cme period oftime last year, one firefi^erwodrod every odierdr^ for
35 (%s. These three foefighters also re^iond to fires on their days off B is not unusual for a
firefighta* to w<Mrk every other day for 7 -10 di^ to cover for vacations^ iQness, etc. Based upon
thdr tistxxy stafi&ig the fie station, yottf assimptkm is oKXKrect and yom objection fo das
amendnoait shoidd be withdrawn.

Frt^iosd 3gl|ln8 proposal would *liniliMt» fiffing vacancies m office by rq^xuntmeiit orliy a
qiedal electiqiL The new Cansdidate Election Law has dumnated any qiedal dections. Instead,
die State has sdiediiled election dates appranniali^ every 90 days. This inoposal states that the
unexfwed term tiiall be fitted at die next regubily-sdieduled dection date wludi would be at the
eaifiest date set by die new ConsoifidafedBection Law. There would not be the poaaible two year
wait to the next election wMch you refoned to in your ofa^ctlon. GBllsdale County Clerk, hfr.
Trnn Mdir nho has been the County Cede fin* nuB^ years is wefl vosed in die new law and has
^ated that the longest time an office would be vacant fixMu the time of d^ announcetnetit to the
dectitm date is four ami oae-half months and be filled mudi stxiner depeodiiig upon vtiien the
yacan^ occuned in refermoe to the State sdieduleddectimi dates. Thg proposal not iTfififT to
tte City's sdiedified dectkitis fadd evoy two years. The rorrtfnf rrfthii proposal is in
l|e^fi^ whh>tliB requirenients ofdie^i^w Consolidate Etection Law. Furtterniofie^-giniie ting— ^
pos^ly of qiecial dections has been diimnafed by this new State law, if the Com^ Jhl'im
TT^"* " *>«» jgn «, ^ nuirtfT. thfn ymir T>Tnnr rntrr
scenario of Inrving a vacant office fiir up to two years would occur. This pn^osd^prevenEs dntt^

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 174 of 197



Sep 11 2006 9;g7RM HP LRSERJET FRX p,2

v.ut

c.

ftomhappemng. TTierefoK^ the objection^ thb
Ptoposd 2: Tins proposal calls fiw setting a liine of serwe of a C%Maiiag^ Yott
noted that the present City Manager's contract does not expiieugtil five mopftsaftCT
efiecth^ date of tins i«0|»saL You refiwed to flie Oty nranagerjs contract M to
tfTT" TTtiiiif#. tm ftlflcted official who can not be recalled wittout just cause, the City Manager perCSty Caiarter serves at flie wn the CoundL The Qly Charter and the City Manager 8 conteacl
res^ the ryit for the Chy to tenninatc saM service WITHOtJT at any line. Tlie^
foe City Mant^ does not have afixedtemi of office. What is fi«d ishis renmnOTtion. If he istaminated without cause, he will receive his salary unta the ̂ ofthe contract term. Should tins
proposal pasa» Ae City Manner vntt redSvB aB nwnries due Km per contract imtil h&y 30,2007
and ofoer bewfits (healfo insuraiwe) due lain beyond the contract end date. TMs proposal does
not provide for arecall, it just hunts the time service of foe CSty Manager vnth no loss of
hvcotne to individual pm* existing contract. Therefore, you are asked to ronove your objection
totinsprt^sal.

Wf, the peO|fo^ would ajqtreciate your mnoval of your objecticms to these pre^(K>sals.

Respectfully Yp

TedK. Jansen, M.J
Sptdceqiaacm > NOiMQRKlTtAP- A Citizens Initiative Movemeid

104 misdate St,
l]p]sdale,ML 49242

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 175 of 197



 
 

Attachment 4 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 176 of 197



Court of Appeals, State of Michigan 

ORDER 

Ann Arbor Central Park Ballot Committee v City of Ann Arbor 

Docket No. 345248 

LC No. 18-000816-CZ 

William B. Murphy 
Presiding Judge 

David H. Sawyer 

Douglas B. Shapiro 
Judges 

The Court orders that the motion for immediate consideration is GRANTED. 

Pursuant to MCR 7.205(E)(2), in lieu of granting the application for leave to appeal, the 
Court PEREMPTORILY REVERSES the August 22, 2018 bench ruling of the Washtenaw Circuit 
Court, VA CATES the August 27, 2018 order effectuating that bench ruling, and REMANDS this matter 
to the circuit court for further proceedings. The circuit court abused its discretion when it declined to 
waive the timelines governing motions for summary disposition when presented with emergent 
circumstances beyond the control of the parties. The circuit court further erred when it denied plaintiffs 
motion for summary disposition. The Ann Arbor City Council exceeded the discretion conferred upon it 
by MCL 117.21 (2) when it adopted the July 2, 2018 Resolution. MCL 117.21 (2) confers discretion on 
the city council to add an "explanatory caption" to the language of a ballot proposal. Assigning the term 
"explanatory caption" its plain and ordinary meaning, the term means a title or heading employed to 
make the ballot question plain or understandable. Alken-Ziegler, Inc v Hague, 283 Mich App 99, 102; 
767 NW2d 668 (2009); Merriam-Webster's Collegiate Dictionary (11th ed). The language in the July 2, 
2018 Resolution does not serve this purpose. Rather, the language provides information that advocates a 
specific election outcome. On remand, and by the close of business on this date of August 31, 2018, the 
Washtenaw Circuit Court shall enter an order granting plaintiffs motion for partial summary disposition 
and declaring that the ballot language contained in the July 2, 2018 Resolution null and void. The 
Circuit Court shall also direct defendant city clerk to forward to the Washtenaw County Election 
Commission the ballot language approved by the June 18, 2018 city council Resolution for placement on 
the November 6, 2018 General Election Ballot. This order has immediate effect. MCR 7.215(F)(2). 
This Court does not retain jurisdiction. 

A true copy entered and certified by Jerome W. Zimmer Jr., Chief Clerk, on 

AUG 3 1 2018 
Date 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 177 of 197



MEMORANDUM 
City of Walled Lake ∙ 1499 E. West Maple Road ∙ Walled Lake, MI 48390 ∙ (248) 624-4847 

To: 

From: 

Re: 

Date: 

Walled Lake City Council 

Vahan Vanerian, City Attorney 

 Zoning Map update 

May 11, 2020 

Both state law and the City’s zoning ordinance require the City to maintain an official zoning map 
containing certain zoning information pertaining to the parcels and land areas located within the City’s 
municipal boundaries. The approved zoning map is considered part of the zoning ordinance. 
Consequently, adoption of a zoning map requires the same adoption procedures and requirements that 
apply to the adoption and amendment of the zoning ordinance itself (i.e. recommendation following 
public hearing by the planning commission, first and second reading by City Council). The current 
City zoning map was approved by the planning commission and adopted by City Council in late 1989. 
Since then, the City clerk has periodically certified updates to the zoning map. However, there appear 
to be some discrepancies between the various zoning maps published by the City over the years as it 
relates to the proper zoning designation of certain parcels, particularly with respect to certain parcels 
adjacent to zoning district boundaries. The City’s planning consultant has indicated the discrepancies 
may reflect mapping errors resulting from the technology/soft ware used to prepare the maps. The 
City has also re-zoned a number of parcels over the course of the past several years. 

 Consequently, the apparent discrepancies and recent re-zonings suggest the need to review and adopt 
an updated official zoning map. The process would include referral to the planning commission for 
study, public hearing and recommendation. This process would further include examination of the 
proper delineation of zoning district boundaries to ensure the map correctly reflects the proper zoning 
of individual parcels.    After study and public hearing by the planning commission, the planning 
commission would then recommend adoption of a proposed updated zoning map that would be 
provided to Council for consideration of final adoption.     

Recommendation: That Council refer the City’s zoning map to the planning commission for study, 
public hearing and recommendation regarding a proposed updated zoning map. 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 178 of 197



 

MEMORANDUM 
 

City of Walled Lake ∙ 1499 E. West Maple Road ∙ Walled Lake, MI 48390 ∙ (248) 624-4847 
 
To:  Walled Lake City Council 
 
From:  Vahan Vanerian, City Attorney 
     
Re:   May 20, 2020 Special Meeting re Pincanna Appeal 
 
Date:  May 6, 2020 
 
 
 
On April 13, 2020, the City received an Appeal of an administrative decision denying the above 
applicant’s application for site plan approval of a Marijuana Provisioning Center. City Council 
scheduled the Appeal to be heard at a special meeting on May 20, 2020. The applicant has advised 
that it will be filing a supplement to include a request for variances as an alternative form of relief. 
Accordingly, the May 20th meeting must be re-scheduled to allow for the required publication and 
directly mailing to surrounding property owners regarding the added request for variances. The 
Appeal process requires a public hearing before City Council. The Applicant requests a new hearing 
date in mid-late June. 
 
Recommendation: That Council schedule a public hearing for purposes of hearing the above 
referenced appeal sometime during mid-late June. 
      
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 179 of 197



 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

CITY OF WALLED LAKE 
 

ORDINANCE NO. C-350-20 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 50, “OFFENSES 
AND MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS” TO ENACT 
OFFENSES PERTAINING TO THE USE AND POSSESSION 
OF TOBACCO, VAPOR AND ALTERNATIVE NICOTINE 
PRODUCTS BY MINORS.  

 
THE CITY OF WALLED LAKE ORDAINS: 
 

Section 1 of Ordinance. Purpose. 
 
The purpose of this ordinance is to adopt penalties and offenses pertaining to use and possession 
of Tobacco, Vapor and Nicotine containing products by minors. Tobacco, vapor and nicotine 
products and other types of electronic cigarettes and/or synthetic nicotine products are a rapidly 
emerging and diversified product class with use among youth and young adults. The use of 
products containing nicotine poses health risks to youth and young adults including, but not 
limited to, nicotine addiction and risks associated with developing adolescent brains in ways that 
may affect the health and mental well-being of the user.  
 

Section 2 of Ordinance. Amendment. 
 
Chapter 50, “Offenses and Miscellaneous Provisions”, Article VIII. “Offenses Concerning 
Underaged Persons”, Division 6. “Tobacco” is hereby re-captioned and re-titled as “Division 6. 
Tobacco and Nicotine Containing Products” and is hereby further amended in its entirety to read 
as follows: 
 

DIVISION 6. Tobacco and Nicotine Containing Products 
 
Sec. 50-341. Definitions. 
 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this Division, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning: 

(a) “Alternative nicotine product” means a noncombustible product containing nicotine that is 
intended for human consumption, whether chewed, absorbed, dissolved, or ingested by any other 
means. Alternative nicotine product does not include a tobacco product, a vapor product, food, or 
a product regulated as a drug or device by the United States Food and Drug Administration under 
21 USC 351 to 360fff-7. 
  
(b) “Minor” means an individual who is less than 18 years of age. 
  

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 180 of 197

http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000546&cite=21USCAS351&originatingDoc=NBE631FD187AD11E99C28E9EA2F5CA518&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000546&cite=21USCAS360FFF-7&originatingDoc=NBE631FD187AD11E99C28E9EA2F5CA518&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)


 

 2 

(c) “Person who sells vapor products or alternative nicotine products at retail” means a person 
whose ordinary course of business consists, in whole or in part, of the retail sale of vapor 
products or alternative nicotine products. 

 
 (d) “Person who sells tobacco products at retail” means a person whose ordinary course of 
business consists, in whole or in part, of the retail sale of tobacco products subject to state sales 
tax. 
  
(e) “Public place” means a public street, sidewalk, or park or any area open to the general public 
in a publicly owned or operated building or public place of business. 

(f) “Tobacco product” means a product that contains tobacco and is intended for human 
consumption, including, but not limited to, a cigarette, noncigarette smoking tobacco, or 
smokeless tobacco, as those terms are defined in section 2 of the tobacco products tax act, 1993 
PA 327, MCL 205.422, and a cigar. 

(g) “Use a tobacco product, vapor product, or alternative nicotine product” means to smoke, 
chew, suck, inhale, or otherwise consume a tobacco product, vapor product, or alternative 
nicotine product. 

(h) “Vapor product” means a noncombustible product that employs a heating element, power 
source, electronic circuit, or other electronic, chemical, or mechanical means, regardless of shape 
or size, that can be used to produce vapor from nicotine or any other substance, and the use or 
inhalation of which simulates smoking. Vapor product includes an electronic cigarette, electronic 
cigar, electronic cigarillo, electronic pipe, or similar product or device and a vapor cartridge or 
other container of nicotine or other substance in a solution or other form that is intended to be 
used with or in an electronic cigarette, electronic cigar, electronic cigarillo, electronic pipe, or 
similar product or device. Vapor product does not include a product regulated as a drug or device 
by the United States Food and Drug Administration under 21 USC 351 to 360fff-7. 

Sec. 50-342. Purchase, possession, or use of tobacco, vapor, or alternative nicotine 
products by minor; prohibitions; false or fraudulent proof of age; penalties; participation 
in health promotion and risk reduction assessment program; applicability. 

(1) Subject to subsection (6), a minor shall not do any of the following: 
  

(a) Purchase or attempt to purchase a tobacco product. 
  

(b) Possess or attempt to possess a tobacco product. 
  

(c) Use a tobacco product in a public place. 
 

(d) Present or offer to an individual a purported proof of age that is false, fraudulent, or 
not actually his or her own proof of age for the purpose of purchasing, attempting to 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 181 of 197

http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000043&cite=MIST205.422&originatingDoc=NBE631FD187AD11E99C28E9EA2F5CA518&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000546&cite=21USCAS351&originatingDoc=NBE631FD187AD11E99C28E9EA2F5CA518&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)
http://www.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000546&cite=21USCAS360FFF-7&originatingDoc=NBE631FD187AD11E99C28E9EA2F5CA518&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&vr=3.0&rs=cblt1.0&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Document)


 

 3 

purchase, possessing, or attempting to possess a tobacco product. 
  

(2) An individual who violates subsection (1) is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of 
not more than $50.00 for each violation. Pursuant to a probation order, the court may also require 
an individual who violates subsection (1) to participate in a health promotion and risk reduction 
assessment program, if available. In addition, an individual who violates subsection (1) is subject 
to the following: 

(a) For the first violation, the court may order the individual to do 1 of the following: 

(i) Perform not more than 16 hours of community service. 

(ii) Participate in a health promotion and risk reduction assessment program. 

(b) For a second violation, in addition to participation in a health promotion and risk 
reduction assessment program, the court may order the individual to perform not more 
than 32 hours of community service. 

(c) For a third or subsequent violation, in addition to participation in a health promotion 
and risk reduction assessment program, the court may order the individual to perform not 
more than 48 hours of community service. 

(3) Subject to subsection (6), a minor shall not do any of the following: 
  

(a) Purchase or attempt to purchase a vapor product or alternative nicotine product. 
  

(b) Possess or attempt to possess a vapor product or alternative nicotine product. 
  

(c) Use a vapor product or alternative nicotine product in a public place. 
 

(d) Present or offer to an individual a purported proof of age that is false, fraudulent, or 
not actually his or her own proof of age for the purpose of purchasing, attempting to 
purchase, possessing, or attempting to possess a vapor product or alternative nicotine 
product. 

(4) An individual who violates subsection (3) is responsible for a civil infraction or guilty of a 
misdemeanor as follows: 

(a) For the first violation, the individual is responsible for a civil infraction and shall be 
fined not more than $50.00. The court may order the individual to participate in a health 
promotion and risk reduction assessment program, if available. In addition, the court may 
order the individual to perform not more than 16 hours of community service. 

  

(b) For the second violation, the individual is responsible for a civil infraction and shall 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 182 of 197



 

 4 

be fined not more than $50.00. The court may order the individual to participate in a 
health promotion and risk reduction assessment program, if available. In addition, the 
court may order the individual to perform not more than 32 hours of community service. 

  

(c) If a violation of subsection (3) occurs after 2 or more prior judgments, the individual 
is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not more than $50.00 for each 
violation. Pursuant to a probation order, the court may also require the individual to 
participate in a health promotion and risk reduction assessment program, if available. In 
addition, the court may order the individual to perform not more than 48 hours of 
community service. 

(5) An individual who is ordered to participate in a health promotion and risk reduction 
assessment program under subsection (2) or (4) is responsible for the costs of participating in the 
program if ordered by the court. 

(6) Subsections (1) and (3) do not apply to a minor participating in any of the following: 

(a) An undercover operation in which the minor purchases or receives a tobacco product, 
vapor product, or alternative nicotine product under the direction of the minor’s employer 
and with the prior approval of the local prosecutor’s office as part of an employer-
sponsored internal enforcement action. 

(b) An undercover operation in which the minor purchases or receives a tobacco product, 
vapor product, or alternative nicotine product under the direction of the state police or a 
local police agency as part of an enforcement action, unless the initial or 
contemporaneous purchase or receipt of the tobacco product, vapor product, or 
alternative nicotine product by the minor was not under the direction of the state police or 
the local police agency and was not part of the undercover operation. 

(c) Compliance checks in which the minor attempts to purchase tobacco products for the 
purpose of satisfying federal substance abuse block grant youth tobacco access 
requirements, if the compliance checks are conducted under the direction of a substance 
use disorder coordinating agency and with the prior approval of the state police or a local 
police agency. 

(7) Subsections (1) and (3) do not apply to the handling or transportation of a tobacco product, 
vapor product, or alternative nicotine product by a minor under the terms of the minor’s 
employment. 

(8) This section does not prohibit an individual from being charged with, convicted of, or 
sentenced for any other violation of law that arises out of the violation of subsection (1) or (3). 
  

Sec. 50-343. Interference with Parental Rights or Legal Guardian. 

This Division does not interfere with the right of a parent or legal guardian in the rearing and 
management of his or her minor children or wards within the bounds of his or her own private 
premises. 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 183 of 197



 

 5 

Sec. 50-344. Sale of Tobacco, Vapor, or Alternative Nicotine Products to Minor; 
Prohibition; Penalties; Signage; Affirmative Defense and Rebuttal; Age Verification; 
Requirements 

(1) A person shall not sell, give, or furnish a tobacco product, vapor product, or alternative 
nicotine product to a minor, including, but not limited to, through a vending machine. A person 
who violates this subsection or subsection (8) is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine as 
follows: 

(a) For a first offense, not more than $100.00. 

(b) For a second offense, not more than $500.00. 

(2) A person who sells tobacco products, vapor products, or alternative nicotine products at retail 
shall post, in a place close to the point of sale and conspicuous to both employees and customers, 
a sign produced by the department of health and human services that includes the following 
statement: 
  
“The purchase of a tobacco product, vapor product, or alternative nicotine product by a minor 
under 18 years of age and the provision of a tobacco product, vapor product, or alternative 
nicotine product to a minor are prohibited by law. A minor who unlawfully purchases or uses a 
tobacco product, vapor product, or alternative nicotine product is subject to criminal penalties.” 
  

(3) If the sign required under subsection (2) is more than 6 feet from the point of sale, it must be 
5- ½ inches by 8- ½ inches and the statement required under subsection (2) must be printed in 
36-point boldfaced type. If the sign required under subsection (2) is 6 feet or less from the point 
of sale, it must be 2 inches by 4 inches and the statement required under subsection (2) must be 
printed in 20-point boldfaced type. 
  

(4) Licensed wholesalers, secondary wholesalers, and unclassified acquirers of tobacco products 
shall obtain copies of the sign from the department of health and human services.  

(5) It is an affirmative defense to a charge under subsection (1) that the defendant had in force at 
the time of arrest and continues to have in force a written policy to prevent the sale of tobacco 
products, vapor products, or alternative nicotine products, as applicable, to persons under 18 
years of age and that the defendant enforced and continues to enforce the policy. A defendant 
who proposes to offer evidence of the affirmative defense described in this subsection shall file 
notice of the defense, in writing, with the court and serve a copy of the notice on the prosecuting 
attorney. The defendant shall serve the notice not less than 14 days before the date set for trial. 

(6) A prosecuting attorney who proposes to offer testimony to rebut the affirmative defense 
described in subsection (5) shall file a notice of rebuttal, in writing, with the court and serve a 
copy of the notice on the defendant. The prosecuting attorney shall serve the notice not less than 
7 days before the date set for trial and shall include in the notice the name and address of each 
rebuttal witness. 
  

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 184 of 197



 

 6 

(7) Subsection (1) does not apply to the handling or transportation of a tobacco product, vapor 
product, or alternative nicotine product by a minor under the terms of the minor’s employment. 
  

(8) Before selling, offering for sale, giving, or furnishing a tobacco product, vapor product, or 
alternative nicotine product to an individual, a person shall verify that the individual is at least 18 
years of age by doing 1 of the following: 
  

(a) If the individual appears to be under 27 years of age, examining a government-issued 
photographic identification that establishes that the individual is at least 18 years of age. 

  
(b) For sales made by the internet or other remote sales method, performing an age 
verification through an independent, third-party age verification service that compares 
information available from a commercially available database, or aggregate of databases, 
that are regularly used by government agencies and businesses for the purpose of age and 
identity verification to the personal information entered by the individual during the 
ordering process that establishes that the individual is 18 years of age or older. 

 
Sec. 50-345. Sale of vapor or alternative nicotine products; display and 
storage requirements; penalties. 
 
A person who sells vapor products or alternative nicotine products at retail shall not display for 
sale a vapor product unless the vapor product is stored for sale behind a counter in an area 
accessible only to employees or within a locked case so that a customer wanting access to the 
vapor product must ask an employee for assistance. A person who violates this section is 
responsible for a civil infraction and shall be fined not more than $500.00. 
 

Section 3.  Severability 
 

 If any section, clause or provision of this ordinance shall be declared to be 
unconstitutional, void, illegal or ineffective by any court of competent jurisdiction, such section, 
clause or provision declared to be unconstitutional, void or illegal shall thereby cease to be a part 
of this ordinance; but the remainder of this ordinance shall stand and be in full force and effect. 

 
Section 4.  Savings 

 
 All proceedings pending and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred at the 
time this ordinance takes effect are saved and may be consummated according to the law in force 
when they are commenced. 

Section 5.  Repealer. 
 

 All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only 
to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 

 
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 185 of 197



 

 7 

Section 6.  Effective Date. 
 

 The provisions of this ordinance are hereby ordered to take effect following publication 
in the manner prescribed by the Charter of the City of Walled Lake. 
 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENTS: 
ABSTENTIONS: 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
JENNIFER A. STUART, City Clerk   LINDA S. ACKLEY, Mayor 
CITY OF WALLED LAKE    CITY OF WALLED LAKE 
 
Introduced: April 21, 2020  
Adopted:  
Effective: _____________        
 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I, the undersigned, the qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Walled Lake, Oakland 
County, Michigan, do certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the Ordinance 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Walled Lake at a meeting held on the ____ day of 
__________, 2020, the original of which is on file in my office. 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       JENNIFER A. STUART, City Clerk 
       City of Walled Lake 
 
 
 
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 186 of 197



Page 1 of 4 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
CITY OF WALLED LAKE 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE OPERATING AND 
CAPITAL BUDGET APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS AND 
LEVY OF TAXES FOR FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2020 –  
JUNE 30, 2021  
 

Proposed RESOLUTION 2020-19 
 

At its Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Walled Lake, Oakland County, 
Michigan, held electronically pursuant to Governor Gretchen Whitmer’s Executive Order 2020-
75, on the 19th day of May 2020 at 7:30 p.m. 
 

WHEREAS, in compliance with the Act 2 of 1968, Uniform Budgeting and Accounting 
Act of the State of Michigan, (hereafter “the Act”) the appropriate City Officers have submitted 
to the City Manager an itemized estimate of expenditures for Fiscal Year End 2021 for their 
respective departments, divisions, and/or activities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and Finance & Budget Director have prepared a complete 
itemized budget proposal for Fiscal Year End 2021 including General Fund Income and 
Expenditures, and have submitted the same to the City Council pursuant to Chapter 8, Section 
8.1 of the City Charter and the Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is the prerogative of City Council to determine the size and scope of City 

operations it will provide within the constraints of limited funding; and  
 

WHEREAS, Section 8.1 of the City Charter calls for the City Manager, as the Budget 
Officer, to prepare and submit to the Council on the third Monday in May of each year, at a 
special meeting of the Council at 8:00 p.m., a recommended budget; and  

 
WHEREAS, by Resolution 2020-09 Council deferred the budget submission to the 

regularly scheduled Council meeting of Tuesday, May 19, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter calls for City Council, by resolution, to adopt 

a budget for the next fiscal year by the second Monday in June in each year, and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 8, Section 8.2 of the City Charter, a Public Hearing was 

held on the proposed budget for the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 on Tuesday, May 19, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, all the necessary proceedings have been taken by the City of Walled Lake, 
Oakland County, Michigan, in accordance with its City Charter, City Codes and Ordinances, and 
the laws of the State of Michigan.  
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 187 of 197



Page 2 of 4 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of Walled Lake, 
County of Oakland, State of Michigan that: 

 
Section 1. For budget year 2020-2021 Council retains a policy of providing a maximum 

full-time staff size as determined in Resolution 2013-23 as follows: 
 

Public Works.  Staff levels will require the retention of no more than four (4) full-time crew 
members to service City roads, parks, water and other public works functions during the hours of 
7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Any reduction caused by contracting out of public works services, 
retirement, resignations or other form of attrition will not be filled and any shift work will be 
supplemented with part-time, seasonal or interns staffing as needed. 
 

Section 2. For budget year 2020-2021 Council directs the maximum full-time staff size as 
follows: 
 
Public Safety.  Staff levels will allow the maximum employment of three (3) full-time fire 
fighters, six (6) full-time patrol officers and a Fire Chief and Chief of Police. Shifts will be 
supplemented with professional on-call and part-time as needed. 
 
General Government.  Staff levels will allow the maximum employment of (2) full-time 
employees to staff the office during the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. Monday through 
Thursday. Any reduction caused by contracting out of services, retirement, resignations or other 
form of attrition will not be filled and work will be supplemented with part-time and seasonal 
employees, interns and managerial personnel.  
 
Administration.  Staff levels will allow the maximum employment of six (6) full-time employees 
to be supplemented with part-time employees and interns as needed.  

 
Section 3. That this general appropriations act provides for the expenses of the City 

government and its activities for the fiscal year, beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 
2021, and the following amounts are hereby appropriated: 
 

Out of the General Fund the following appropriations by function: 
 

Legislative $5,750 
City Administration $477,184 
Public Safety $3,123,477 
Public Services $1,754,904 
Capital Outlay $20,000 

 
for a total appropriation of $5,381,315 which includes transfers to other funds of $34,897, for 
which the City of Walled Lake shall levy 14.5093 Operating mills and 3.9500 Public Safety 
mills on ad valorem tax of all real and personal property taxable value that is subject to taxation 
in the City of Walled Lake for FY 2020-2021 for general operating purposes, with estimated tax 
collections of $3,420,000. 
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 188 of 197



Page 3 of 4 
 

 Out of the Drug Forfeiture Fund the amount of $100,000, which includes a levy of zero 
(0) mills for operating purposes and is funded by the Police Department’s participation in the 
Federal Organized Crime Drug Enforcement and State Organized Crime Drug Enforcement. 
 

Out of the Major Streets Fund the amount of $372,945 which includes a levy of zero (0) 
mills for operating purposes and is funded by a proportion of revenues collected by the State of 
Michigan under Public Act 51 of 1951, and as needed, transfers from the General Fund and 
Special Assessments. 
 

Out of the Local Streets Fund the amount of $295,245 which includes a levy of zero (0) 
mills for operating purposes and is funded by a proportion of revenues collected by the State of 
Michigan under Public Act 51 of 1951, and as needed, transfers from the Major Streets Fund and 
General Fund and Special Assessments.   
 

Out of the Debt Service Fund the amount of $224,732 which includes a levy of zero (0) 
mills and is fully funded by transfers in from other funds. 
 

Out of the Transportation Fund, the amount of $18,223 which includes a levy of zero (0) 
mills and is funded by an allocation from the Suburban Mobility Authority for Regional 
Transportation (SMART).  
 

Out of the Water/Sewer Fund the amount of $153,783 which includes a levy of zero (0) 
mills for operating purposes and is funded by user fees.   
 

Out of the Water Capital Fund the amount of $2,010 which includes a levy of zero (0) 
mills for operating purposes and is funded by user fees.   
                               

Out of the Refuse Fund the amount of $347,493 which includes a levy of zero (0) mills 
for operating purposes and is funded by user fees. 
 

Out of the Library Fund the amount of $358,990 for which a levy of 1.6206 mills on ad 
valorem tax of all real and personal property taxable value which is subject to taxation for FY 
2020-2021 for the Walled Lake City Library operating purposes, with estimated tax collections 
of $336,000. 
 
 Out of the Downtown Development Fund, the amount of $733,833 which includes a total 
levy of zero (0) mills for operating purposes and is funded by the capture of certain taxes levied 
by the City of Walled Lake for General and Public Safety, SMART Operations, Oakland County 
(OC) General Operations, OC Parks and Recreation, OC HCMA and Oakland Community 
College.  
 
For Fiscal Year 2020-2021 a total appropriation from all funds in the amount of $7,988,569 and 
a total levy of 20.0799 mills. 
 
 Section 4. That pursuant to the Act and in pursuit of the objectives of the City Council the 
City Manager, as the Chief Administrative Officer, is authorized to execute transfers of each 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 189 of 197



Page 4 of 4 
 

appropriation to any other appropriation within budgetary centers and among each fund and 
budgetary center within the total appropriation limit as authorized in the general appropriations 
act and its amendments.  
 
 
Motion to approve Resolution was offered by _____________ and seconded by ____________. 
 

AYES: ()     
NAYS: ()   
ABSENT: ()       
ABSTENTIONS: ()     
 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

        
 
       __________________________________ 
       JENNIFER A. STUART    
       City Clerk   
 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       LINDA S. ACKLEY 
       Mayor  
    
  

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 190 of 197



Page 1 of 2 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
CITY OF WALLED LAKE 

 
A RESOLUTION FOR THE SUMMER 2020 MILLAGE 
REQUEST REPORT TO COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS FOR THE ANNUAL LEVY AND 
COLLECTION OF TAXES FOR THE CITY 
 

Proposed RESOLUTION 2020-20 
 

At its Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Walled Lake, Oakland County, 
Michigan, held electronically pursuant to Governor Gretchen Whitmer’s Executive Order 2020-
75, on the 19th day of May 2020 at 7:30 p.m. 

 
WHEREAS, the Section 9.1 of the Charter of the City of Walled Lake states that the city 

shall have the power to annually levy and collect taxes for municipal purpose; and 
 

WHEREAS, exclusive of any levies authorized by statue to be made beyond charter tax 
rate limitations, the annual ad valorem tax levy shall not exceed two percent of the assessed 
value of all real and personal property subject to taxation in the city; and   
 

WHEREAS, the subjects of ad valorem taxation for municipal purposes shall be the same 
as for state, county and school purposes under general law; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City collects the Municipal Operating, Library, and Public Safety 

millages on the summer tax statement. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of Walled Lake, 
County of Oakland, State of Michigan that: 

Section 1. The 2020 millages authorized to be levied on the July 1, 2020 summer tax 
collection is a City Operating millage of 14.5093 mills, a 1963 authorized Library millage of 0.7252, a 
2004 authorized Library millage of 0.8954, and a 2019 authorized Public Safety millage of 3.9500 
mills. 
  
  
Motion to approve Resolution offered by ______________ and seconded by ______________. 

 
AYES: ()   
NAYS: () 
ABSENT: ()    
ABSTENTIONS: ()    
 

 
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 191 of 197



Page 2 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )SS 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

 
 
        
       ___________________________________ 
       JENNIFER A. STUART  
  City Clerk  
 
 
 
  ____________________________________
  LINDA S. ACKLEY 
  Mayor  
 
 
 
        

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 192 of 197



May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 193 of 197



By: Witnessed:

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

OWNER:  City of Walled Lake

ADDRESS:  1499 E. West Maple Road, Walled Lake, MI  48390

Acknowledge

Addendum 

1

B
id

d
e

r 

O
rd

e
r

BIDDER

Bid

Security  

(Y/N)

Mult. Bid    

Award   

Both       

( % )       

Multiple Bid     

Adjusted Total       

(this Project) 

PROJECT:  Public Safety Campus Expansion, Phase II

PROJECT NUMBER: 20-047

PROJECT MANAGER: Bradd Maki

BID DUE DATE: May 13, 2020

Base

Bid

D&R Earthmoving LLC Y $720,616.68 NA N

Warren Contractors Y $693,316.00 0 N

V.I.L. Construction Y $644,274.00 1% $637,831.26 N

Superior Excavating Y $648,999.00 0

Stante Excavating Y $693,974.79 NA

C.E. Gleeson Constructors $816,824.00 NAY

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 194 of 197



Page 1 of 3 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
CITY OF WALLED LAKE 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WALLED LAKE DECLARING THE FIRST FRIDAY IN JUNE 
TO BE NATIONAL GUN VIOLENCE AWARENESS DAY 
 

Proposed RESOLUTION 2020-21 
 

At its Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Walled Lake, Oakland County, Michigan, 
held electronically pursuant to Governor Gretchen Whitmer’s Executive Order 2020-75, on the 
19th day of May 2020 at 7:30 p.m. 

 
WHEREAS, every day, more than 100 Americans are killed by gun violence and on 

average there are more than 13,000-gun homicides every year; and 
 

WHEREAS, Americans are 25 times more likely to die by gun homicide than people in 
other high-income countries; and 
 

WHEREAS, Michigan has 1,187-gun deaths every year, with a rate of 11.8 deaths per 
100,000 people.  Michigan has the 30th highest rate of gun deaths in the US; and 
 

WHEREAS, gun homicides predominantly occur in cities, with more than half of all 
firearm related gun deaths in the nation occurring in 127 cities; and 
 

WHEREAS, cities across the nation, including in Walled Lake, are working to end the 
senseless violence with evidence-based solutions; and 
  

WHEREAS, protecting public safety in the communities they serve is mayors’ highest 
responsibility; and 
 

WHEREAS, support for the Second Amendment rights of law-abiding citizens goes 
hand-in-hand with keeping guns away from people with dangerous histories; and 
 

WHEREAS, mayors and law enforcement officers know their communities best, are the 
most familiar with local criminal activity and how to address it, and are best positioned to 
understand how to keep their citizens safe; and 
 

WHEREAS, the pandemic facing America has drastically impacted communities and 
individuals sheltering in place which may result in situations where access to firearms results in 
increased risk in intimate partner violence gun deaths, suicide by gun and unintentional 
shootings. 
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 195 of 197



Page 2 of 3 
 

WHEREAS, in January 2013, Hadiya Pendleton, a teenager who marched in the 
presidential inaugural parade and was tragically shot and killed just weeks later, should be now 
celebrating her 23rd birthday; and  
 

WHEREAS, to help honor Hadiya – and the more than 100 Americans whose lives are 
cut short every day and the countless survivors who are injured by shootings every day – a 
national coalition of organizations has designated June 5, 2020, the first Friday in June, as the 
6th National Gun Violence Awareness Day; and 
 

WHEREAS, the idea was inspired by a group of Hadiya’s friends, who asked their 
classmates to commemorate her life by wearing orange; they chose this color because hunters 
wear orange to announce themselves to other hunters when out in the woods and orange is a 
color that symbolizes the value of human life; and  
 

WHEREAS, anyone can join this campaign by pledging to Wear Orange on June 5th, the 
first Friday in June in 2020, to help raise awareness about gun violence; and  
 

WHEREAS, by wearing orange on June 5, 2020 Americans will raise awareness about 
gun violence and honor the lives of gun violence victims and survivors; and 
 

WHEREAS, we renew our commitment to reduce gun violence and pledge to do all we 
can to keep firearms out of the wrong hands and encourage responsible gun ownership to help 
keep our children safe. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of Walled Lake, 

County of Oakland, State of Michigan that:   
 
 Section 1.   The City Council declares the first Friday in June, June 5, 2020, to be National 
Gun Violence Awareness Day.  

 
 

Motion to approve Resolution was offered by _____ and seconded by _____. 
  

AYES: ()   
NAYS: () 
ABSENTS: () 
ABSTENTIONS: () 

 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 196 of 197



Page 3 of 3 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )SS 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 
 

 
       __________________________________ 
       JENNIFER A. STUART 
       City Clerk 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
       LINDA S. ACKLEY 
       Mayor  

May 19, 2020 Council Packet 
Page 197 of 197


	Healy Homes Chestnut Hills lot split packet.pdf
	Chestnut Hills LOT SPLIT FULL PACKET.pdf
	Lot Split Chestnut Ridge APP
	Revised-Lot Split
	Lot Split Chestnut Ridge Approval_FIRE
	McKenna_Chestnut Ridge_Lot Split Review 21may2019


	Charter Amend Initiative memo May 2020 packet.pdf
	Walled Lake chtr amd by initative Petition pkg to gov.pdf
	Ltr to Gov 3.18.20 Walled Lake init pet-signed
	Att 1 Gov's 8.12.19 req, City atty's 8.7.19 Ltr
	Att 1a City Manager's Employment Agmt (att to 8.7.19 city atty Ltr)
	Att 1-b Petition, proposed amendment (11x14 inch paper)
	Att 2, City's 8.19.19 req to Nessel w-o atts
	Att 3, HILLSDALE
	Att 4, COA dkt #345248, Order 8.31.18





